6:30 P.M.

PUBLIC NOTICE
AGENDA
LOCKHART CITY COUNCIL
TUESDAY, MARCH 19, 2019
CLARK LIBRARY ANNEX-COUNCIL CHAMBERS

217 SOUTH MAIN STREET, 3" FLOOR
LOCKHART, TEXAS

WORK SESSION (No Action)

Work session will be held to receive briefings and to initially discuss all items contained on
the Agenda posted for 7:30 p.m. Generally, this work session is to simplify issues as it
relates to the agenda items. No vote will be taken on any issue discussed or reviewed
during the work session.

DISCUSSION ONLY

A.
B.

C.

Discuss minutes of the City Council meeting of February 27, 2019 and March 5, 2019.

- |
Presentation and discussion regarding the City of Lockhart's and Componeft Unit's
Fiscal Year 2017-2018 Financial Audit by Harrison, Walidrop & Uherek, L.L.P.]{ - lZ«,l

Discuss Resolution 2019-08, adopting the Fund Balance — Stabilization and Excess
of Reserves Policies according to the guidelines from Government Finance Officers
Association (GFOA). 281249

Discuss Digitization Services with MCCi to scan large plans stored in the Inspection
Department into Laserfiche. |20 -4 =

Discuss Ordinance 2019-06 establishing the classification and the number of
employees in each classification within the Police Department. lYZB-(¢ 2.

Discuss the Request for Qualifications document to begin the process to select a new
City Attorney. oDk 8

Discuss possible regulations to govern the use of the public sidewalks in the central
business district for objects associated with abutting businesses such as benches,
chairs and tables, clothing racks, portable statues, signs, and other promotional
items. l(oﬁ ~1771
Discuss allocating the use of $1,195,750 to implement needed park renovations and
additions identified in the 2019/2020 Lockhart Parks and Renovation Project List to
include use of $816,800 of funds available for parks in the 2015 Certificates of
Obligation, and reallocating the remaining balance from City Hall's proposed elevator
in the amount of $237,751 from the 2015 Certificates of Obligation towards Parks,
with the remaining $141,199 to be covered by unrestricted fund balance or budgeted
into Capital Projects in the Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Budget. R O |

Discuss Resolution 2019-09 adopting Strategic Priorities for 2019-2020.

(M8-197

[ of 4
City Council — March 19, 2019



7:30 P.M.

REGULAR MEETING

CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Lew White

INVOCATION, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Invocation.
Pledge of Allegiance to the United States and Texas flags.

CITIZENS/VISITORS COMMENTS

(The purpose of this item is to allow citizens an opportunity to address the City Council on issues that
are not on the agenda. No discussion can be carried out on the citizen/visitor comment.)

CONSENT AGENDA

A. Approve minutes of the City Council meeting of February 27, 2019 and March 5,
2019. 5-15

B. Accept the City of Lockhart's and Component Unit's Fiscal Year 2017-2018
Financial Audit by Harrison, Waldrop & Uherek, L.L.P. [¢ - 124

C. Approve Resolution 2019-08, adopting the Fund Balance — Stabilization and
Excess of Reserves Policies according to the guidelines from Government
Finance Officers Association (GFOA). ' 126129

D. Approve Digitization Services with MCCi to scan large plans stored in the
Inspection Department into Laserfiche. 120 ~ (42

E. Approve Ordinance 2019-06 establishing the classification and the number of
employees in each classification within the Police Department. 4362

F. Approve the Request for Qualifications document to begin the process to select a

new City Attorney. [P -16%

DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS

A.

Discuss possible regulations to govern the use of the public sidewalks in the
central business district for objects associated with abutting businesses such as
benches, chairs and tables, clothing racks, portable statues, signs, and other
promotional items. [ g ~17]

Discussion and/or action regarding allocating the use of $1,195,750 to implement
needed park renovations and additions identified in the 2019/2020 Lockhart Parks
and Renovation Project List to include use of $816,800 of funds available for parks
in the 2015 Certificates of Obligation, and reallocating the remaining balance from
City Hall’'s proposed elevator in the amount of $237,751 from the 2015 Cettificates
of Obligation towards Parks, with the remaining $141,199 to be covered by
unrestricted fund balance or budgeted into Capital Projects in the Fiscal Year

2019-2020 Budget. [M2—-{17
Discussion and/or action to consider Resolution 2019-09 adopting Strategic
Pricrities for 2019-2020. MNg-197

Discussion and/or action regarding appointments to various boards, commissions

or committees. {q 8—-'2_0{,9

2of4
City Council — March 19, 2019



CITY MANAGER’S REPORT, PRESENTATION AND POSSIBLE DISCUSSION

e Events:
o KidFish and Welcome Spring Day at City Park held on March 16 from 9am until
12(noon). Tolbert Chili Cookoff was also held at City Park, March 15-16.

o DBr. Eugene Clark Library hosting fun Spring Break events for children this week;
March 18 — 20.

o Cleanup at the Lockhart Cemetery begins on March 25.

o Annual Child Abuse Awareness Month fundraiser for Roxanne's House will be held
on March 30 at the Lions Club from 1-4 pm.

o 2019 Residential Citywide Cleanup Program scheduled for April 3, 10, 17 and 24,
depending on customer location.

o Kiwanis 5K Stampede or 1K Fun Run will be held on Saturday, April 13.
o Sip-n-Stroll will be held downtown on April 6.

o Lockhart Victim Assistance Team will host National Crime Victims' Rights Week on
April 9 at City Hall, Glosserman Room at 7:00 p.m.

o Library Events:
o Irving Club Tea March 19, 2019 from 1:00 p.m. to 3:00 p.m. with author, Myra
Hargrave Mcllvain.

o AARP Tax Aid - Mondays from 9:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m.

o Dia de Ninos to be held on April 30, 2019, 10:00 am -12:00 pm. Dia de Ninos is a
nationally recognized initiative that emphasizes the importance of literacy for all
children from all backgrounds. It is a daily commitment to linking children and their
families to diverse books, languages and cultures.

o Wedding in the historic Dr. Eugene Clark Library to be held on Friday, March 22,
2019.

o Plans are underway for Fiesta Del Mariachi Festival at the Library to be held on
Saturday, April 27, 2019 from 6:00 p.m. to 10:00 p.m.

* Review of the February 2019 Revenue and Expenditure Report.

* Economic Development Updates:
o Visionary Fiber Technologies planning to open in April and has begun hiring a number
of scientists and engineers in its technology transfer facility located at 1400 Blackjack.

o The Turner Company has begun construction of their precast concrete plant on their
31-acre tract off at FM-142/Cistern Road. Production to begin in May while the
balance of the facility will be completed by the Fall.

o Dailey Electric’s operations opened in Aug 2018 and now has 20 employees.

» The 2019/2020 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) application was submitted
on March 11" for the continuation of the 18" water main located behind Serta Mattress
Factory to connect to South Commerce Street.

» Staff met with representatives of LCRA in preparation for LCRA Steps Forward. LCRA
Step Forward is an annual community service effort. This year's event will be held on
April 51,

* Legislative Update.

Jof4
City Council - March 19, 2019



7. COUNCIL AND STAFF COMMENTS — ITEMS OF COMMUNITY INTEREST

{**ftems of Communily Iriterest defined below)

8. ADJOURNMENT

™ ftems of Community Inferest includes: 1)expressions of thanks, congratulations or condolence; 2} information regarding
holiday schedules; 3} an honorary or salufary recognition of a pubiic official, public employee, or other citizen, except that a
discussion regarding a change in the status of a person’s public office or public employment is not an honorary or salutary
recognition for purposes of this subdivision; 4) a reminder about an upcoming event organized or sponsored by the govemning
body; 5) informafion regarding a social, ceremonial, or community event organized or sponsored by an entily other than the
govemning body that was attended or is scheduled to be attended by a member of the goveming body or an official employee of
the municipalily; and 6) announcerments involving an imminent threat to the public health and safety of peopie in the municipality
that has arisen after the posting of the agenda. (SB 1182 - effective 09/01/2009)

City Council shall have the right at anytime to seek legal advice in Executive Session from its Attorney on any agenda
item, whether posted for Executive Session or not.

| certify that the above notice of meeting was posted on the builetin board in the Municipal Building, 308
West San Antonio Street, Lockhart, Texas, on the lﬁ"“’\ day of “MWay 2019 at

{35, Iy . | further certify that the following News Media was properly notified of this
meeting as stated above: Lockhart Post-Register

D onp Qoustancio
Connie Constancio, TRMC
City Secretary

4of4
City Council — March 19, 2019



DRAFT
LOCKHART CITY COUNCIL
SPECIAL MEETING
WORKSHOP FEBRUARY 27, 2019 6:30 P.M.

CLARK LIBRARY ANNEX-COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 217 SOUTH MAIN STREET, 3" FLOOR,
LOCKHART, TEXAS

Council present: Mayor Lew White

Mayor Pro-Tem Angie Gonzales-Sanchez Councilmember John Castillo (arrived at 6:40 pm)
Councilmember Juan Mendoza Councilmember Kara McGregor
Councilmember Jeffry Michelson Councilmember Brad Westmoreland

Staff present:
Steve Lewis, City Manager Connie Constancio, City Secretary

Sean Kelley, Public Works Director Chris Sager, Parks Manager
Pam Larison, Interim Finance Director

Citizens/Visitors Addressing the Council: Rachael Lingvai, Citizen.

ITEM 1. CALL TO ORDER.
Mayor Lew White called the workshop/special meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.

ITEM 2-A. DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION TO CONSIDER IMPLEMENTING THE PARKS
MASTER PLAN.

There was discussion about improvements at all parks throughout the city. Details of the proposed
Lockhart Parks Improvements and associated costs are listed on Exhibit A.

There was discussion about adding a few items as listed below:

e City Park - request the Lockhart Independent School District assist with repairing the streets since
the school buses use the street as a route.

Sports Complex — add one batting cage

Pecos Park — do not add the bridge. Use those funds towards other park improvements.

Nueces Park — repair the fence around the basketball court and improve drainage.

Lions Park — upgrade restroom

There was also discussion regarding the following topics:

Grant writing process.

Possible historic playscape that could cost approximately $60,000.

Donations of new trees from organizations.

Improvements to the lighting at various parks.

Family considering donation towards the Nueces Park in memory of their daughter.

Rachael Lingvai, Citizen, requested that the playscape at the Navarro Springs Park be painted and that the
park be updated.

lof3
City Council — February 27, 2019



PDRAFT

ITEM 3. ADJOURNMENT.
Mayor Pro-Tem Sanchez made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Councilmember Mendoza secconded.

The motion passed by a vote of 7-0. The meeting was adjourned at 8:10 p.m.

PASSED and APPROVED this the 19 day of March 2019.

CITY OF LOCKHART

Lew White, Mayor
ATTEST:

Connie Constancio, TRMC
City Secretary

20f3
City Council — February 27, 2019



EXHIBIT “A”

Lockhart Parks Improvements and Associated Costs extracted from the Parks Recreation and

Park
City Park
Community

Sports Complex
Community
Pecos
Neighborhood

LaFleur Complex
Community

Nueces
Neighborhood

Santos Arredondo
Neighborhood
Navarro Springs
Neighborhood

Lions Park

Community

Braun Park
Neighborhood

Senior Center
Grant Funds

Open Space Master Plan.

Improvements Quantity | Unit Cost Estimated Cost
Playscape 1 $50,000.00 $50,000.00
Wayfinding 5 $200.00 $1,000.00
Picnic Shelters 5 $5,000.00 $25,000.00
Pier Cover 1 $5,000.00 $5,000.00
Dog Park 1 545,000.00 $45,000.00
Restroom Upgrade 2 $30,000.00 $60,000.00
Lighting Upgrades 40 $500.00 $20,000.00
Parking Lot Upgrade 1 530,000.00 $30,000.00
Roads 1| 5$100,000.00 $100,000.00
Security System 1 $50,000.00 $50,000.00
Signs 1 $500.00 $500.00
Playscape 1 $50,000.00 $50,000.00
Pavilion 1 $10,000.00 $10,000.00
Signs 1 $500.00 $500.00
Update restrooms 1 $30,000.00 $30,000.00
Bridge 1 $63,500.00 $63,500.00
Playscape Cover 1| $25,000.00 $25,000.00
Shade Structures 5 $25,000.00 $125,000.00
Splash Pad 1 | $100,000.00 $100,000.00
Picnic Tables 5 $1,850.00 $9,250.00
Trees 20 $450.00 $9,000.00
Picnic Tables 5 $1,200.00 56,000.,00
New Playscape 1! $50,000.00 $50,000.00
Restroom Upgrade 1 530,000.00 $30,000.00
Upgrade Lighting 4 $500.00 $2,000.00
Bridge 1 $10,000.00 $10,000.00
Signs 2 $500.00 $1,000.00
Signs/restroom 1 $500.00 5500.00
Playscape Cover 1 $25,000.00 $25,000.00
Signage 1 $500.00 $500.00
trees 10 $450.00 54,500.00
Playscape Cover 1 $25,000.00 $25,000.00
New Playscape 1 $50,000.00 $50,000.00
Replace Bridges 3 $10,000.00 $30,000.00
Upgrade Lights 9 $500.00 $4,500,00
Covered Picnic Areas 4 $25,000.00 $100,000.00
Replace shade screen 1 $1,500.00 $1,500.00
Playscape Cover 1 525,000.00 $25,000.00
Trees 15 $450.00 $6,750.00
Building Upgrade 1 $3,000.00 $3,000.00
Matching Grant Funds 1| $200,000.00 $200,000.00
Total $1,384,000.00
Jof3

City Council — February 27, 2019

DRAFT



DRAFT
REGULAR MEETING
LOCKHART CITY COUNCIL MARCH 5, 2019 6:30 P.M.

CLARK LIBRARY ANNEX-COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 217 SOUTH MAIN STREET, 3'1 FLOOR,
LOCKHART, TEXAS

Council present: Mayor Lew White

Mayor Pro-Tem Angie Gonzales-Sanchez Councilmember John Castillo
Councilmember Juan Mendoza Councilmember Kara McGregor
Councilmember Jeffry Michelson Councilmember Brad Westmoreland

Staff present:
Steve Lewis, City Manager Connie Constancio, City Secretary

Dan Gibson, City Planner Sean Kelley, Public Works Director
Chris Sager, Parks Manager

Citizens/Visitors Addressing the Council: Class of 1989: James Morales and Pete Mireles; Stella Rojas
of Lockhart Little League; Citizens: Ronda Reagan, Tom Guyton and Mike Hollifield.

Work Session 6:30 p.m.
Mayor White opened the work session and advised the Council, staff and the audience that staff would
provide information and explanations about the following items:

DISCUSSION ONLY
A. DISCUSS MINUTES OF THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF FEBRUARY 19, 2019.
Mayor White requested corrections to the minutes. There were none.

B. DISCUSS CONTRACT WITH THE LOWER COLORADO RIVER AUTHORITY (LCRA)
FOR SUBSTATION INSPECTION, MAINTENANCE AND TESTING.

Mr. Lewis stated that the current contract with LCRA is about to expire. The contract indicates that LCRA
will provide maintenance, testing and inspections at the FM 20 and Clearfork Electric substations. LCRA
will conduct visual inspections of the electric lines and other components, in addition to maintenance to the
equipment. Monthly tests of the breakers will be conducted to assure that they are operating properly. If
extensive repairs are required, LCRA will do the repairs for an additional cost. The cost for the services is
$26,600.00 over a 5-year period. The payments will be broken down to $443.33 per month for 60 months.
There was discussion.

C. DISCUSS RESOLUTION 2019-07 IN OPPOSITION TO A REVENUE CAP AND
LEGISLATIVE INTERFERENCE WITH LOCAL SERVICES.

Mayor White stated that SB 2 is a bill that proposes to lower the rollback rate from 8 to 2.5 percent for
cities. If the bill passes, it will most likely require most cities that exceed the rollback rate, when setting
their tax rate, to hold an election in November to request the voter’s approval of the new tax rate. Texas
Municipal League (TML) encouraged cities to submit opposition to the bill. If approved, the Resolution
will be forwarded to Senator Judith Zaffirini and Representative John Cyrier. There was discussion.

iof8
City Council — March 5, 2019



DRAFT

D. DISCUSSION REGARDING REQUEST FROM THE CLASS OF ‘89 TO ADD THE NAME OF
THE LATE MARK A. MARTINEZ TO A FIELD AT THE LOCKHART YOUTH SPORTS
COMPLEX, WHICH INCLUDES THE INSTALLATION OF A NEW SCOREBOARD.

Mayor White stated that the item was a continuance from the last meeting. The Parks Advisory Board did
not vote to make a recommendation. The Parks Advisory Board unanimously voted not to make a
recommendation to the Council because there was no policy to follow about naming ficlds at the Sports
Complex. They also suggested that the Council consider renaming the Citizens Field since it was not named
after an individual,

James Morales, Round Rock, Texas, stated that the Class of 89 began communicating with the Little League
Board members, city staff and councilmembers several months ago about the field name change. He
acknowledged the late Mark Martinez’s dedication to the community, citizens and the game. He requested
that the Council vote to add Mark Martinez’s name to the Citizens Field scoreboard, as recommended by
the Parks Advisory Board.

Pete Mireles, Representative of the Class of *89, also acknowledged the late Mark Martinez’s dedication to
the community, children and the game. He requested that the Council vote to add Mark Martinez’s name
to the Citizens Field scoreboard.

Mayor White stated that the naming request was a tough decision because Council respects all involved.
He stated that the issue brings about a necessity to establish a policy for future requests.

Mayor Pro-Tem Sanchez stated that the Council considered and approved previous scorcboard naming
requests at the Youth Sports Complex. She recommended that the Council approve the Class of ‘89°s
request to add the late Mark A. Martinez’s name to the Citizens Field.

Councilmember Castillo spoke in favor of approving the donation of a new scoreboard and to add the late
Mark A. Martinez’s name to the Citizens Field scoreboard. He also recommended that a policy be
established about naming fields at the Sports Complex for future requests.

Councilmember Mendoza spoke in favor of approving the donation of a new scoreboard and to rename the
Citizens Field in honor of the late Mark A. Martinez.

Councilmember McGregor stated that the Parks Board member that recommended renaming the Citizens
Field thereafter researched the naming of the Citizens Field and determined that it is named in honor of
many individuals that donated time and monetary donations to the field. He requested that his
recommendation be withdrawn.

Stella Rojas, 624 Trinity, stated that the Little League Board continues to stand by their original unanimous
vote not to rename a field and the suggestion about creating a wall of honor at the Sports Complex also
remains. She suggested that the Council establish a naming policy and request that the Class of *89
thereafter return with their request.

20f 8
City Council — March 5, 2019



DRAFT

Mayor White expressed appreciation to all that are interested in park improvements. He stated that the
existing fields are named to honor the dedicated individuals and businesses from the past and those that
continue to support the Little League. Changing an already named park or field is very difficult. He
explained the process that he took to request the current LeFleur Soccer Complex to be named after a fallen
soldier, which included the Parks Advisory Board’s recommendation prior to the Council’s consideration.
He thanked everyone involved with the request. He suggested that the request tonight be denied, that a
naming policy be established immediately, and that Mark’s name be memorialized on the memorial sign.
He stated that he would not support renaming a field until a policy is established.

Councilmember Westmoreland stated that Little League has always been a part of Lockhart and he thanked
everyone for their dedication. He spoke and thanked many individuals who participated and contributed to
making the Sports Complex to be what it is today. He appreciated that the Little League remain about the
children. He spoke in favor of creating a naming policy.

Councilmember Michelson also thanked everyone for their request. He suggested that the Class of *89 re-
consider naming a different part of the sports complex, such as a batting cage in honor of Mark Martinez.

Councilmember Castillo expressed disappointment about the lack of support of renaming Citizens Field to
honor the late Mark A. Martinez. He requested approval.

Mayor White stated that the item would be brought up for a vote during the regular meeting.

E. DISCUSS POSSIBLE FORMATION OF A NEW AD-HOC COMMITTEE TO COMPLETE
THE BRANDING AND WAYFINDING PLAN, AND CONSIDER FUTURE APPOINTMENT OF
MEMBERS TO THE COMMITTEE.

Mayor White stated that during the last meeting, it was decided that appointments should be made to the
committee. There was discussion,

Mayor Pro-Tem Sanchez recommended that Christie Pruitt and Roy Watson remain on the committee.
Mayor White stated that Ms. Pruitt will begin Chisholm Trail duties and would not able to participate and
that she recommended that Ronda Reagan serve in her place.

Mayor White suggested that Roy Watson, Ronda Reagan, Rob Ortiz, and Sally Daniel be appointed to the
comunittee.

F. DISCUSSION REGARDING THE PROCESS TO SELECT A NEW CITY ATTORNEY.
Mayor White stated that Peter Gruning, City Attorney, submitted his resignation. Mr. Gruning will continue
to assist with the City Attorney duties until the position is filled.

There was discussion regarding the notification process for the position as to whether it should be a job

advertisement or a Request for Qualification (RFQ). After discussion, it was determined to utilize the RFQ
process.

RECESS: Mayor White announced that the Council would recess for a break at 7:50 p.m.

3of8
City Council — March 5, 2019



DRAFT
REGULAR MEETING

ITEM 1. CALL TO ORDER.
Mayor Lew White called the regular meeting of the Lockhart City Council to order on this date at 8:05 p.m.

ITEM 2. INVOCATION, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE.
Councilmember Mendoza gave the Invocation and led the Pledge of Allegiance to the United States and
Texas flags.

ITEM 3. CITIZENS/VISITORS COMMENTS.
Mayor White requested citizens to address the Council. There were none.

ITEM 4-A. CONTINUE A PUBLIC HEARING AND DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION TO
CONSIDER AN APPEAL BY THE LOCKHART DOWNTOWN BUSINESS ASSOCIATION, INC.,
OF THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION’S APPROVAL OF SUP-19-03, AN
APPLICATION BY MICHAEL HOLLIFIELD ON BEHALF OF CYNTHIA ALVAREZ FOR A
SPECIFIC USE PERMIT TO ALLOW A CHURCH ON PART OF LOTS 4 AND 5, BLOCK 23,
ORIGINAL TOWN OF LOCKHART, CONSISTING OF 0.18 ACRE ZONED CCB
COMMERCIAL, CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT AND LOCATED AT 115 NORTH
COMMERCE STREET. [TABLED 2-19-2019]

Mayor White opened the public hearing at 8:07 p.m. and requested the staff report.

Mr. Gibson stated that the public hearing was held during the previous meeting. The CCB district allows a
variety of commercial uses by-right such as offices, retail, and restaurants, but churches require approval of
a specific use permit. The same applicant previously requested a change in zoning for this property from
CHB to CCB, and it was approved by the City Council on December 18, 2018. The proposed church will
have a seating capacity of 120 in the sanctuary, and wiil operate only on Sunday momings. Off-street
parking is not required in the CCB District, but adequate on-street parking is available on Sunday mornings.
Mr. Gibson reported that he had counted 112 on-street parking spaces within a 200-foot radius of the subject
property, and 154 more around the west, south, and east sides of the courthouse square, plus along North
Commerce up to Pecan Street, which is 1%z blocks from the property. In addition, the Presbyterian Church
has nine off-street spaces on their property, plus approximately 16 off-street spaces on the adjacent former
County Justice Center property while it is not in use. Concerns have previously been expressed that
churches occupying commercial buildings are not the most productive use of space in a district where other
uses operating for more days during the week and generating tax revenue should be encouraged. The subject
building has been vacant for many years so the proposed church would not be subtracting from the number
of business locations already in use in the downtown area. Also, a question was raised at the February 19
Council meeting regarding the applicability of the Federal law known as the Religious Land Use and
Institutional Persons Act (RLUIPA). A written opinion from the city attorney regarding the law indicates
that the Act provides that a city’s zoning ordinance cannot treat churches less favorably than other similar
non-religious uses, or unreasonably restrict a religious use and, that the council has the authority to approve
or deny the use of the property as a place of assembly based on reasonable and clearly articulated concerns
about limited on-street parking in the downtown area, but not on the use of the property as a church.

Mayor White requested the following citizens to address the Council:

4of 8
City Council — March 5, 2019



DRAFT
Ronda Reagan, 412 W. San Antonio Street, spoke on behalf of the Lockhart Downtown Business
Association (LDBA) that is comprised 37 members. Many of the businesses are open on Sundays. The
LDBA voted to request denial of the specific use permit. The Lockhart Bistro serves brunch on Sundays
and opens at 11:00 a.m., with employees arriving at 8:00 a.m. Lockhart Bistro will utilize at least 30 parking
spaces. She reminded the Council that the Presbyterian Church spoke at the previous meeting opposing the
specific use permit because of the lack of parking if services are at the same time for both churches. The
LDBA is opposed to SUP-19-03 for a church because of inadequate parking.
Mayor White requested additional citizens in favor of the appeal to address the Council. There were none.

Mayor White requested citizens against the appeal to address the Council.

Tom Guyton, 507 Shelley’s Cove, member of Promiseland Church, stated that he agrees that the location is
not ideal for a church. Currently, the church uses a facility at a school that requires them to setup and tear
down each Sunday. Because of that, they searched for a temporary facility for the church that they could
use until they find a permanent facility in an appropriate location for a church that would be safe and with
adequate parking. He also mentioned that the church has not negotiated rent with the landlord because the
specific use permit has not been approved.

Mike Hollifield, Pastor of Promiseland Church/applicant, requested denial of the appeal of the specific use
permit. He also stated that the proposed location was a temporary facility for the church until they find a
permanent location.

Councilmember Mendoza asked if the church was still offering two services. Mr. Hollifield replied that
they were considering services at 9:00 a.m. and 11:00 a.m.

Mayor White requested additional citizens to address the Council. There were none. He closed the public
hearing at 8:31 p.m.

Councilmember McGregor stated that she believes that the parking was an issue for the area.

Councilmember Mendoza stated that he drove around the area this past Sunday and that there seemed to be
plenty of parking for church services and the downtown businesses.

Councilmember Castillo spoke in favor of denying the appeal and to allow the specific use permit for the
church.

Mayor Pro-Tem Sanchez spoke in favor of denying the appeal and to allow the specific use permit. She
stated that regardless of whether a church or another business is in that building, she believed that parking
would always be an issue.

Mayor Pro-Tem Sanchez made a motion to deny the appeal of SUP-19-03. Councilmember Castillo
seconded. The motion passed by a vote of 4-3, with Mayor White, and Councilmembers Westmoreland and
McGregor opposing.

ITEM 5. CONSENT AGENDA
Mayor Pro-Tem Sanchez made a motion a approve consent agenda items 5A, 5B, and 5C. Councilmember

McGregor seconded. The motion passed by a vote of 7-0.

The following are the consent agenda items that were approved:
50f 8
City Council — March 5, 2019

12~



DRAFT
5A: Approve minutes of the City Council meeting of February 19, 2019.
5B: Approve contract with the Lower Colorado River Authority (I.LCRA) for substation inspection,
maintenance and testing,
5C: Approve Resolution 2019-07 in opposition to a revenue cap and Legislative interference with local
services.

ITEM 6-A. DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION REGARDING REQUEST FROM THE CLASS OF
‘89 TO ADD THE NAME OF THE LATE MARK A. MARTINEZ TO A FIELD AT THE
LOCKHART YOUTH SPORTS COMPLEX, WHICH INCLUDES THE INSTALLATION OF A
NEW SCOREBOARD.

Mayor Pro-Tem Sanchez made a motion to honor the request of the Class of *89 to add the name of the late
Mark A. Martinez to the Citizens Field at the Lockhart Youth Sports Complex, and this would also include
the installation of a new scoreboard. Councilmember Castillo seconded. There was brief discussion. The
motion passed by a vote of 5-2, with Mayor White and Councilmember McGregor opposing.

ITEM 6-B. DISCUSS POSSIBLE FORMATION OF A NEW AD-HOC COMMITTEE TO
COMPLETE THE BRANDING AND WAYFINDING PLAN, AND CONSIDER FUTURE
APPOINTMENT OF MEMBERS TO THE COMMITTEE.

Mayor White made a motion to appoint Roy Watson, Ronda Reagan. Sally Daniel, Rob Ortiz and Bobby

Herzog to the ad-hoc committee. Councilmember McGregor seconded. The motion passed by a vote of
7-0.

ITEM 6-C. DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION REGARDING THE PROCESS TO SELECT A NEW
CITY ATTORNEY.

Mayor White stated that Steve Lewis, Mayor Pro-Tem Sanchez, a local licensed attorney, and he will serve
on a committee to review Requests for Qualification/resumes/applications. An official Request for
Qualifications (RFQ) will be presented to the Council for approval during the next meeting to begin
advertising the position for approximately 30 days.

Councilmember Michelson made a motion to approve the process. Mavor Pro-Tem Sanchez seconded. The
motion passed by a vote of 7-0.

ITEM 6-D. DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION REGARDING APPOINTMENTS TO VARIOUS
BOARDS, COMMISSIONS OR COMMITTEES.
Mayor White requested appointments to boards and commissions. There were none.

ITEM 7. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT, PRESENTATION AND POSSIBLE DISCUSSION.

o Staff (Chief Randy Jenkins and Sean Kelley) attended the Kick-Off Workshop for FEMA-mandated
Hazard Mitigation Action Plan for the Caldwell County planning area. The goal of the Plan is to
minimize or eliminate the long-term risk to human life and property from known natural hazards by
identifying and implementing cost-effective mitigation actions in the planning area. The next planning
meetings will be held on April 25" and July 24% at 3:00pm at the Caldwell County Justice Center.

e Texas Warrant Round Up across the State of Texas on February 25 — March 16. Police officers
throughout the State will be actively serving Class C warrants.

s FEvents:

6of8
City Council — March 5, 2019

17



DRAFT

o Household Hazardous Waste Collection event was held on Saturday, March 2 at City Park from 9am
until 12(noon). City staff was also available at the Recycling Center from 8am-1pm to assist with
items brought to the event that can be recycled.

o KidFish and Welcome Spring Day at City Park will be held on March 16 from 9am until 12(noon).
Tolbert Chili Cookoff is also scheduled at City Park that weekend, March 15-16.

¢ Dr. Eugene Clark Library will host fun Spring Break events for children on March 18 — 20.

o Cemetery Cleanup at the Lockhart Cemetery will be on March 25 thru March 29.

c 2019 Residential Citywide Cleanup Program scheduled for April 3, 10, 17 and 24, depending on
customer location.

o Kiwanis 5K Stampede or 1K Fun Run will be held on Saturday, April 13.

* Next Routine Emergency Warning System Siren Test will be on April 15 at 1p.m.

¢ Finance and Utilities will soon be submitting an ordinance amendment concerning utility customers
opting out of FlexNet meters back to Analog with a $25 charge for manual recads.

e MuniServices will be conducting a teleconference with Finance on February 28 to begin proceedings
for Hotel Occupancy Tax Collection Audit and Discovery Services.

o Fiscal Year 2017-2018 Annual Financial Audit Report presentation scheduled for March 19% Council
Meeting.

¢ Recommendation from the Downtown Revitalization Committee to replace the holiday roofline lighting
around the downtown square.

e Police Chief Forum was held on February 21. The forum provided citizens with information about Stats,
Racial Profiling Report and a presentation from Officer Castilleja regarding the warrant office and
Municipal Court. In addition, Tina Ramsey, Victim Service Coordinator, was recognized for her
valuable contributions to the Caldwell County Tree of Angels in 2018 by the State of Texas People
Against Violent Crime. The next Police Chief forum will be on April 18.

¢ The Electric Reliability Council of Texas (ERCOT) is forecasting a high probability of energy capacity
shortages this summer. LCRA, following the lead of the PUC, is requesting heightened awareness and
preparedness.

ITEM 8. COUNCIL AND STAFF COMMENTS — ITEMS OF COMMUNITY INTEREST.
Councilmember Westmoreland expressed condolences to the family of Austin Pittman for their loss. First
Friday was a great success.

Councilmember Mendoza expressed condolences to all that have lost a loved one. He thanked the Lockhart
Little League and for all that participate in tonight’s meecting.

Mayor Pro-Tem Sanchez expressed condolences to the family of Austin Pittman for their loss. She
congratulated the Hispanic Chamber for the successful annual banquet and the First Baptist Church for
celebrating Black History Month. They honored Mrs. Myrtle Moore, who is 99 years old. She thanked the
Caldwell County Livestock Auction for a successful event. She encouraged parents to discuss the
seriousness of terroristic threats. She congratulated Benny Boyd for a successful business meet and greet
event.

Councilmember McGregor congratulated Commerce Gallery for a successful opening night. She thanked
citizens for participating in tonight’s meeting.

Tof8
City Council — March 35,2019

Y



DRAFT
Councilmember Castillo expressed condolences to the Pittman family for their loss. He thanked staff for
the successful Household Hazardous Waste Collection event on Saturday, He also thanked Mr. Lewis for
keeping the Council informed and staff for their work.

Councilmember Michelson congratulated the Hispanic Chamber for a successful banquet and First Friday
for a successful event. He expressed condolences to the family of Mr. Pittman for their loss.

Mayor White expressed condolences to the family of Austin Pittman for their loss. He congratulated the
Hispanic Chamber for a successful banquet. KidFish and Welcome Spring Day will be held on Saturday,
March 16 at City Park at 9 am. He thanked all that attended the successful First Friday event and encouraged
citizens to continue to attend. Sip-n-Stroll is next month. He thanked the Council for making tough
decisions tonight, and he discouraged negativity amongst the Council. He encouraged positive discussions
in the future.

ITEM 9. ADJOURNMENT.
Mayor Pro-Tem Sanchez made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Councilmember Mendoza seconded. The
motion passed by a vote of 7-0. The meeting was adjourned at 9:08 p.m.

PASSED and APPROVED this the 19 day of March 2019.

CITY OF LOCKHART

Lew White, Mayor
ATTEST:

Connie Constancio, TRMC
City Secretary

8of8
City Council — March 5, 2019

2



City of Lockhart, Tx

Council Agenda Item
Briefing Data

COUNCIL MEETING DATE: March 19, 2019
AGENDA ITEM CAPTION: Presentation and/or Action for the City Council to consider

acceptance of the City of Lockhart's and Component Unit's Fiscal Year 2017-2018 Financial Audit
by Harrison, Waldrop, & Uherek, L.L.P.

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT AND CONTACT: Finance — Pam Larison

ACTION REQUESTED:
0 ORDINANCE [JRESOLUTION O CHANGE ORDER [0 AGREEMENT
[ APPROVALOF BID 0 AWARD OF CONTRACT [ CONSENSUS X OTHER

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY/DISCUSSION: According to Article 3, Section 3.14 — Audit of City
books and accounts; The city shall have its records and accounts audited annually and shall have
an annual financial statement prepared based on the audit. The Annual Financial Report
presented this evening is presented with an Unqualified Opinion; or “Clean Opinion.” An
Unqualified Opinion is presumed to be free from material misstatements. In addition, an

~ unqualified opinion is given over the internal controls of an entity if management has claimed
responsibility for its establishment and maintenance, and the auditor has performed fieldwork to
test its effectiveness.

PROJECT SCHEDULE (if applicable).

AMOUNT & SOURCE OF FUNDING: (fo be completed by Finance)

Funds Required: 0

Account Number: n/a
Funds Available: n/a
Account Name: n/a

FISCAL NOTE (if applicable):
Previous Council Action:

COMMITTEE/BOARD/COMMISSION ACTION:

STAFF RECOMMENDATION/REQUESTED MOTION: Staff recommends acceptance of the FY
2017-2018 Audited Financial Statements.

LIST OF SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: City of Lockhart, Texas Annual Financial Report from
Harrison, Waldrop, and Uherek, LLP.

/Dg@r’cment Head initials: Ci nager's Review:

b




CITY OF LOCKHART, TEXAS

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018



CITY OF LOCKHART, TEXAS
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
For the year ended Sepfember 30, 2018

TABLE OF CONTENTS

FINANCIAL SECTION
Independent Auditors' Report
Management's Discussion and Analysis
Basic Financial Statements

Government-wide Financial Statements
Statement of Net Position
Staternent of Activities

Fund Financial Statements

Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds

Reconciliation of Total Governmental Fund Balances to Net Position of
Governmental Activities

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -
Govemmental Funds

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances to the Staternent of Activities

Statement of Net Position - Proprietary Funds

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position -
Proprietary Funds

Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Funds

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position - Fiduciary Funds

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position - Fiduciary Funds

Notes to Financial Statements

Required Supplementary Information

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -
Budget and Actual - Generai Fund

Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios -
Texas Municipal Retirement System - Pension

Schedule of Employer Contributions -
Texas Municipal Retirement System - Pension

Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios -
Texas Municipal Retirement System - Supplemental Death Benefit

Schedule of Employer Contributions -
Texas Municipal Retirement System - Supplemental Death Benefit

Schedule of Changes in Totai OPEB Liability and Related Ratios -
Retiree Healthcare

Notes to Required Supplementary Information

Combining and Individual Fund Statements

Combining Balance Sheet - Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Combining Balance Sheet - Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

Page

12
14

16
17
18

18
20

24
26

30
31

32

71
72

74

76
77

78
79

81

82
83

83



CITY OF LOCKHART, TEXAS
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
For the year ended Sepfember 30, 2018

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page
Combining and Individual Fund Statements - (Continued)
Combining Balance Sheet - Nonmajor Capital Project Funds 89
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -

Nonmajor Capital Project Funds a0
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -

Budget (GAAF Basis) and Actual - Nonmajor Governmental Fund - Debt Service Fund 91
Combining Statement of Net Position - Nenmajor Enterprise Funds 92
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position -

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 93
Combining Statement of Cash Flows - Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 94
Combining Statement of Net Position - Fiduciary Funds 95
Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position - Private Purpose Trusts 97

OVERALL COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL SECTION

Independent Auditors’ Report On Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Cther Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 88



FINANCIAL SECTION



HARRISON, WALDROP & UHEREK, L.L.P.

STEPHEN W. VAN MANEN, CPA
DENNIS C. CIHAL, CPA

ERIC L. KUCERA, CPA
CLAYTON F. VAN PELT, CPA
ROBERT W. SCHAAR, CPA
MELISSA M, TERRY, CPA

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS YOICE: (361} 573-3255
101 S, MAIN, SUITE 400 FAX: {361) 5739531
VICTGRIA, TEXAS 77901-8142

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Honorable Mayer and Members
of the City Council
City of Lockhart, Texas

Mayor and Members of Council:

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of Lockhart, Texas (the “City") as of and for the year ended
September 30, 2018, and the refated notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud
or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. The financial statements of the Lockhart Economic
Development Corporation were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. in making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financia! statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the organization's internal centrol. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

MEMBERS OF
AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
TEXAS SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED FUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS



The Honorable Mayor and Members
of the City Council

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate
discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the City as of September 30,2018, and the respective changes in financial position and, where
applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 18 to the financial statements, in 2018 the City adopted new accounting guidance
from Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 75 related to accounting for other post
employment benefit plans. This resulted in a restatement of prior year balances. Our opinicn is not
maodified with respect to this matter.

OCther Matters
Required Supplementary information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information, schedule of changes in net pension
liability and related ratios, schedules of changes in total OPEB liability and related ratios, and the
schedules of empioyer contributions, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the
basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Beoard, who considers it to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial ‘statements in an appropriate operational, econemic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements,
and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express
an opinfon or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City's basic financial statements. The combining nonmajor fund financial statements and
individual fund financial statements are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining nonmajor and individual fund financial statements are the responsibility of management
and were derived from and reiate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected fo the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In
our opinion, the combining nonmajor fund financial statements and the compliance schedules are fairly
stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

77



The Honorable Mayor and Members
of the City Council

Qther Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
March 13, 2019, oh our consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal
contral over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City's internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

M U £

litinssons, Ubbdegy ¥ Llhpk 119
HARRISON, WALDROP & UHEREK, L.L.P.
Certified Public Accountants

March 13, 2018



CITY OF LOCKHART, TEXAS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
September 30, 2018

As management of the City of Lockhart, Texas (the “City"}, we offer readers of the City’s financial statements this
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The assets and deferred outflows of the City exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows at the close
of the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018, by $44,167,778. Of this amount, $10,614676 of
unrestricted net position is available to meet the City's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

The total cost of all City activities was $28,803,324 for the fiscal year which is an increase of
$699,367 from the prior year.

During the year, the City’s general revenues exceeded net expenses of all City activities by
$2,216,587. This represents a 5% increase in net position from the previous fiscal year as a result of
operations,

At September 30, 2018, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of
$10,998,145, an increase of $205,578 in comparison with the prior year.

At September 30, 2018, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was $4,451,131 or 47% of
total General Fund expenditures.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic financial statements. The
City's basic financial statements are comprised of four components: 1) government-wide financial statements,
2} fund financial statements, 3) component unit financial statements, and 4) notes to financial statements.

Organization and Flow of Financial Section Information

Independent Auditors’ Report
Frovides the opinion of the Independent Auditors on the fair
presentation of the basic financial statements.

Management's Discussion and Analysis
This supplementary information is required for state and local government
financial statements and is intended fo provide a narrative introduction
and analysis.
Pages 4 to 11

Government-wide Financial Fund Financial Statements
Statements
Provides information on Provides information on the financial
governmental and business-fype position of specific funds of the
activities of the primary government, primary governments.
Pages 1210 15 Pages 16 to 31

Notes to Financial Statements
Provides a summary of significant accounting policies and related disclosures.
Pages 32to 70

Y



OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - {Continued)

Governmeni-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City’s
finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the City’s assets and liabilities, with the difference
between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a
useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government's net position changed during the
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the
change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this
statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (i.e., uncollected taxes and
earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally supported
by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to
recover ali or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activitiss). The
governmental activities of the City include general government, public safety, public works, parks and recreation,
and interest on long-term debt. The business-type activities of the City include electric, water, wastewater, solid
waste services, and an airport fund.

The government-wide financial statements include not only the City itself (known as the primary government) but
also the component unit of Lockhart Economic Development Corporation, Inc.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local governments, uses fund
accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the
City can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in
the government-wide financial statements. However, unlke the government-wide financial statements,
governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well
as on balances of spendable resources avaiiable at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in
evaluating a government's near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand
the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance
sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a
reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between government funds and governmenital activities,

The City maintained numerous individual governmental funds during the 2017-2018 fiscal year. Information is
presented separately in the governmental funds balance sheet and in the governmental funds statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance for the General Fund and 2015 Certificates of Obligation
Fund which are considered major funds. Data from the nonmajor governmental funds are combined into a single,
aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of the nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the
form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

15



OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)
Fund Financial Statements - {Continued)

The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund and Debt Service Fund. A Schedule of
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual, has been provided for the General
Fund and Debt Service Fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget.

The City maintains only one type of proprietary fund. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions
presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The City uses the enterprise
fund to account for its electric, water, wastewater utility services, EMS, solid waste operations, and the airport
operations.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in a
more detailed format. The City has four major proprietary funds. They are the Electric Fund, the Water Fund, the
Wastewater Fund, and EMS Fund. Separate financial statements are presented for the major funds. Individual
fund data for each of the nonmajor proprietary funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in
this report.

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government.
Fiduciary funds are not reflected in, the government-wide financial statements because the resources of those
funds are not available to support the City's own programs/operations. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is
similar to proprietary funds.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 30 through 31 of this report.

Notes to Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the
government-wide and fund financial statements.

Other Information

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds are presented
immediately following the required supplementary information.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a usefut indicator of a government's financial position. In the
case of the City, assets and deferred outflows exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows by $44,167,778 at the
close of the 2018 fiscal year.

By far, the largest portion of the City's net position, 70%, reflects its investment in capital assets (i.e., land,
buildings, infrastructure, and machinery and equipment), less a related debt used to acquire those assets that is
still outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to its citizens; consequently, these assets
are not available for future spending. Aithough the City’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related
debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since
the capital assets themselves cannot be used fo liquidate these liabilities.

gy,



GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS - {(Continued)

City of Lockhart, Texas

Net Position
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Current and other assets $ 121851256 § 11,892770 $ 20,613,045 $ 20,238321 § 32,798,170 $ 32,131,091
Capital assets (net) 22,777 509 23,282 995 22,515,446 22,075,259 45,292 955 45,358,254
Total assets 34,962,634 35,175,765 43,128,491 42,313,580 78,081,125 77,489,345
Deferred outflow of resources 064,727 2,003,206 371,884 626,431 1,336,611 2,629637
Current and other liabilities 1,447 457 1,491,546 2,224,344 2,939,323 3,671,801 4,430,869
Noncurrent liabilities 16,841,818 20,528,694 13,948,453 14,645,286 30,780,271 35,173,980
Total liabilities 18,289,275 22,020,240 16,172,797 17,584,609 34,462,072 39,604,849
Deferred inflow of resources 544,443 42,290 153,443 12,198 797,886 54,488
Net position:
Net investment in
capitai assets 13,774,228 14,162,688 16,961,238 16,507,663 30,735,466 30,670,351
Restricted 1,396,101 1,141,195 1,421,535 1,163,687 2,817,636 2,304,882
Unrestricted 1,823,314 1,304,104 8,791,362 7,671,854 10,614,676 8,975 958
Total net position $ 16993643 § 16,607,987 § 27,174,135 § 25343204 $ 44,167,778 $ 41,951,191

*2017 net position has been restated. See Note 19 of this report.

An additional portion of the City’s net position, 6%, represents resources that are subject to external restrictions
on how they may be used (i.e., debt service). The remaining balance of unrestricted net position, $10,614,676,
may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to its citizens and creditors.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City is able to report positive balances in all three categories of net
position for the primary government as a whole.

Governmental activities. Governmental activities increased the City’s net position by $385,656. Key elements
of this increase are as follows:

* Increase in charges for services of $592,691.
» |ncrease in property taxes of $415,501,

Business-type activities. Business-type activities increased the City's net position by $1,830,831 accounting for
83% of the total growth in the City's net position. Key elements of this increase are as follows:

¢ Charges for services were $803,317 higher due to increase in demand.



GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS - {Continued)

City of Lockhart, Texas

Changes in Net Position

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2018 2017* 2018 2017 2018 2017*
REVENUES
Program revenues.
Charges for services $ 1690569 $ 1,007,878 $ 21,133,352 $ 20,330,035 $ 22,823,921 § 21,427,913
Operating grants and
contributions 566,039 202,393 24 925 7.016 590,964 209,409
Capital grants and
contributions 278,000 - - 195,261 278,000 195,261
General revenues:
Property taxes 4,325,200 3,909,699 - - 4,325,200 3,909,699
Sales taxes 1,650,931 1,549,695 - - 1,650,931 1,549,695
Franchise taxes 357,278 312,433 - - 357,278 312,433
Other taxes 106,756 96,529 - - 106,756 96,529
Impact fees - - 244 561 B3,585 244 561 83,585
Investment earnings 190,320 99,353 236,101 118,159 426 421 217,512
Miscellaneous 192,281 289,291 23,598 - 215,879 289,291
Total revenues 9,357,374 7,557,271 21,662 537 20,734,056 31,019,911 28,291,327
EXPENSES
General government 2,045,364 2,083,166 - - 2,045,364 2,083,166
Public safety 5,401,024 5,086,371 - - 5,401,024 5,086,371
Public works 3,084,192 2,644,292 - - 3,084,192 2,644,292
Health 16,326 22 137 - - 16,326 22,137
Culture and recreation 1,077,697 1,006,038 - - 1,077,697 1,006,038
Interest on long-term debt 441,769 459,629 - - 441,769 459,629
Electric - - 9,132,038 8,722,211 9,132,038 8,722,211
Water - - 3,428,101 3,545,084 3,428 101 3,545,084
Wastewater - - 1,281,066 1,824,111 1,281,066 1,824,111
EMS - - 1,334,506 1,289,014 1,334,506 1,289,014
Sanitation - - 1,461,111 1,345,466 1,461,111 1,345,466
Airport - - 100,130 76,438 100,130 76,438
Total expenses 12,066,372 11,301,633 16,736,952 16,802,324 _ 28,803,324 _ 28,103,957
Change in net position before
transfers (2,708,998) {(3,744,362) 4,925,685 3,931,732 2,216,587 187,370
Transfers 3,004 654 2,806 410 {3,094,654) {2,896,410) - -
Change in net position 385,656 (847,952) 1,830,931 1,035,322 2,216,587 187,370
Net position - beginning 16,607,987 17,455,939 25,343,204 24,307,882 41,951,191 41,763,821
Net position - ending $ 16,993643 $ 16607987 $ 27,174,135 § 25,343,204 § 44167778 $ 41,951,191

*2017 net position has been restated. See Note 19 of this report.

2.9



FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY’S FUNDS

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements.

Governmental Funds

The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances
of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City’s financing requirements. In particular,
unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government's net resources available for spending
at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of
$10,998,145, an increase of $205,576 from the prior year.

Approximately 40% of this total amount, $4,451,131, constitutes unassigned fund balance, which is avaitable for
spending at the government's discretion. The City also has $553,877 of fund balance that is committed for
specific projects. In addition, there is $5,940,839 of fund balance that is restricted for specific purposes and
$52,198 that is classified as nonspendable; being that it is not available for new spending because it has already
been committed: 1) for prepaid expenditures $40,635; and 2) for inventery $11,563.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. Af the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund
balance was $4,451,131. Unassigned fund balance represents 47% of total General Fund expenditures. The
fund balance of the City's General Fund increased by $587,246 during the current fiscal year.

The primary reason for the increase in the governmental fund balance was due to the increase in the General
Fund fund balance in the amount of $587,246. This increase was mainly due to an increase in transfers from
other funds during fiscal year 2018 of $311,954 in comparison with the prior year,

Proprietary Funds

The City's proprietary funds, the Electric Fund, the Water Fund, the Wastewater Fund, the EMS Fund, the
Sanitation Fund and the Airpori Fund provides the same type of information found in the government-wide
financial statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net position of the proprietary funds at the end of the current fiscal year amounted to $8,791,362.
The total growth for the funds was $1,830,931 as a result of an increase in charges for services and impact fees
from the prior year.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

Actual fiscal year revenues in the General Fund were $713,970 more than the final budgeted amounts. The
positive variance over the anticipated amount is comprised of the following items:

» $117,082 in property tax revenues.
s $142,797 increase in sales and other tax revenues.
e $111,448 and $114,912 in intergovernmental and miscellaneous revenues.

Actual fiscal year expenditures in the General Fund were $636,273 less than the final budgeted amounts. The
positive variance over the anticipated amount is comprised of the following items:

« $536,918 in general government.
e $247,793 in capital outlay.



CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

The City's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities amounts to $45,292 955
(net of accumulated depreciation) at the end of the current fiscal year. This investment in capital assets includes
land, buildings, improvements, vehicles, machinery and equipment, infrastructure, and construction in progress.
The net decrease in the City's investment in capital assets was $65,299 or 0.1%.

City of Lockhart, Texas

Capital Assets

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Land $ 1,587,394 $ 1,488,954 § 574710 $ 574710 $ 2,162,104 $ 2,063,664
Construction in progress 97,176 -608,655 827,195 681,574 924,371 1,290,229
Bldgs. and improvements 7,581,373 7,667,359 1,421,243 1,462,927 9,002,616 9,130,286
Infrastructure 12,195,622 12,384,114 18,611,999 18,631,350 30,807 621 31,015,464
Machinery and equipment 1,315,944 1,133,913 1,080,299 724,698 2,396,243 1,858,611
Total $ 22,777,509 § 23,282,095 § 22515446 §$ 22075250 § 45202955 $ 45358,254

Additional information on the City's capital assets can be found in Note 6 of this report.

Long-Term Debt

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had total bonded debt outstanding of $24,478,829. Of this amount,
$6,530,000 represents General Obligation Tax and Revenue Bonds. The remainder of the City’s bonded debt is
comprised of $16,800,000 of Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation and unamortized premiums
of $1,148,828. The City's bonded debt had a net decrease of $1,058,772 during the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2018. Additionai information on the long-term debt can be found in Note 10.

The City maintains a bond rating of "AA-" from Standard & Poor's.

As a Home Rule City, the City is not limited by law in the amount of debt it may issue; however, ail new local bond
issues must be approved by the State Attorney General.

10

%0



ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES

» Interest rates are remaining at higher levels and should result in interest earnings consistent with the
2018 fiscal year.

= The City continues to experience economic growth with the construction of new businesses in the retail
and manufacturing sectors.
All of these factors were considered in preparing the City’s budget for the 2018-2019 fiscal year.
The certified assessed taxable property valuations for the 2018 tax roll total $666,616,058 with a tax rate of
$0.7107 per $100 valuation. $0.6031 was allocated for maintenance and operations, and $0.1076 was allocated
for interest and sinking (debt service). The projected total property tax due is $4,608,371 for the 2018 tax year.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City's finances for all those with an interest
in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for
additional financial information should be addressed to the Finance Director, 308 W. San Antonio Streef,
Lockhart, Texas 78644,

11



Basic Financial Statements

Al



CITY OF LOCKHART, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
Septemnber 30, 2018

ASSETS

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables (net)
Due from cther governments
Prepaid expenses
Inventory

Total current assets

Nencurrent assets {net)
Capital assets

Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS
Deferred amount on refunding
Deferred outflow related to pension
Deferred outflow related to OPEB
Total deferred outflow of resources

Component
Primary Government Unit

Lockhart

Economic
Geovernmental Business-type Development
Activities Activities Total Corporation
$ 10914124 § 15143,451 % 26,057,575 $ 2,864,783
915,591 4,972,429 5,888,020 147,819
295,638 - 295,638 -
48,209 15,130 63,339 -
11,563 482,035 493,598 325,000
12,185,125 20,613,045 32,798,170 3,337,602
22,777,509 22,515,446 45,292 955 634,320
22 777,509 22,515,446 45,292 965 634,320
34,962,634 43,128 491 78,091,125 3,971,922
257,861 180,927 438,788 -
676,631 183,864 860,495 -
30,235 7,093 37,328 -
964,727 371,884 1,338,611 -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

12

2D



LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Payroll related payables
Other payables
Accrued interest payable
Due to other governments
Deposits
Unearned revenue
Accrued compensated absences
Current portion of long-term fiabilities
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities
Accrued compensated absences
Noncurrent portion of long-term liabilities
Net pension liability
OPEB liability

Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS
Deferred inflow related to pension
Total deferred inflows

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Debt service
Cther purposes
Unrestricted

Total net position

Component

Primary Government Unit
Lackhart
Econemic
Governmental  Business-type Development
Activities Activities Total Corporation
$ 301120 $ 1052938 $ 1354058 % 25,168
178,452 54,144 232,596 6,689
6,651 - 6,651 -
74,415 79,771 154,186 -
40,092 87,641 127,733 -
45,650 387,608 433,258 -
- 2,758 2,758 -
110,277 58,443 168,720 1,026
690,800 501,041 1,191,841 18,040
1,447,457 2,224 344 3,671,801 51,924
330,829 - 330,829 -
13,101,799 13,148,766 26,250,565 165,129
2,767,021 649,055 3,418,076 -
642,169 150,632 792,801 -
16,841,818 13,948,453 30,790,271 165,129
18,289,275 16,172,797 34462072 217,053
644,443 163,443 797,886 -
644,443 153,443 797,886 -
13,774,228 16,961,238 30,735,466 450,151
224 528 225,926 450,454 -
1,171,573 1,195,609 2,367,182 -
1,823,314 8,791,362 10,614,676 3,304,718
$ 16993643 $ 27,174135 § 44,167,778 $ 3,754,869
13

24



CITY OF LOCKHART, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the year ended September 30, 2018

Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and
Function/Programs Expenses Services Contributions  Contributions
Primary Government
Governmental activities
General government $ 2045364 § 223254 § 66976 § -
Public safety 5,401,024 1,005,748 483,068 -
Public works 3,084,192 423 575 - -
Health 16,326 - - -
Culture and recreation 1,077,697 37,991 15,995 278,000
Interest on long-term debt 441,769 - - -
Total governmental activities 12,066,372 1,690,569 566,039 278,000
Business-type activities
Electric 9,132,038 12,238,369 - -
Water 3,428,101 3,336,689 - -
Wastewater 1,281,066 2,339,875 - -
EMS 1,334,508 1,438,174 4,385 -
Other 1,561,241 1,780,245 20,540 -
Total business-type activities 16,736,952 21,133,352 24,925 -
Total primary government $ 28803324 § 22823921 3§ 590,964 % 278,000
Component Unit
Lockhart Economic Development Corporation 3 724030 & 73,125 % - 8 -

General revenues:
Taxes:

Property taxes, levied for general purposes
Property taxes, levied for debt service

Sales taxes

Franchise taxes

Other taxes
Impact fees

Unrestricted investment earnings

Miscellaneous
Transfers

Total general revenues and transfers

Change in net position

Net position - beginning, as restated

Net position - ending

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

14

25



Net (Expense) Revenue and Component
Changes in Net Position Unit
Primary Government

Lockhart

Business- Economic

Governmental type Development

Activities Activities Totai Corporation
$ (1,755134) § - $ (1,755134) § -
(3,912,207) - (3,912,207) -
(2,660,617) - (2,660,617) -
(16,326) - (16,326) -
(745,711) - (745,711) -
(441,769) - (441,769) -
(9,531,764) - {9,531,784) -
- 3,106,331 3,106,331 -
- {91,412) (91,412) -
- 1,058,809 1,058,809 -
- 108,053 108,053 -
- 239,544 239,544 -
- 4,421 325 4,421,325 -
(9,531,764) 4,421,325 {5,110,439) -
- - - (650,905)
3,620,758 - 3,620,758 -
704,442 - 704,442 -
1,650,931 - 1,650,931 B25 465
357,278 - 357,278 -
106,756 - 106,756 -
- 244 561 244 561 -
190,320 236,101 426,421 44,442
192,281 23,598 215,879 242
3,094,654 (3,094,654) - -
9,917,420 (2,580,394) 7,327,026 870,149
385,656 1,830,931 2,216,587 219,244
16,607,987 25,343,204 41,951,191 3,535,625
$ 16993643 $ 27174135 $ 44167778 § 3,754,869

15

3L



CITY OF LOCKHART, TEXAS

BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

September 30, 2018

ASSETS
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables (net)
Due from other funds

Due from other governments

Prepaid expenditures
Inventory

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Payroll related payables
Other payables
Due to other funds

Due to other governments

Deposits
Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Unavailable revenue

Total deferred inflows of resources

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable
Prepaid expenditures
Inventory
Restricted
General government
Tourism
Public safety
Public works
Debt service
Various capital projects
Committed
Sidewalks
Revolving loan
Industrial park
Unassigned
Total fund balances

Total liabilities, deferred inflows and

fund baiances

2015 Other Total
Certificates of Governmental Governmental

General Obligation Funds Funds
$ 50158612 $ 4,239,670 $ 1,658,842 $ 10,914,124
720,571 - 195,020 915,591
25,974 - - 25,974
295,638 - - 295,638
37,870 - 10,339 48,209
11,563 - - 11,563
$ 6107228 $ 4,239670 $ 1,864,201 $ 12,211,099
3 287,031 5 - 3 14,089 5 301,120
178,452 - - 178,452
6,651 - - 6,651
- - 25,974 25,974
40,092 - - 40,092
- - 45,650 45,650
512,226 - 85,713 597,939
540,561 - 74,454 615,015
540,561 - 74,454 615,015
37,870 - 2,765 40,635
11,563 - - 11,563
- - 35,067 35,067
- - 2,721 2,721
- - 227,044 227,044
- - 903,976 903,976
- - 240,674 240674
- 4,239,670 291,787 4,531 457
17,596 - - 17,596
263,827 - - 263,827
272,454 - - 272,454
4,451,131 - - 4451131
5,054 441 4,239,670 1,704,034 10,998,145
$ 6,107,228 $ 4239670 $ 1,864,201 $ 12,211,099

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement,

16

34



CITY OF LOCKHART, TEXAS

RECONCILIATION OF TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCES TO NET POSITION
OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

Septernber 30, 2018

Total governmental fund balances $ 10,998,145

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position
are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported as assets in governmental funds. The governmental
capital assets at year-end consist of:

Governmental capital assets costs $ 96,743,677
Accumulated depreciation of governmental capital assets {(73,966,168) 22,777,509

Property taxes receivable and other receivables will be collected this year, but
are not available soon enough to pay for the current period's expenditures, and
therefore are reported as "unavailable” in the funds.
Property taxes 344,957
Other charges for services 270,068 615,015

Deferred outflows of resources are not reported in the governmental funds:

Deferred amount on refunding 257,861
Deferred amount on pension 676,631
Deferred amount on OPEB ' 30,235 964,727

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and therefore
are not reported as liabilities in the funds. Long-term liabilities at year-end

consist of:

Bonds and certificates payable {13,079,817)

Bond premium (712,782)

Net pension liability (2,767,021}

OPEB liability {642,169)

Accrued interest payable (74,415)

Compensated absences {441,108) (17,717,310)
Deferred inflows of resources are not reported in the governmental funds:

Deferred amount on pension (644,443)

Net position of governmental activities $ 16,993,643

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
17



CITY OF LOCKHART, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the year ended September 30, 2018

REVENUES
Property taxes
Sales and other taxes
Fines, fees and forfeitures
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental and grants
Investment
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current
General government
Public safety
Public works
Health and welfare
Culture and recreation
Capital outlay
Debt service
Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges
Paying agent and issue costs
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources
Net change in fund balances
Fund balances - beginning, as restated

Fund balances - ending

2015 Other Total
Certificates of Governmental Governmental

General Obligation Funds Funds
$ 3,642,474 3 - 3 710,351 $ 4352825
2,013,845 - 101,120 2,114,965
364,423 - 863,134 1,227,557
192,622 - - 192,622
323,298 - 135,326 458 624
89,701 68,082 32,637 180,320
263,684 - 59,612 323,256
6,890,047 68,082 1,802,080 8,860,209
1,891,347 - 42,340 1,933,687
4,978,250 - 234,269 5,212,519
1,593,994 - 133,411 1,727,405
11,386 - - 11,396
938,896 - 10,835 949,731
126,365 626,882 75,625 828,872
- - 601,470 601,470
- - 483,207 483,207
- - 1,000 1,000
9,540,248 626,882 1,682,167 11,749,287
(2,650,201) {558,800) 319,923 (2,888,078)
3,333,060 - 355,540 3,688,600
(95,613) - {498,333) (593,946)
3,237,447 - (142,793) 3,094,654
587,246 {558,800) 177,130 205,576
4,467,195 4,798, 470 1,526,504 10,792,569
$ 5,054,441 3 4,239670 $ 1,704,034 3 10,998,145

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

18

X,



CITY OF LOCKHART, TEXAS
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES,

EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the year ended September 30, 2018

Total net change in fund balances - governmental funds $ 205,576

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities
are different because:

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures.
However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated
over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.

Increase in capital assets $ 1,343,939
Depreciation expense (2,127 ,425) (783,488)

The net effect of various transactions involving capital assets (i.e., transfers,
contributions, adjustments and dispositions) is to increase (decrease) net

position. 278,000

Current year paymenis on long-term debt are expenditures in the fund
financiai statements, but they serve to reduce long-term liabilities in the
government-wide financial statements. In the current year, these amounts
consist of:
Bond principal retirement 801,470

Because some properly taxes will not be collected for several months after

the City's fiscal year ends, they are not considered "available” revenues and

are deferred in the governmental funds. Similarly, other revenues are not

currently available at year-end and are not reported as revenue in the

governmental funds.
Property taxes (49,026) _
Other revenues 268,190 219,164

Some items reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds. These activities consist of:

increase in compensated absences {13,350)

Decrease in bond premium 61,511

Decrease in loss on bond refunding (23,443)

Decrease In accrued interest 4,370

Net pension costs (134,268)

Net OPEB costs {29,888) (135,068)
Change in net position of governmental activities 3 385,656

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

19



CITY OF LOCKHART, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROFPRIETARY FUNDS
September 30, 2018

ASSETS
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables (net)
Customer accounts
Other

Prepaid expenses

Inventory

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets
Capital assets (net)
Land and other assets not being
depreciated
Buildings, improvements, and
equipment {net)
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS
Deferred amount on refunding
Deferred outflow related to pension
Deferred outflow related to OPEB

Total deferred outflow of resources

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement,

20

Business-type Activities

Electric Water Wastewater
$ 2319715 $ 9,318,180 $ 2,335,895
2,066,764 535,443 343,442
- - 229,279
14,981 - 149
482,035 - -
4,883,495 9,853,623 2,908,765
448 247 620,260 140,828
2,828,650 10,041,922 6,380,052
3,276,897 10,662,182 6,520,880
8,160,392 20,515,805 9,429,645
- 156,846 24,081
113,740 15,564 38,199
4106 1,493 747
117,846 173,903 63,027




Business-type Activities

Other

EMS Funds Total
571,668 5 597,993 § 15,143,451
1,538,111 259,390 4,743,150
- - 229,279
- - 15,130
- - 482 035
2,109,779 857,383 20,613,045
- 192,570 1,401,905
405,376 1,457,541 21,113,541
405,376 1,650,111 22,515 446
2,515,155 2,507,494 43,128,491
- - 180,927
- 16,361 183,864
- 747 7.093
- 17,108 371,884
(continued)

21

7z



CITY OF LOCKHART, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
Sepftember 30, 2018

Business-type Activities

Electric Water Wastewater
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable _ $ 571698 $ 208,169 3 64,401
Payroll related payables 32,023 10,194 8,707
Accrued interest payable 6,939 60,276 12,556
Due to other governments 87,641 - -
Customer deposits 266,513 114,070 -
Unearned revenue - - -
Accrued compensated absences 41,225 6,207 5,865
Current portion of long-term obligations
Capital leases - - -
Bonds, certificates and notes 49,128 353,152 81,369
Total current liabilities 1,055,167 752,068 170,898
Noncurrent liabilities )
Net pension fiability 375,768 136,643 68,322
OPEB liability 87,208 31,712 15,856
Noncurrent portion of long-term :
obligations 831,822 10,412,727 1,817,259
Total noncurrent liabilities 1,294,798 10,581,082 1,901,437
Total liabilities 2,349,965 11,333,150 2,072,335
DEFERRED INFLOWS
Deferred inflow related to pension 88,484 31,401 18,347
Total deferred inflows 88,484 31,401 18,347
NET POSITION :
Net investment in capital assets 2,395,947 7.759.174 4,854,980
Restricted 167,997 730,406 523,132
Unrestricted 3,275,645 835,577 2,023,878
Total net position $ 5839789 $ 9325157 $ 7.401990

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
22



Business-type Activities

QOther

EMS Funds Total
3 111,300 $ 97,370 $ 1,052,938
- 5,220 54,144
- - 79,771
- - 87,641
- 7,025 387,608
- 2,758 2,758
- 5,146 58,443
17,392 - 17,392
- - 483,649
128,692 117,519 2,224 344
- 68,322 649,055
- 15,856 150,632
86,958 - 13,148,766
86,958 84,178 13,948,453
215,650 201,697 16,172,797
- 15,211 153,443
- 15,211 153,443
301,026 1,650,111 16,961,238
- - 1,421,535
1,998,479 657,583 8,791,362

$ 2299505 § 2307694 $§ 27174135

{concluded)



CITY OF LOCKHART, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the year ended September 30, 2018

Business-type Activities

Electric Water Wastewater

OPERATING REVENUES

Charges for services $ 12,158,889 3,226,960 $ 2,339,875

Miscellaneous 79,480 109,729 -
Total operating revenues 12,238,369 3,336,689 2,339,875
OPERATING EXPENSES

Personnel services 1,090,324 357,625 278,526

Coniracts and services 187,182 26,789 29,362

Materials and supplies 54,625 33,959 16,071

Maintenance and repairs 182,359 236,678 187,080

Power, water, and water treatment 7,208,538 1,909,180 478,675

Depreciation 316,610 514,924 235,057

Miscellaneous 71,556 5,937 598
Total operating expenses 9,109,194 3,085,092 1,225,669
Operating income ({loss} before nonoperating

revenues (expenses} and transfers 3,129,175 251,597 1,114,208
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Investment income 36,660 151,465 32,981

Impact fees - 134,272 110,289

Gain (loss) on disposition of capital assets 19,285 436 387

Noncapital grants and contributions - - -

Interest expense (22,844) (343,009) {565,397)
Net nonoperating revenues (expenses) 33,101 (56,8386) 88,240
Income before transfers 3,162,276 194,761 1,202,446
Transfers

Transfers out (2,194,242 (58,448) (589,373)
Total transfers {2,194,242) (58,448) (589,373)
Change in net position 968,034 136,313 613,073
Nef positicn - beginning, as restated 4 871,755 9,188,844 6,788,917
Net position - ending $ 5,839,783 9 325 157 $ 7,401,990

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
24

Y




Business-type Aclivities

Other
EMS Funds Total
1,327,600 1,760,302 $ 20,813,626
110,574 19,943 319,726
1,438,174 1,780,245 21,133,352
- 230,755 1,957,230
1,205,276 1,227,126 2,675,735
181 8,332 113,168
13,050 31,733 650,900
- - 9,594,393
115,999 62,004 1,244,594
- 1,291 79,682
1,334,506 1,661,241 16,315,702
103,668 219,004 4,817,650
5,848 9,147 236,101
- - 244 561
- 3,510 23,598
4,385 20,540 24,925
- - {421,250)
10,233 33,197 107,935
113,901 252 201 4,925,585
- {252,591) {3,094,654)
- {252,591) {3,094 654)
113,901 {390) ' 1,830,931
2,185,604 2,308,084 25,343,204
2,299 505 2,307 694 $ 27,174,135

25

{6




CITY OF LOCKHART, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the year ended September 30, 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from customers

Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services
Cash payments to employees for services

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

Increase (decrease) in customer deposits
Noncapital grants and contributions

Impact fees received

Transfers out to other funds

Net cash used by noncapital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of capital assets

Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Contractual settlement received

Principal paid on capital debt

Interest paid on capital debt

Net cash used by capital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment income

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

26

Business-type Activities

Electric Water Wastewater

12,103,809 $ 3,278,712 2,331,976
(7,997,083) {2,232,430) (1,007,094)
(1,006,765) (336,124) (253,048)
3,099,061 710,158 1,071,834
15,488 20,525 -

- 134,272 110,589
(2,194,242) (58,448) {589,373)
(2,178,754) 96,349 {478,784)
{668,058) (811,582) (274,937)
19,285 436 367

- 253 469 -
(177,693) {475,367) {85,968)
(25,692} (362,273) {57,302)
{852,158) {1,195,317) {417 ,840)
36,660 151,465 32,981
36,660 151,465 32,881
105,709 {(237,345) 208,191
2,214,006 9,555,525 2,127,704
2,319,715 $ 9,318,180 2,335,895




Business-type Activities

EMS Other Funds Total
1,327,848 $ 1,758,373 $ 20,800,718
(1,205,823) {1,263,946) (13,706,376)

- (216,677) (1,812,614)
122,025 277,750 5,281,728
- 25 36,038
4,385 20,540 24 925
- - 244 861
- (252,591) (3,094 654)
4,385 {232 026) (2,788,830)
- (22,570) (1,577,147)
- 3,510 23,598
- - 253,469
(17,392) - (756,420)
- - {445,267)
{17,392) (18,060) _{2,501,767)
5,848 9,147 236,101
5,848 9,147 236,101
114,866 35,811 227,232
456,802 562,182 14,916,219
571,668 $ 597,993 $ 15,143,451
(continued)

27



CITY OF LOCKHART, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the year ended September 30, 2018

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET
CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments fo reconcile operating income to net
cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation
Change in assets and liabilities:
{Increase) decrease in receivables
{Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses
{Increase) decrease in inventory
{Increase)
)

decrease in deferred outflow related to pension

(Increase) decrease in deferred outflow related to OPEB

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in payroll related payables
Increase (decrease) in due to other governments
Increase (decrease) in unearned revenue

Increase (decrease) in accrued compensated absences

(
(
Increase (decrease) in net pensicn liability
Increase (decrease) in OPEB liability

Increase {decrease) in deferred inflow related to pension

Net cash provided by operating activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

28

Business-type Aclivities

Electric Water Wastewater

$ 3,129,175 3 251,597 $ 1,114,206
316,610 514,924 235,057
{134,560} (57,977) 8,646
{14,981) - (149)
{70,892) - -
140,779 51,193 25 596
(2,935) {1,067) (534)
(203,572) (19,887) (311,404)
10,204 3,239 1,401

(5,378) - -
8,827 (5,203) (1,4686)
(204,320) (74,298) (37,148)
49,230 17,902 22,761

81,774 29,735 14,868

$ 3,009,961 3 710,158 $ 1,071,834

L9




Business-type Activities

EMS Other Funds Total

$ 103,668 $ 219,004 $ 4,817,650
115,989 62,004 1,244,594
{110,328) (20,722) {314,939)

- - {15,130)

- - (70,892)

- 25,566 243,164

- (534) (5,070)

12,684 4. 536 (517,643)

- 1,054 15,808

- - (5,378)

- {1,150) (1,150)

- 1,291 3,449

- (37,148) (352,914)

- 8,951 98,844

- 14,868 141,245

3 122,025 $ 277,750 $ 5,281,728

{concluded)

29

50




CITY OF LOCKHART, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

September 30, 2018

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Due fo others
Total liabilities

NET POSITION
Held for various purposes

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

30

Private
Purpese Agency
Trust Funds

1,739 $ 20,304

1,739 3 20,304
- 5 20,304
- 3 20,304

1,739



CITY OF LOCKHART, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

For the year ended September 30, 2018

Private
Purpose
Trust
ADDITIONS

Investment income 3 27
Total additions 27
DEDUCTIONS -
Change in net position 27
Net position - beginning 1,712
Net position - ending $ 1,739

The accompanying notes are an integral pan of this statement.

31

52



CITY OF LOCKHART, TEXAS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2018

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19

20

INDEX
Page
Summary of Significant Accounting PoliCies ... 32
Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability.................ooooiiii e e 40
Deposits and INVESIMENTS ........ciiii e et et et b e e nr e 40
RECEIVADBIES ... oo ettt e ete et e et e et g ne e 41
Due from Other GOVEIMMENES ...ttt e 42
CaPItAl A SIS ..o et ee e s e e 43
Defined Benefit Pension Plan..........ccocvinn OO PSPPSRSO 44
Supplemental Death Benefit Plan (OPEB) ... e 49
Retiree Health Benefit Plan (OPEB)..........oov oot ae e etn e 52
Long-Term Debt ... e e et ne e enbe e 55
Conduit Debt Oblgations. ... ... e e e e e e 80
Contractual Settlement. ... e e e 80

Risk Management ... ...t e e ettt eee bt eee e e aen.. B0

Related Party TransactionS ... ......coocciiiiii ettt er e e 61
Contingencies and Commitments ... e e, 81
Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers............oois e ess e ereeeree s 62
FUNG BAIANECES...... ettt e sen e st e s e s 63
Tax Abatements and ReEDates. ... e 63
Restatement of Previously Issued Financial Statements ... e 64
Lockhart Economic Development Corporation............ccivvreoimrimvine s esvsesssrsee s 65

5%



CITY OF LOCKHART, TEXAS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2018

NOTE 1:

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of Lockhart, Texas (the “City") is a municipal corporation operating under a home rule charter
as authorized in Article XI, Section 5 of the Constitution of the State of Texas. The City operates under a
Council-Manager form of government in which all powers of the City are vested in an elective council.
The City Council consists of the mayor and six council members. The mayor and two council members
are elected at large with the remaining council members elected by district. The City provides
services related to the following: public safety, public works, sanitation, health and welfare, culture
and recreation, economic develocpment, planning and zoning, and general administrative services.

A. Reporting Enfity

The City’s basic financial statements include the accounts of all City operations. The criteria for
including legally separate organizations as component units within the City’s reporting entity are
set forth in Section 2100 of GASB’s Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial
Reporting Standards (GASB Codification).

The Lockhart Economic Development Corporation (LEDC) is a nonprofit corporation that was
incorporated under the Development Corporation Act of 1979, Texas Revised Civil Statutes
Annotated, Article 5190.6 Section (a), to receive and account for the proceeds of a designated
sales tax levied to benefit the economic development of Lockhart. The LEDC meets the criteria of
a discretely presented component unit and is presented as a governmental fund type. Complete
financial statements for the Lockhart Economic Development Corporation may be obtained at City
Hail. No other organizations met the necessary criteria for inclusion as component units for the
year ended September 30, 2018.

This component unit is discretely presented in the financial statements. Complete financial
statements of the individual component unit can be obtained from the Office of the Finance Director,
308 W. San Antonio Street, Lockhart, Texas 78644.

B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of
activities) report information on all nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its
component unit. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these
statements. Governmental aclivities, which normally are supported by taxes, and infergovemmental
revenues are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent
on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from
the legally separate component unit for which the primary government is financially accountable.

32

54



NOTE 1:

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continued)

B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements - (Continued)

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include: 1) charges to
customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges
provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and
other items not included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major
individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate
columns in the fund financial statements.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentafion

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial
statements. Revenues are recorded when transactions occur and expenses are recorded when a
liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized
as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as
revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as
soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when
they are collectible within the current period or soon encugh thereafter to pay liabilities of the
current period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are collected
within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a
liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as
expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only
when payment is due.

Property taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, fines, and interest associated with the current fiscal
period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues
of the current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and
available only when cash is received by the City.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the City’s main operating fund. !t accounts for all financial resources of
the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The 2015 Certificates of Obligation Fund accounts for the proceeds received and
expenditures incurred related fo the City’s issuance of certificates of obligation in 2015. The
proceeds from this issue will be used to fund various projects, the majority of which relate to
infrastructure improvements.

33

55



NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - {Continued)

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation - (Continued)
The City reports the following major enterprise (proprietary) funds:

The Electric Fund accounts for the activities of the City related to its provision of electricity.

The Water Fund is used o account for the establishment and maintenance of water facilities
within the municipal boundaries of the City.

The Wastewater Fund is used to account for the establishment and maintenance of sewage
and drainage facilities within the municipal houndaries of the City.

The Emergency Medical Services Fund (EMS) is used to account for the activities related to
providing ambulance services for the City.

Additionally, the City reports the following fund types:

Special Revenue Funds - Funds of this type account for the proceeds of specific revenue
sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes.

Debt Service Fund - This fund accounts for the resources accumulated and payments made
for principal and interest on long-term obligation debt of the governmental funds.

Capital Projects Funds - These funds account for financial resources to be used for the
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by proprietary
funds).

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds,
discretely presented component units, and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are
excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental
funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund
financial statements.

Private Purpose Trust Funds - These funds are used to account for resources legally held in
trust for use by organizations that are separate from the City. All resources of these funds,
including any earnings on invested resources, may be used to support the organizations’
activities. There is no requirement that any portion of these resources be preserved as
capital.

Agency Funds - These funds are custodial in nature and are used to account for the receipt,
temporary investment, and remittance of resources to third parties. Because of the nature of
these funds, they do not present results of operations or have a measurement focus.

The proprietary funds are accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement
focus and utilize the accrual basis of accounting. This basis of accounting recognizes
revenues in the accounting period in which they are earned and become measurable and
expenses in the accounting pericd in which they are incurred and become measurable. With
this measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of these
funds are included on the Statement of Net Position. The fund equity is segregated into net
investment in capital assets, restricted net position, and unrestricted net position.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-
wide financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are interfund services provided
and used between various City functions. Elimination of these charges would distort the
direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

34

Db



NOTE 1:

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Centinued)

D. Budagets and Budgetary Accounting

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The
principal operating revenues of the City’s enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and
services. The Water Fund also recognizes as operating revenue the partion of tap fees intended
to recover the cost connecting new customers to the water system. Operating expenses for
enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation
on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meefing this definition are reported as
nonoperating revenues and expenses,

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to use
restricted resocurces first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial
statements:

1. Between 60 and 80 days prior to the beginning of each fiscal year, the City Manager
submits to the City Council a proposed operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the
following October 1¥. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the
means of financing them. A budget is prepared for the City’s General Fund and Debt
Service Fund.

2. Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments.

3. The budget is adopted by City Council through the passage of an ordinance no lafer than
the beginning of each fiscal year, or as soon thereafter as is practicai.

4. No funds may be expended or encumbered which will exceed appropriations; however, the
City Manager is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts within and among departments of
individual funds in amounts not to exceed $5,000. Any revisions that alter the total
expenditures/expenses of any fund must be approved by the City Council.

5. The budgets for the City's governmental funds are prepared in accordance with the basis of
accounting utilized by those funds. The budgets for the enterprise funds are adopted under
a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles {GAAP), except that
depreciation, certain capital expenses, nonoperating income, and expense items are not
considered.

8. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year
for all governmental funds and proprietary funds.

7. All appropriations lapse at year-end.

35

57



NOTE 1:

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continued)

E.

G.

Deposits and Investments

The City's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and
short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of
acquisition.

The City Council has adopted a written investment policy regarding the investment of its funds as
defined by the Public Funds Investment Act of 1995. The investments of the City are in
compliance with the City Council’s investment policies.

Investments for the City, as well as the component unit, are recorded at amortized cost, which as
of September 30, 2018, approximates fair value. Because the fair value of the City’s investments
did not materially differ from cost, no adjustments were made to the City’s reporting amounts.
See Note 3 for further discussion.

Receivables and Payables

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at
the end of the fiscal year are referred to as “due toffrom other funds”. Any residual balances
outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the
government-wide financial statements as “internal balances”.

All receivables are reported net of an applicable allowance for uncollectibles. Trade accounts
receivable in excess of 80 days comprise the frade accounts receivable allowance for
uncollectibles. The property tax receivable allowance is equal to 4.5% of outstanding property
taxes at September 30, 2018.

The Caldwell County Appralsal District bills and collects property taxes for the Clty These taxes
are levied on October 1% of each year and are payable by the following January 31™, at which time
penaities and interest charges are assessed on unpaid balances An enforceable Ilen on property
is attached on all ad valorem taxes unpaid as of January 1% following the year of levy.

Inventories and Prepaid ltems

All inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market on a first-in, first-out basis. Inventories of
governmental funds are recorded as expenditures when censumed rather than when purchased.
Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable fo future accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid expenses/expenditures in both government-wide and fund financial
statements.

36



NOTE 1:

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continued)

H. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads,
drainage systems, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or
husiness-type activiies columns in the government-wide statement of net position. The City
defines capital assets as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an
estimated useful life in excess' of one year. Assels are recorded at historical cost or estimated
historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at acquisition
value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend the lives of assets are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assefs and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.
Interest incurred during the consiruction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is
included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed. During the current year, no
construction period interest expense was capitalized by the City's enterprise funds.

Property, plant, and equipment of the City are depreciated using the straight-line method over the
following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Buildings and Improvements 10-50
Public Domain Infrastructure 10-40
Utility System infrastructure 30-50
Machinery and Equipment 5-10

Compensaied Absences

Vested or accumulated vacation and sick pay that is expected to be liquidated with expendable
available resources is reported as an expenditure and fund liability of the governmental fund that
will pay for it. Amounts of vested or accumulated vacation and sick pay that are not expected to
be liquidated with expendable available financial resources are reported in the government wide
financial statements. Vested or accumulated vacation and sick pay of the enterprise funds are
recorded as an expense and liability of that fund as the benefits accrue to employees. The
General Fund is the governmental fund that has typically been used in prior years to liquidate the
liability for compensated absences.

Long-Term QObligations

Long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable
governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position.
Bond premiums, discounts, and losses on refunding are deferred and amortized over the life of
the bonds using the siraight-ine method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable
deferred amountis.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debi
issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debf issuances are reported
as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing
uses. lssuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actua! debt proceeds received, are
reported as debt service expendifures.

37

59



NOTE 1:

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCCUNTING POLICIES - {Continued)

K. Deferred Qutflows/Inflows of Resources

The statement of net position reports a separate section for deferred outflows of resources which
follows the asset section. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of
resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will
not be recognized as an outflow of resources {expense/expenditure) until then. The City has
three items that qualify for reporting in this category. One is the deferred amount on refunding
reported in the government-wide statement of net position. A deferred amount on refunding
results from the difference in the carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price. This
amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt.
The second item is the deferred amount caiculated in the actuarial pension study required by
GASB Statement No. 68 “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions” (GASE No, 68) and
the current year pension payments reported in the government-wide statement of net position.
The third item is the deferred amount calculated in the actuarial OPEB study required by GASB
Staterment No. 75 "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Post-Employment Benefits Other Than
Pensions (OPEB)" (GASB No. 75) and the current year OPEB payments reported in the
government-wide statement of net position

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position also reports a separate section for deferred
inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources,
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future peried(s) and so will not be
recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The City has two items that are
considered deferred inflows of resources. One of the items arises only under a modified accrual
basis of accounting and this item, unavailable revenue, is reported only in the governmental funds
balance sheet. The governmental funds report unavailable revenues from a variety of sources and
are further defined in Note 4. The other item that qualifies for reporting as a deferred inflow of
resources is calculated in the actuarial pension study required by GASB No. 68. These amounts
are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amocunts become
available.

Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liahility, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net
position of the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS) and additions to/deductions from
TMRSE's fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by
TMRS. For this purpose, plan contributions are recegnized in the period that compensation is
reported for the employee, which is when contributions are legally due. Benefit payments and
refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments
are reported at fair value. Information regarding the City's pensicn liability is obtained from TMRS

* through a report prepared for the City by TMRS' consulting actuary, Gabriel Roeder Smith &

Company (GRS), in compliance with GASB No. 68.

38

0



NOTE 1:

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - {(Continued)

M. Fund Balance Policies

The following fund balance classifications describe the refative strength of the spending constraints
placed on the purposes for which resources can be used:

s Nonspendable fund balance - amounts that are not in spendable form (such as inventory or
prepaid items) because they are either not in spendable form, or legally or contractually required to
be maintained in-tact;

» Restricted fund balance - amounts constrained to specific purposes by their providers (such as
grantors, bondholders, and higher levels of government) through constitutional provisions or by
enabling legislation;

« Committed fund balance - amounts constrained to specific purposes by a government itself, using
its highest level of decision-making authority, to be reported as committed, amounts cannot be
used for any other purpose unless the government takes the same highest level of action to
remove or change the constraint;

» Assigned fund balance - amounts a government intends to use for a specific purpose; intent can
be expressed by the governing body or by an official or body to which the governing body
delegates the authority;

« Unassigned fund balance - amounts that are available for any purpose; positive amounts are
reported conly in the General Fund.

Fund balance classifications depict the nature of the net resources that are reported in a
governmental fund. An individual governmental fund may include non-spendable resources and
amounts that are restricted, committed, assigned, or any combination of those classifications. In
addition, the General Fund may also include an unassigned amount.

Commitments will only be used for specific purposes pursuant to a formal action (ordinance) of
the City Council. The action to commit funds must occur prior to fiscal year-end, to report such
commitments in the balance sheet of the respective period, even though the amount may be
determined subsequent to fiscal year-end. A fwo-thirds majority vote is required to approve a
commitment and a two-thirds majority vote is required to remove a commitment.

Net Position Flow Assumptions

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted
{committed, assigned, or unassigned) amounts are available, it shall be the policy of the City to
consider restricted amounts to have been reduced first. When an expenditure is incurred for
purposes for which amounts in any of the unrestricted fund balance classifications could be used,
it shall be the policy of the City that committed amounts would be reduced first, followed by
assigned amounts and then unassigned amounts.

. Minimum Fund Balance Policy

The City will maintain a minimum unassigned fund balance in its General Fund of 25 percent of
the subsequent year's budgeted expenditures and outgoing transfers. This minimum fund
balance is to protect against cash flow shorifalis related to timing of projected revenue receipts
and to maintain a budget stabilization commitment. When fund balance falls below the 25
percent range, the City will replenish shortages/deficiencies. Should unassigned fund balance of
the General Fund ever exceed the maximum 25 percent range, the City will consider such fund
balance surpluses for one-time expenditures that are nonrecurring in nature and which will not
require additional future expense outlays for maintenance, additional staffing or cther recurring
expenditures.

39

f




NOTE 1:  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continued)
P. Use of Esiimates
The preparation of the government-wide and fund financial statements in conformity with GAAP
requires the City to make estimates and assessments that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of financial statements
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures during the reporting period. Accordingly,
actual results could differ from those estimates.
NOTE 2: STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY
Budgetary Compliance
Budgetary compliance is monitored at the departmental level in the General Fund and at the fund level
in the Debt Service Fund. There were several situations of expenditures (General Fund at the
function level) exceeding the amount appropriated during the fiscal year 2017-2018.
Final Negative
Fund/Department Budget Actual Variance
General Fund
Public Safety $§ 4908,827 § 4978260 § (69,423)
Public Works 1,491,447 1,693,994 (102,547)
Health and welfare 10,682 11,396 (714)
Debt Service Fund 1,085,477 1,085,677 (200)
These over expenditures were funded by available fund balances in the respective funds.
NOTE 3: DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

As of September 30, 2018, the City had the following investments:
Weighted Average

Investment Type Amortized Cost Maturity {Days)
Public Funds Investment Pools
TexPool $ 8,443,437 28
MBIA Texas CLASS 11,001,064 52
TexStar B.170.873 30
Total $ 27615374

As previously discussed in Note 1, the investments are reported in the accompanying statements at
amortized cost.

A. Interest Rate Risk

In accordance with the City’'s investment policy, the City manages its exposure to declines in fair
values by limiting the weighted average maturity of its investment portfolio for investments in non-
operating funds to less than five years from the time of purchase. The weighted average maturity
of investments of the City's operating funds cannot exceed one year from the time of purchase.
TexPool's weighted average maturity cannot exceed 60 days.

40

b2



NOTE 3:

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS - (Continued)

B. Credit Risk

It is the City’s policy to limit its investments to those with ratings of not less than A or its
equivalent. The City’s investiments in the public funds investment pools include those with
TexPool, MBIA Texas CLASS and TexStar. The pools operate in full compliance with the Public
Funds Investment Act. TexPool, MBIA Texas CLASS and TexStar are rated AAAm by Standard
& Poor’s.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The City's investment policy requires that the investment portfolio shall be diversified in terms of
investment instruments, maturity scheduling, and financial institutions to reduce the risk of loss
resulting from over concentration of assets in a specific class of investments, specific maturity, or
specific user, At year-end, the City was not exposed to concentration of credit risk.

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits

In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the City's deposits may
not be returned to it. The City’s investment policy requires that deposits at financial institutions be
insured by the FDIC and/or collateralized by securities pledged to the City by the depository in an
amount equal to at least 102% of the carrying value of deposits held. During the fiscal year and at
year-end, all deposits held in the depository bank were fully collateralized. The City’s deposits are
therefore not subject to custodial credit risk at September 30, 2018.

Custodial Credit Risk - Investments

For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the City will
not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside party. The City’s investment policy requires that securities be held in the
name of the City or held on behalf of the City and that all securities are purchased using the
delivery versus payment method. As of September 30, 2018, and for the year then ended, the
City was not exposed to any custodial credit risk.

Please see Note 19 for discussions relative to the investments of the City's component unit.

NOTE 4: RECEIVABLES

Receivables as of year-end for the City’s individual major and nonmajor funds in the aggregate,
including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

Nonmajor Nonmajor
Bus.-type Govt.

Receivables:

Advaloremtaxes $ 341,349 §

Franchise taxes 66,902
Municipal crt fines 1,450,367
Acceounts -
Occupancy taxes -
Other 263,389

Gross receivables 2,122,007
Less: Allowance for

General Electric Water Wastewater EMS Funds Funds Total

- - § - 3 - % - § 69,382 $ 410,731

- - - - - 6,238 73,140

- - - - - 95,198 1,545,565

2,117,820 557,938 356,417 3,756,024 269,338 - 7,057,537

- - - - - 20,038 20,038

- - 229,279 - - 98,247 590,915

2,117,820 557,838 585,696 3,756,024 269,338 289,103 9,697,926

(51,058) (22,495) (12,975) (2,217,913) (9,948) (94,083) (3,809,806)

uncollectibles _(1,401,438)

Net total receivables $§ 720,571

$ 2066764 $535443 $ 572,721 § 1,538,111 § 259,390 $ 195,020 $ 5,888,020

41

b7




NOTE 4: RECEIVABLES - (Continued)
The City is permitted by a local charter to levy taxes up fo limits set by the Constitution and laws of the
State of Texas. Currently, the State of Texas does not set limits on the rate at which ad valorem taxes
may be assessed. The combined {ax rate for the year ended September 30, 2018, was $0.7260 per
$100 of assessed valuation. Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of
January 1%, Taxes are levied on October 1% and payable by the following January 31% which
comprises the collection dates for the current tax roll.
The City's governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues
that are not considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period {unavailable). The
governmental funds may also defer revenue recognition in connection with resources that have been
received, but not yet recognizable (unearned). At the end of the current fiscal year, the various
components of deferred revenue reported in the governmental funds were as follows:
Unavailable Unearned Total

General Fund

Ad valorem taxes $ 286,688 $ - 3 286,688

Charges for services 253,873 - 253,873
Nonmajor Funds

Ad valorem taxes 58,269 - 58,269

Charges for services 16,185 - 16,185

$ 815015 3 - $ 615,015
NOTE 5: DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS

The City reported amounts due from other governments as of the end of the current fiscal year.
These amounts are comprised of the following at September 30, 2018:

General

Sales taxes 3 295,638
$ 285,638

42

b



NOTE 6: CAPITAL ASSETS

The capital asset activity of the City was as follows for the year ended September 30, 2018:

Governmental activities

Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land
Construction in progress

Total capifal assets not being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated
Machinery and equipment
Buildings
Infrastructure

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for
Machinery and equipment
Buildings
infrastructure

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated, net
Governmental activities capital assets, net

Business-type activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land

Construction in progress
Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated
Machinery and equipment
Buildings and improvements
Infrastructure

Total capital assets being depreciated

lL.ess accumulated depreciation for
Machinery and equipment
Buildings and improvements
Infrastructure

Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Business-type activities capital assets, net

Beginning Ending

Balance Increases Decreases Balance
$ 1,488,954 $ 98440 $ - $ 1,587,394
608,655 896,683 1,408,162 97,176
2,097,608 985 123 1,408,162 1,684,570
6,344,338 447 256 307,885 6,483,709
11,788,939 179,560 - 11,968,499
75,198,737 1,408,162 - 76,606,899
93,332,014 2,034,978 307,885 95,059,107
5,210,425 265,225 307,885 5,167,765
4,121,580 265,546 - 4,387,126
62,814,623 1,596,654 - 64,411,277
72,146,628 2,127,425 307,885 73,966,168
21,185,386 (92,447) - 21,092,839
$23,282.995 $ 902,676 $ 1,408,162 $22 777,509
$ 574710 L - $ - $ 574710
681,574 524,526 378,905 827,195
1,256,284 524,526 378,905 1,401,905
6,141,196 662,343 197,904 6,605,635
4,500,538 - - 4 500,538
37,799,767 876,817 - 38,676,584
48,441,501 1,539,160 197,904 49 782 757
5,416,498 306,742 197,904 5,525,336
3,037,611 41,684 - 3,079,285
18,168,417 896,168 - 20,064,585
27,622 526 1,244 594 197,904 28,669,216
20,818,975 294 566 - 21,113,541
$22,075,259 $ 819,092 $ 378,905 $ 22,515,446

43

s



NOTE 6:  CAPITAL ASSETS - (Continued)
Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the City as follows:
Governmental activities
General government $ 105,051
Public safety 229,478
Public works 1,678,430
Health 4,930
Parks and recreation 109,536
Total depreciation expense - governmental activities $ 2127425
Business-type activities
Electric $ 316610
Water 514,924
Wastewater 235,057
EMS 115,899
Solid Waste 9,186
Airport 52,818
Total depreciation expense - business-type activities $ 1,244 594
NOTE 7: DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN

Plan Description

The City participates as one of 883 plans in the.nontraditional, jeint contributory, hybrid defined benefit
pension plan administered by the TMRS. TMRS is an agency created by the State of Texas and
administered in accordance with the TMRS Act, Subtitle G, Title 8, Texas Government Code (the
TMRS Act) as an agent multiple-employer retirement system for municipal employees in the State of
Texas. The TMRS Act places the general administration and management of the TMRS with a six-
member Board of Trustees. Although the Governor, with the advice and consent of the Senate,
appoints the Board, TMRS is not fiscally dependent on the State of Texas. TMRS's defined benefit
pension plan is a tax-qualified plan under Section 401 (a) of the Internal Revenue Code. TMRS
issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) that can be obtained at
www.tmrs.com.

All eligible employees of the City are required to participate in TMRS.

Benefits Provided

TMRS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Benefit provisions are adopted by the
governing body of the City, within the options available in the state statutes governing TMRS.

At retirement, the benefit is calculated as if the sum of the employee’s contributions, with interest, and
the City-financed monetary credits with interest were used to purchase an annuity. Members may
choose to receive their retirement benefit in one of seven payment options, Members may also
choose to receive a portion of their benefit as a partial lump-sum distribution in an amount equai to 12,
24, or 36 monthly payments, which cannot exceed 75% of the member's deposits and interest.

44



NOTE 7:

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN - (Continued)
Benefits Provided - (Continued)

The plan provisions are adopted by the governing body of the City, within the options available in the
state statutes governing TMRS. Plan provisions of the City for plan year 2018 were as follows:

Employee deposit rate 6.0%
Matching ratio {City to employee) 2101
Years required for vesting 5
Service retirement eligibility

(expressed as age/years of service) 60/5, 0/20
Updated service credit 100.0 repeating
Annuity increase (to retirees) 70.0% of CPI

At the December 31, 2017 valuation and measurement date, the following employees were covered
by the benefit terms:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 75
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 107
Active employees 134
=216

Conftributions

The contribution rates for employees in TMRS are either 5%, 6%, or 7% of employee gross earnings,
and the City matching percentages are either 100%, 150%, or 200%, both as adopted by the
governing body of the City. Under the state law governing TMRS, the contribution rate for each City is
determined annually by the actuary, using the Entry Age Normal (EAN) actuarial cost method. The
actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the cost of benefits earned
by empioyees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability.

Employees for the City were required to contribute 6.00% of their annual gross earnings during the
fiscal year. The contribution rates for the City were 13.06% and 13.21% in calendar years 2017 and
2018, respectively. The City's contributions to TMRS for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018
were $829,948, and were equal to the required contributions.

Net Pension Liabitity

The City's Net Pension Liability (NPL) was measured as of December 31, 2017, and the Tota! Pension
Liability (TPL) used to calculate the Net Pension Liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as
of that date.

Actuarial Assumptions
The Total Pension Liability in the December 31, 2017 actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions:

[nftation 2.5%
Overall Payroll Growth 3.0%
Investment Rate of Return 6.75%, net of pension plan investment expense,

including inflation

45

p 7



NCTE 7:

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN - (Continued)

Net Pension Liability - (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions - (Confinued)

Salary increases were based on a service-related table. Mortality rates for active members, retirees,
and beneficiaries were based on the gender-distinct RP2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Tables with
Blue Collar Adjustment, with male rates multiplied by 109% and female rates multiplied by 103%. The
rates are projected on a fully generational basis by scale BB to account for future mortality
improvements. For disabled annuitants, the gender-distinct RP2000 Combined Healthy Mortality
Tables with Blue Collar Adjustment are used with male rates multiplied by 109% and female rates
multiplied by 103% with a 3-year set-forward for both males and females. In addition, a 3% minimum
mortality rate is applied to reflect the impairment for younger members who become disabled. The
rates are projected on a fully generational basis by scale BB to account for future mortality
improvements subject to the 3% floor.

Actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2017 valuation were based on the results of actuarial
experience studies. The experience study in TMRS was for the period December 31, 2010 through
December 31, 2014. Heaithy post-retirement mortality rates and annuity purchase rates were updated
based on a Mortality Experience Investigation Study covering 2009 through 2011, and dated
December 31, 2013. These assumptions were first used in the December 31, 2013 valuation, along
with a change to the Entry Age Normal (EAN) actuarial cost method. Assumptions are reviewed
annually. Plan assets are managed on a total return basis with an emphasis on both capital
appreciation as well as the production of income, in order to satisfy the short-term and long-term
funding needs of TMRS.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-
block method in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return {(expected returns,
net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.
These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the
expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected
inflation. In determining their best estimate of a recommended investment return assumption under
the various alterative asset allocation portfolios, GRS focused on the area between (1) arithmetic
mean (aggressive} without an adjustment for time (conservative) and (2) the geometric mean
(conservative} with an adjustment for time (aggressive).

46



NOTE 7:

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN - (Continued)

Net Pension Liability - (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions - {Continued)

The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class in

fiscal year 2017 are summarized in the following table:

Long-Term
Expected
Target Real Rate of
Asset Class Allocation Return (Arithmetic)
Domestic Equity 17.50% 4.55%
International Equity 17.560% 6.35%
Core Fixed Income 10.00% 1.00%
Non-Core Fixed Income 20.00% 3.90%
Real Return 10.00% 3.80%
Real Estate 10.00% 4.50%
Absolute Refumn 10.00% 3.75%
Private Equity 5.00% 7.50%
Total 100.00%

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the Total Pension Liability was 6.75%. The projection of cash
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee and employer contributions will be
made at the rates specified in statute. Based on that assumption, the pension plan’s Fiduciary Net
Position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active

and inactive employees.

Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan

investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the Total Pension

Liability.

Increase {Decrease)

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Liability Net Position Liability
(a) (b) (a) - (b)
Balance at 12/31/2016 $ 30,506,229 § 25232,706 $ 5,273,524
Changes for the year:
Service cost 803,650 - 803,650
interest 2,050,665 - 2,050,665
Difference between expected and
actual experience {95,374) - {(95,374)
Change of assumptions - - -
Contributions - Employer 779,767 (779,767)
Contributions - Employee 358,239 (358,239)
Net investment income 3,497,425 (3,497,425)
Benefit payments, including refunds
of employee contributions (1,055,658) {1,055,658) -
Administrative expense (18,124) 18,124
Other changes {918) 818
Net changes 1,703,283 3,560,731 {1,857,448)
Balance at 12/31/2017 $§ 32209512 § 28793436 $ 3,416,076
47

b



NOTE 7:

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN - (Continued)

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the Net Pension Liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate of
6.75%, as well as what the City’s Net Pension Liability would be if it were calculated using a discount
rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (5.75%) or 1-percentage-point higher (7.75%) than the current
rate:

1.0% Decrease in 1.0% Increase in
Discount Rate {5.75%) Discount Rate (6.75%) Discount Rate (7.75%)
City's Net Pension Liability: $8,134,128 33,416,076 ($418,642)

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pasition
Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in a separately-issued
TMRS financial report. That report may be obtained on the internet at www.tmrs.com.

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions

For the year ended September 30, 2018, the City recognized pension expense of $595,708.

At September 30, 2018, the City reported deferred cutfiows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows | Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources
Differences befween expected and actual economic experience 3 202,335 3 68,202
Changes in actuarial agssumptions 28,778 -
Difference between projected and actual investment earnings - 729,684
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 629,382 -
Total $ 860,495 $ 797,886

$629,382 reported as deferred outflows of resources related tc pensions resulting from contributions
subseguent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability for
the year ending September 30, 2019. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of

resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended December 31. | Pension Expense Amount
2018 $ 192,595
2019 {27,5886)
2020 {372,937)
2021 {(358,842)
2022 -
Thereafter -
Total ($566,770)

48



NOTE 8:

SUPPLEMENTAL DEATH BENEFIT PLAN (OPEB)

Plan Description and Benefits Provided

TMRS administers a defined benefit group-term life insurance plan known as the Supplemental Death
Benefits Fund (SDBF). This is a voluntary program in which participating member cities may elect, by
ordinance, to provide group-term life insurance coverage for their active members, including or not
including retirees. The death benefit for active employees provides a lump-sum payment
approximately equal to the employee's annua! salary (calculated based on the employee's actual
earnings, for the 12-month period preceding the month of death). The death benefit for retirees is
considered an other postemployment benefit (OPEB) and is a fixed amount of $7,500. As the SDBF
covers both active and retiree participants, with no segregation of assets, the SDBF is considered to
be an unfunded OPEB plan (i.e. no assets are accumuiated).

Membership

At the December 31, 2017 valuation and measurement date, the following is the number of members
in the plan:

Inactive employees currently receiving benefits 54
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 23
Active employees 134
Total 211

N

Contributions

The City contributes to the SDBF at a contractually required rate as determined by an annual actuarial
valuation. The rate is equal to the cost of providing one-year term life insurance. The funding policy
for the SDBF program is to assure that adequate resources are available to meet all death benefit
payments for the upcoming year; the intent is not to pre-fund retired term life insurance during
employees’ entire careers. Therefore, there are no assets that are accumulated in a trust that meets
the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75 to pay related benefits. The SDBF is
considered an unfunded OPEB plan and benefit payments made by the City are treated as being
equal to the City's yearly contribution for retirees.

The City's contribution rates for the program are as follows:

Plan/Calendar Total SDB Retiree Portion of SDB
Year Contribution (Rate) Contribution (Rate)
2017 0.24% 0.06%
2018 0.25% 0.05%

49

1



NOTE 8:

SUPPLEMENTAL DEATH BENEFIT PLAN (OPEB) - {Continued)

Total OPERB Liability

The City's total OPEB liability and the OPEB expense is recognized on the City's financial staterments.
The OPEB expense recognized each fiscal year is equal to the change in the total OPEB liability from
the beginning of the year to the end of the year, adjusted for deferred recognition of certain changes in
the liability.

Actuarial Assumptions
The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2017 valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the period December 31, 2010 to December 31, 2014.

Inflation 2.5%
Salary increases . 3.5% to 10.5 % including inflation
Discount rate 3.31%; based on the Fidelity Index’'s “20-Year Municipal GO

AA Index”’ rate as of December 31, 2017
Retirees’ share of benefit-
related costs $0

Administrative expenses All administrative expenses are paid through the Pension
Trust and accounted for under reporting requirements under
GASB Statement No. 68

Mortality rates-service retirees  RP2000 Combined Mortality Table with Blue Collar
Adjustment with male rates multiplied by 109% and female
rates multiplied by 103% and projected on a fully generational
basis with scale BB

Mortality rates-disabled retirees  RP2000 Combined Mortality Table with Blue Collar
Adjustment with male rates multiplied by 109% and female
rates multiplied by 103% with a 3 year set-forward for both
males and females. The rates are projected on a fully
generational basis with scale BB tc account for future
mortality improvements subject to the 3% floor.

implementing GASB Statement No. 75

In the year of implementation (fiscal year ended September 30, 2018), the City made a prior period
adjustment for the Total OPEB Liability as of the 12/31/16 measurement date and recorded a deferred
outflow of resources for contributions recorded by the City (retiree portion of SDB rate only) from
December 31, 2016 to September 30, 2017. TMRS elected not to calculate other deferrals as of the
December 31, 2016 measurement date,

50

12



NOTE 8: SUPPLEMENTAL DEATH BENEFIT PLAN (OPEB) - (Continued)

Totai OPER Liability - (Continued)

Changes in Total OPEB Liablility
The following details the changes in the Total OPEB liability:;

Balance at 12/31/2016 3 345,259
Changes for the year:
Service cost 15,524
interest 13,276

Change of benefit terms -
Difference between expected and

actual experience -
Change of assumptions 31,482

Benefit payments {(3,582)
Net changes 56,700
Balance at 12/31/2017 $ 401,959

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability fo Changes in the Discount Rate
The following presents the Total OPEB Liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate of
3.31%, as well as what the City's Total OPER Liability would be if it were calculated using a discount
rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (2.31%) or 1-percentage-point higher (4.31%) than the current

rate:

1.0% Decrease in
Discount Rate (2.31%) Discount Rate (3.31%)

1.0% Increase in
Discount Rate (4.31%)

City's Total OPEB Liability:

$482,576 $401,959

$339,202

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to

OPEB

For the year ended September 30, 2018, the City recognized OPEB expense of $34,868.

At September 30, 2018, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Qutfiows | Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience 3 - $ -
Changes in actuarial assumptions 25,416 -
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 11,912 -
Total $ 37,328 $ -
51

12



NOTE 8: SUPPLEMENTAL DEATH BENEFIT PLAN (OPEB) - (Continued)
OPEB Expense and Deferred Qutflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to

NOTE 9:

OPEB - (Continued)

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources to be recognized in future OPEB expense (exciuding City
contributions subsequent to the measurement date) are as follows:

Year ended December 31: OPEB Expense Amount

2018 $ 6,066
2019 6,066
2020 6,066
2021 8,066
2022 1,152
Thereafter -
Total $25416

RETIREE HEALTH BENEFIT PLAN (OPEB)

Plan Description

in addition to providing pension benefits, the City provides medical benefits to eligible retirees and
dependents with postemployment heaith care benefits through a single-empicyer postemployment
healthcare plan (the “plan”) administered by Texas Municipal League Multistate Intergovernmental
Employee Benefits Pool. A separate audited financial report is not issued on the plan. in order for a
City employee to be eligible for this benefit, he or she needs 20 years of service and/or attained the
age of 60 with five years of service. Medical benefits are available with four coverage tiers depending
on dependent status and continue until Medicare eligible. A Medicare supplement policy is available
to Medicare eligible retirees with the retiree paying the full premium.

Eligible retirees pay the full contribution rate for pre-65 medical coverage. The amount of the
contribution depends on years of service with the City at retirement. The plan was changed effective
June 1, 2015 to provide payment of higher retiree contribution rates for future retrees. Employees
hired on or after this date will pay the full retiree contribution rate equal to 195% of the active
employee contribution rate. Retirees hired prior to this date will pay the active employee contribution
rate for either 2, 5 or 10 years (or to age 65, if earlier) depending on the years of service retirement.
All retirees on the effective date will continue to pay the active employee contribution rate.

At the September 30, 2018 valuation and measurement date, the following represents the active
employees and retirees that are eligible to participate in the plan:

Retirees
Active employees

52

Empioyees Only

2
68

Employee & Dependents

1
13

¢



NOTE 9.

RETIREE HEALTH BENEFIT PLAN (QPEB} - (Continued)

Total OPER Liabifity

Funded Status

As of September 30, 2018, the most recent valuation date, the Total OPEB Liability for benefits was
$390,842, all of which was unfunded. There are no assets that are accumulated in a trust that meets
the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75 to pay related benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Actuarial values of the program involve estirates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions
of the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. The actuarial methods and assumptions
used in the September 30, 2018 valuation are as follows:

Actuarial method Individual entry age normal cost method — level percentage of
projected salary

Discount rate 4.06% (1.06% real rate of return plus 3.00% inflation)

Health care cost trend Level 5.00%

Mortality rates RPH-2014 Total Table with Projection MP-2018

Turnover Rates varying based on gender, age and select and uitimate

at 9 years. Rates based on the TMRS actuarial assumptions
frorn the 2017 retirement plan valuation report

Disability None assumed

Retirement rates Rates based on the TMRS actuarial assumptions from the
2017 retirement plan valuation report

Salary scale 3.50%

Implementing GASB Statement No. 75
in the year of implementation (fiscal year ended September 30, 2018), the City made a prior period
adjustment for the Total OPEB Liability as of September 30, 2017.

Changes in Total OPEB Liability
The following details the changes in the Total OPEB liability:

Balance at 9/30/17 $ 383,961
Changes for the year:
Service cost 11,326
Interest 15,641

Change of benefit terms -
Difference between expected and

actual experience -
Change of assumptions

Benefit payments (20,0886)
Net changes 6,881
Balance at 9/30/18 $ 390,842
53

15



Total OPEB Liability - (Continued)

NOTE 9: RETIREE HEALTH BENEFIT PLAN (OPEB) - (Continued)

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate
The following presents the Total OPEB Liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate of
5.00%, as well as what the City's Total OFEB Liability would be if it were calculated using a discount
rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (4.00%) or 1-percentage-point higher (6.00%) than the current

rate:

1.0% Decrease in
Discount Rate (4.00%)

Discount Rate (5.00%)

1.0% Increase in
Discount Rate (6.00%)

City's Total OPEB Liability:

$353,307

$390,842

$434,724

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability fo Changes in the Healthicare Trend Rate

The following presents the Total OFEB Liability of the City, calculated using the trend rate of 4.06%,
as well as what the City's Total OPEB Liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that
is 1-percentage-point lower {(5.06%) or 1-percentage-point higher (4.31%) than the current rate:

1.0% Decrease in
Trend Rate (3.06%)

Trend Rate (4.06%)

1.0% Increase in
Trend Rate (5.06%)

City's Total OPEB Liability:

$359,684

$390,842

$425,286

OPEB Expense and Deferred Qutflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to

OPEB

For the year ended September 30, 2018, the City recognized OPEB expense of $29,967.

At September 30, 2018, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows | Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience $ - $ -
Changes in actuarial assumptions - -
Differences between projected and actual investments - -
Total $ - $ -

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources to be recognized in future OPEB expense (excluding City
contributions subseguent to the measurement date) are as follows:

Year ended December 31:

OPEB Expense Amount

2018

$

2019

2020

2021

2022

Thereafter

Total

54

Tl



NOTE 10: LONG-TERM DEBT

A. Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

Long-term liability activity for the year ended September 30, 2018, was as follows:

Governmental activities

Bonds and certificates payable
Certificates of obligation
General obligation bonds

Total bonds and certificates
payable

Bond premium

Compensated absences
OPEB liability
Net pension liability

Total governmental activity
long-term liabilities

Business-type activities

Bonds and certificates payable
Certificates of obligation
General obiigation bonds

Total bonds and certificates
payable

Bond premium

State infrastructure note

Capital leases payable

Compensated absences

OPEB liability

Net pension liability

Total business-type activity
long-term liabilities

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year

$ 8794235 § - $ (601470) $ B192765 & 484,990
4,887,052 - - 4,887,052 205,810
13,681,287 - (601,470) 13,079,817 690,800
774,293 - (61,511) 712,782 -
427,756 341,230 {327,880) 441,106 110,277
590,668 51,501 - 642 169 -
4,271,555 - (1,504,534) 2,767,021 -
$19,745559 § 392731 § (2,495395) $17642885 $ 801,077
$ 8,850,765 & - $ (243530) $ 8607235 §$ 255010
1,762,048 - {120,000) 1,642,948 69,190
10,613,713 - {363,530) 10,250,183 324,200
468,308 - (32,261) 436,047 -
3,014,787 - {155,560) 2,859,227 159,449
219,939 121,741 (237,330) 104,350 17,392
54,004 72,368 (68,919) 58,443 58,443
65,699 10,773 - 76,372 -
1,001,969 - (352,915) 649,054 -
$165439,309 $ 204,882 $ (1,210,515) $14,433676 §$ 559,484

55

17



NOTE 10: LONG-TERM DEBT - (Continued)

B. Bonds and Certificates Payable - Governmentai Activities

Bonds and certificates payable of the City's governmental activities at September 30, 2018, were
comprised of the following individual issues:

2006 Combination Certificates of Obligation due in annual installments
ranging from $30,000 to $45,000 through August 1, 2021; interest rate at

4.10%. $ 135,000

2008-A Combination Certificates of Obligation due in annual installments

ranging from $167,436 to $260,456 through August 1, 2021; interest rate at

4.12%. 744,000
2015 Combination Certificates of Obligation due in annual installments

ranging from $184,400 to $596,995 through August 1, 2035; interest rate at

3.39%, 7,313,765

2016 General Obligation Refunding Bonds due in annual installments

ranging from $205,700 to $680,680 through August 1, 2028; interest rate at
3.6%. 4,887,052

$ 13,079,817

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the City's governmental activity bonds and
certificates are as follows;

Year Ending
September 30 Principali Interest Total

2019 3 690,800 3 483,834 3 1,174,634
2020 727,162 451,268 1,178,430
2021 745722 418,058 1,163,780
2022 903,038 382,584 1,285,622
2023 947 672 348,209 1,295,881

2024-2028 5,271,393 1,220,225 6,491,618

2029-2033 2,620,785 463,472 3,084,257

2034-2035 1,173,245 61,238 1,234,483

$ 13,079,817 $ 3,828,888 $ 16,808,705

The City is scheduled to receive annual instaliments ranging from $48,093 to $65,676 from LEDC and
annual installments ranging from $170,304 to $290,798 from Wastewater Utility Fund for the 2015
Combination Certificates of Obligation through August 1, 2035.

o6

gk



NOTE 10: LONG-TERM DEBT - {Continued)

C. Bonds and Certificates Payable - Business-type Activities

Bonds and certificates payable of the City's business-type activities at September 30, 2018, were
comprised of the following individual issues;

2006-A Combination Certificates of Obligation due in annual installments
ranging from $16,403 to $19,544 through August 1, 2012; interest rate at
4.12%, $ 56,000

2015 Combination Certificates of Obligation due in annual installments
ranging from $215,600 to $698,005 through August 1, 2035; interest rate

at 3.39%. 8,551,235
2016 General Obligation Refunding Bonds due in annual installments of
$69,300 to $229,320 through February 1, 2028; interest rate at 3.60%. 1,642,948

$ 10,250,183

The annual debt service requirements to maturity for the above-listed obligations of the City's
business-type activities are as follows:

Year Ending
September 30 Principal Interest Total
2019 $ 324,200 $ 351,136 3 675,336
2020 337,838 342,891 680,729
2021 344,278 334,590 678,868
2022 606,862 324,041 931,003
2023 637,328 297,316 934,644
2024-2028 3,563,607 1,110,513 4,674,120
2029-2033 3,064,215 541,890 3,608,105
2034-2035 1,371,755 71,599 1,443,354

$ 10,250,183 $ 3,373,976 $ 13624158

57

14




NOTE 10: LONG-TERM DEBT - {Continued)

D. State Infrastructure Notes - Business-type Activities

2013 State Infrastructure Bank Loan is due in annual installments of $230,000 through June 2033,

interest rate of 2.5%.

Annual debt service requirements fo maturity for the City's business-type activity State
Infrastructure Notes are as follows:

Year Ending

September 30 Principal Interest Total
2019 5 159,449 3 71,481 $ 230,930
2020 163,435 67,495 230,930
2021 167,521 63,409 230,930
2022 171,709 59,221 230,930
- 2023 176,002 54,928 230,930
2024-2028 948,252 206,398 1,154,650
2029-2033 1,072,859 81,788 1,154,647
$ 2859227 $ 604,720 $ 3,463,947

E. Capital Lease - Business-fype Activities

The City has entered into a lease agreement to purchase EMS and physio equipment from
Stryker Sales Gorporation. The lease agreement qualifies as a capital lease for accounting
purposes and, therefore, has been recorded at the present value of the future minimum lease
payments as of the date of inception. '

The assets acquired through the capital lese are as follows:

Machinery and equipment

Less: Accumulated depreciation

58

Business-type

Activities
] 121,741
121,741
(11,594}
3 110,147

40



NOTE 10: LONG-TERM DEBT - (Continued)

E. Capital Lease - Business-fype Activities - {Continued)

The future minimum lease obligations and the net present value of these minimum lease

payments as of September 30, 2018, are as follows:

Year Ending Business-type
September 30 Activities
2019 $ 17,392
2020 17,392
2021 17,392
2022 17,392
2023 17,391
Thereafter 17,391
Total minimum lease payments 104,350

Less: Amount representing interest -

Present value of minimum lease payments $ 104,350

F. Debt Reserves

There are certain reserve requirements for the various debt issues that are currently cutstanding.

The following are the reserve requirements by issue:

Reserve

Requirement
2006 Combination Certificates of Obligation 3 3,500

2006A Combination Certificates of Obligation 20,800
2015 Combination Certificates of Obligation 325,700
2016 General Obligation Refunding Bonds 130,600

$_ 480,700

The cash balances reserved for the reserve reguirements are as follows:

Fund Cash
Debt Service | & S Fund $ 240,674
Water Utility Fund 240,026
$ 480,700
59

3l



CONDUIT DEBT OBLIGATIONS

NOTE 11:

NOTE 12:

NOTE 13:

Lockhart-Luling Water Delivery System

The Guadalupe-Blanco River Authority (GBRA) contracted with the City in 2002 to provide a reliable
quantity of treated water through the Luling Water Treatment Plant. For the mutual benefit of the
parties, GBRA, the City of Luling, and the City of Lockhart entered into an agreement that enabled
GBRA to pump treated water from the Luling Water Treatment Piant to the Lockhart Treatment Plant
ground storage reservoir through the water delivery system.

GBRA issued $4,950,000 in Contract Revenue Refunding Bonds in fiscal year 2014 for the water
delivery system. As of September 30, 2018, there was $3,955,000 bonds outstanding. Through the
agreement, the City has agreed to pay GBRA on an annual basis for twenty-five years the following:

{a.) principal and interest on any bonds issued to pay off the financing, refinancing, design, permitting,
construction, and equipping the project; (b.) operation and maintenance of the water delivery system;
{c.} operation and maintenance of the Luling Water Treatment Plant, (d.) reserve and contingency
fund payments, if any; and (e.) capital recovery charges.

Lockhart Wastewater Treatment Plant

GBRA entered into a contract on June 15, 1994 with the City whereby GBRA would construct a
Regional Wastewater Treatment System to receive, treat and dispose of wastewater collected by the
City's collection system.

GBRA issued $4,025000 of Contract Revenue Refunding Bonds in the fiscal year 2010 for the
treatment system. As of September 30, 2018 there were no refunding bonds outstanding. Under the
provisions of the contract, the City has agreed to pay GBRA through 2018 the following:

(a.) all operation and maintenance expenses of the Regicnal Wastewater Treatment System; (b.)
amounts necessary fo pay debt service on the bonds; (c.) amounts necessary to establish and
maintain funds established by the resolution autherizing the issuance of the bonds; and {d.) amounts
necessary to restore any deficiency in funds established by the resolution.

CONTRACTUAL SETTLEMENT

The City reached a settlement agreement with a vendor during the 2008 fiscal year in a dispute over
the performance of equipment used in its utility system infrastructure. Under the settlement
agreement, the vendor agreed to pay the City a total of $3,210,173 in multiple instaliments extending
through the year 2018. As of September 30, 2018, the City had received $3,210,173 in scheduled
installment payments and therefore the receivable is $0 at September 30, 2018.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. During the year ended
September 30, 2018, the City purchased insurance through the Texas Municipal League (TML) to
cover its risk of loss in these areas. Substantially all risk of loss for events occurring during the
current year has been transferred to TML by the payment of insurance premiums. Settled claims
resulting from these risks have not exceeded insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

60

%2



NOTE 14: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the fiscal year ending September 30, 2018, LEDC (a discretely presented component unit of
the City) transferred a total of $88,321 to the City. The City’s Debt Service Fund, a nonmajor
governmental fund, received $48,093 to be used to pay debt service costs related to qualifying
ecohomic development projects previously paid for by debt issued by the City. The remaining
transfers pertained to the reimbursement of eligible current period expenditures incurred by the City
related to economic development activities and administrative services provided to LEDC by the City.

NOTE 15: CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

A. Litigaticn

B.

The City was not involved in any significant litigation as of September 30, 2018, and management
was not aware of any threatened litigation or unasserted claims as of that date.

Grant Programs

The City participates in grant programs that are governed by various rules and regulations of the
grantor agencies. Costs charged to the respective grant programs are subject to audit and
adjustment by the grantor agencies; therefore, to the extent that the City has not complied with the
rules and regulations governing the grants, refunds of any monies received may be required, and
the collectibility of any related receivables at September 30, 2018, may be impaired. In the
opinion of the administration of the City, there are no significant contingent liabilities relating to
compliance with the rules and regulations governing the Cify's various grant programs.

Water Purchase Commitment

The City has entered into an agreement with the Guadalupe-Blanco River Authority {GBRA) that
obligates the City to purchase its water from GBRA through December 31, 2027.

61

%%



NOTE 16: INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLFES, AND TRANSFERS

A

Interfund Receivables and Payables

At times during the fiscal year the various funds of the City were involved in transactions that
created interfund receivable and payable balances. These transactions related to such things as
the purchase of goods by one fund on behalf of another and the receipt of revenue in cne fund
that belongs to or is designated for another fund. Interfund receivable and payable balances as of
September 30, 2018, were as follows:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount

General Nonmajor Governmental $ 25974

Interfund Transfers

Each year various funds of the City transfer funds to other funds. These transfers are intended to
provide the necessary resources to meet the operating and debt service obiigations of the
receiving funds. During the current fiscal year, transfers between funds consisted of the following:

Transfers In

Nonmajor

Transfers Out General Govt. Total

General 3 - % 95613 $ 95613
Nonmaijor govt. 429,633 68,700 498,333
Electric 2,189,609 4633 2,194,242
Water 58,448 - 58,448
Wastewater 402,779 186,594 589,373
Nonmajor business-type 252,591 - 252 591

$ 3,333,060 % 355,540 $3,688,600

62

Y



NOTE 17: FUND BALANCES

The following is a detail of the governmental fund balances as of September 30, 2018:

Governmental Fund Balances

Nonspendable Restricted Committed  Unassigned Total
General
Prepaid expenditures $ 37870 % - 3 - § - 8 37,870
Inventory 11,563 - - - 11,563
Sidewalks - - 17,596 - 17,596
Revolving loan - - 263,827 - 263,827
Industrial park - - 272,454 - 272,454
Unassigned - - - 4451131 4,451,131
2015 Cert. of Oblig.
Various capital projects - 4,239,670 - - 4,239,670
Nonmajor Governmental
Prepaid expenditures 2,765 - - - 2,765
Various capital projects - 291,787 - - 291,787
General government - 35,067 - - 35,067
Tourism - 2,721 - - 2,721
Public safety - 227,044 - - 227,044
Public works - 903,976 - - 903,976
Debt service - 240,674 - - 240,674

3 52,198 $ 5940939 § 553877 $4451.131 $10,998,145

NOTE 18: TAX ABATEMENTS AND REBATES

The City of Lockhart enters into tax abatement and rebate agreements with local businesses under
the state local government code, title 12, subtitle A, chapter 380. Under the code, the governing body
of a municipality may establish and provide for the administration of one or more programs, including
programs for making loans or grants of public money and providing personnei and services of the
municipality, to promote state or local econcmic development and to stimulate business and
commercial acfivity in the municipality. For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018, the City of
Lockhart rebated sales taxes totaling $1,278 under this program. The City also rebated property
taxes in fiscal year 2018 totaling $17,703. The following tax rebate agreements exceeded 10 percent
of the total amount rebated:

$1,278 (or 50%) was rebated to a glass and mirror manufacturing company for purchasing land and
building a manufacturing and distribution facility. $17,703 of property tax rebates were paid to the
same company for improvements made to real property (53.6%-2015; 84.86%-2016; 77.48%-2017)
over the last three years and 100% on furniture, fixtures and equipment.

63

§5



NOTE 19: RESTATEMENT OF PREVIOUSLY ISSUED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The GASB has issued the following statement which became effective for fiscal year 2018:

GASE Statement No. 75: Accounting and Financial Reporting for Post-employment Benefits Other
than Pensions replaces previous authoritative literature. For plans that do not have formal trusts,
GASE Statement No. 75 requires state and local government employers to recognize the total OPEB
liability and the related OPEB expense on their financial statements along with the related deferred
outflows and inflows of resources. In addition to the deferred cutflows/inflows associated with plan
experience and assumption changes, the standard requires the benefit payments and administrative
costs incurred subsequent to the measurement date and before the end of the employer's reporting
period to be reported as a deferred outflow of resources.

The implementation of GASBE No. 75 resulted in the restatement of beginning net position for the
recording of the beginning OPER liability and the beginning deferred outflow for contributions made
after the measurement date. Prospectively applying the change results in the adjustments below.

In addition, there were restatements to the General Fund unassigned fund balance and the
Wastewater Fund unrestricted net position at September 30, 2017. The changes are listed below.

Government-wide Fund Level
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities General Electric Water Wastewater Sanitation

Net position at September 30, 2017,

as previously reported $ 17,190,031 § 25,160,851 $4,541515 $4,908,561 $9,202,227 $ 6,549,783 $ 714,318
Recording of unavailable revenue

on charges for services - - (74,320) - - . -
Recording of GBRA receivable - 245,824 - - - 245,824 -
Recording of Total OPEB - Health

liability as of September 30, 2017 (311,006} - - - - - -
Recording of Total OPEB - SDB

liability as of September 30, 2017 (279,660} {(65,599) - (37,978) (13,810) (6,906) (6,905)
Deferral for OPEB - SDB confributions

made after the measurement date 8,622 2,028 - 1,172 427 216 213

Net position at September 30, 2017,

as resfated

$ 16,607,987 $ 25343204 $4,467 195 $4,871,7556 $9,188,844 § 6,788,817 § 707,627

64

gb



NOTE 20: LOCKHART ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

As described in Note 1, the Lockhart Economic Development Corporation is @ component unit of the
City. it is reported in a separate coiumn to emphasize that it is legally separate for accounting
purposes from the City. Following are note disclosures relating to this component unit:

A. Organization

The Lockhart Economic Development Corporation (LEDC), a public instrumentality and nonprofit
corporation, was created under Section 4B of the Development Corporation Act of 1979,
Article 5190.6 of the Revised Civil Statutes of Texas (the “Act”} on June 26, 1996. Under the Act,
the Board of Directors consists of seven members appointed by and who serve at the pleasure of
the City Council of the City for two-year terms.

LEDC may enter into any project authorized by the Act including, but not limited to, such projects
as promotion and development of new and expanded business enterprises, job training centers,
infrastructure improvements, public safety, municipal buildings, civic centers, recreation facilities,
and other related facilities.

LEDC prepares annual financial statements as of September 30" of each year. LEDC reports its
financial resuits as a governmental type of entity.

B. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting and reporting policies of LEDC conform to GAAP, as applicable to governmental
units. The more significant of LEDC's accounting policies are described below.

1. Reporting Entity - Component Unit Status

LEDC meets the criteria established by GASB to be a component unit of the City, due to the
fact that the City Council of Lockhart appoints each member of its Board of Directors.
LEDC is included in the City's annual financial statements as a discretely presented
component unit.

2. Government-wide and Fund Accounting

The combined government-wide and fund financial statements (i.e., the Statement of Net
Position and Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and the Statement of Activities and
Governmental Fund Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance) report
information on all activities of LEDC.

The combined Statement of Activities and Governmental Fund Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balance demonstrate the degree to which the direct expenses of
LEDC are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with the LEDC's specific function, that of economic development. Program
revenues include a) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly
benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and
by grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly
included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. For the year
ended September 30, 2018, all of LEDC's revenues were classified as general revenues.

The government-wide and fund financial statements are provided for LEDC with a column
for adjustments between the two statements.

65

'



NOTE 20:

LOCKHART ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION - {Continued)

B. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - (Continued)

3

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide information (i.e., the columns labeled “Staterent of Net Position” and
“Statement of Activities”} in the financial statements is reporied using the economic
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of
the timing of related cash flows.

The governmental fund (i.e., the cclumn labeled “General Fund") financial statements are
reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual
basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and
available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current pericd. For this
purpose, LEDC considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the
end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is
incurred.

Sales taxes and interest revenue associated with the current fiscal period are all considered
to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal
period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when
LEDC receives cash,

The Corporation reports the following governmental fund type:

Major Fund - The General Fund is LEDC’s operating fund. All financial resources are
accounted for in the General Fund. The General Fund’s transactions consist primarily of
revenues realized from the collection of sales tax revenue dedicated to the purpose of
economic development and transfers to the City (reported as economic development
expenditures) to be used for purposes authorized by LEDC's enabiling legislation.

LEDC reports no other funds.

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments

Cash includes all amounts on deposit with financial instifutions in demand accounts. All
short-term investments that are highly liquid are considered to be cash equivalents. An
investment is considered highly liquid if it is convertible to a known amount of cash and has
a maturity date of no longer than three months from the date the investment was
purchased.

LEDC may invest in any instruments authorized by the Public Funds Investment Act of the
State of Texas. These instruments include, but are not limited to, the following: obligations
of the United States or its agencies and instrumentalities; direct obligations of the State of
Texas or its agencies and instrumentalities; certificates of deposit issued by state or
national banks which are guaranteed or insured by the FDIC; and deposits in statewide
investment pools which meet certain restrictive criteria. LEDC reports its investments at fair
value.

&6

$8




NOTE 20: LOCKHART ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION - (Continued)

B. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - (Continued)

5.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The Board of Directors submits an annual budget to the City for approval in accordance with
the Texas Municipal Budget Act. By September of each year, the Board of Directors, with
approval by the City, adopts an annual fiscal year budget for the General Fund. Once
approved, the Board of Directors may amend the legaily adopted budget when unexpected
modifications are required in estimated revenues and appropriations.

The budget of LEDC is prepared on a modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are
budgeted in the year receipts are expected, and expenditures are budgeted in the year that
the applicable purchase occurs. Any unencumbered appropriations for annually budgeted
funds lapse at fiscal year-end.

Federal Income Taxes

LEDC is exempt from Federal income taxes due to its classification as a governmental
entity under the guidelines of the Internal Revenue Service.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the government-wide and fund financial statements in conformity with
GAAP requires LEDC to make estimates and assessments that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures during the
reporting pericd. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

C. Deposits and Investments

LEDC pools its funds with the City for investment, and as such, follows the City's poficies and
procedures pertaining to investment transactions. Following is a discussion of various risks
associated with the City's (and accordingly LEDC's) investments as of and for the year ending
September 30, 2018:

1.

Interest Rate Risk

In accordance with the City’s investment policy, the City manages its exposure to declines
in fair values by limiting the weighted average maturity of its investment portfolio for
investments to one year or less from the time of purchase.

Credit Risk

As previously mentioned, it is LEDC’s poiicy to limit its investments to those that are
authorized under the Texas Public Funds Investment Act. Additionally, any money market
mutual funds or local government investment pools must be rated no lower than AAA by at
least one nationally recognized rating service. As of September 30, 2018, TexPool was
rated AAAm by Standard and Poor's and MBIA Texas CLASS was rated AAA/N-1+ by Fitch,

Concentration of Credit Risk

The City's investment policy requires that the investment portfolio shall be diversified in
terms of investment instruments, maturity scheduling, and financial institutions to reduce the
risk of loss resulting from over concentration of assets in a specific class of investments,
specific maturity, or specific user. As such, at year-end LEDC was not exposed to
concentration of credit risk.

87

3



NOTE 20: LOCKHART ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION - (Continued)

C. Depesits and Investments - (Continued)

4, Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits

Custodial credit risk refers to the risk that in the event of a bank failure, LEDC’s deposits
may not be returned fo it. The City's investment policies require that deposits at financial
institutions be insured by the FDIC and/or collateralized by securities pledged to the City by
the depository in an amount equal to at least 102% of the carrying value of deposits heid.
As of September 30, 2018, and for the year then ended, the City and LEDC were not
exposed to any custodial credit risk.

It is managements’ understanding that the LEDC, a discretely presented component unit,
and any other 4A and 4B economic development entity is not considered a “political
subdivision” as defined by Section 330.15 of the FDIC's regulation. Therefore, the
Corporation's bank deposits may not be insured above $250,000 even though they are
secured by the pledged collateral agreement of the City.

5. Custodial Credit Risk - Investments

For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the City
will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside party. The City's investment policy requires that securities be held
in the name of the City and that all securities are purchased using the delivery versus
payment method. As of September 30, 2018, and for the year then ended, the City and
LEDC were not exposed to any custodial credit risk.

D. Saies Taxes

LEDC, by law, is to receive one-half cent of the sales tax earned by the City and paid monthly to
the City by the State of Texas. LEDC's outstanding receivable of the sales tax earned by the City
for the year ended September 30, 2018, was $147,819. The City collects the sales tax from the
State of Texas and then pays LEDC's portion monthly when collected.

E. Resiricted Net Position

The legislation under which LEDC was created restricts the use of sales tax revenue received by
LEDC to projects related to quality of life improvements, including economic development that will
attract and retain primary employers. Some of the fypes of projects authorized in the legislation
are listed previously. There were no restricions on LEDGC's net position as of
September 30, 2018, other than those imposed through the enabling legislation.

F. Inventory

nventory consists of various tracts of land that LEDC has purchased to be used for future
economic development projects. There was no change in the inventory from the previous year.

68



NOTE 20: LOCKHART ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION - (Continued)

G. Capital Assets

The LEDC’s capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2018 was as follows;

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Discretely presented
component unit
Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land $ 108,000 9 - 3 - $ 108,000
Total capital assets not being depreciated 108,000 - - 108,000
Capital assets, being depreciated
Buildings £12,000 - - 612,000
Total capital assets being depreciated 612,000 - - 612,000
Less accumulated depreciation for
Buildings 73,440 12,240 - 85,680
Total accumulated depreciation 73,440 12,240 - 85,680
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 538,560 (12,240) - 526,320
Discretely presented component unit
capital assets, net $ 646560 $ (122400 % - 634,320

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the LEDGC as follows:

Discretely presented component unit
General government $ 12,240

H. Long-Term Debt

An analysis of changes in long term-debt is as follows:

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year

Discretely presented

component unit
Notes payable $ 201905 $ - % (17,738) $ 1841689 § 19,040
Compensated absences 2,684 5,133 (6,791) 1,026 1,026
Total discretely presented

component unit $ 204588 $ 5133 $ (24527) 3% 185195 $ 20,066

69

9



NOTE 20: LOCKHART ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION - {Continued)

H. Long-Term Debt - {Continued)

Maturities of long term-debt is as follows:

Year Ending
September 30 Principal Interest Total

2018 $ 19,040 $ 9213 § 28,253

2020 19,864 8,337 28,301
2021 20,933 7,413 28,346
2022 21,850 6,443 28,393
2023 23,015 5,427 28,442
2024-2027 78,267 10,541 89,808

$ 184169 § 47374 $ 231,543

I.  Contingencies and Commitments

1. Litigation

LEDC was not invalved in any litigation as of September 30, 2018, and management was
not aware of any threatened litigation or unasserted claims as of that date.

2. Commitments

The LEDC is scheduled to make annual installments ranging from $48,083 to $65,676 to
the City for the 2015 Combination Certificates of Obligation through August 1, 2035.

J. Tax Abatements and Rebates

The Lockhart Economic Development Corporation enters into tax rebate agreements with local
businesses under the state local government code, title 12, subtitie C1, chapter 505. Under the code,
the governing body of a municipality may create a Type B corporation and provide for the
administration of one or more programs, including programs for making loans or grants of public
money to promote state or local economic development and to stimulate business and commercial
activity In the municipality. For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018, the Lockhart Economic
Development Corporation rebated sales taxes totaling $639 under this program, including the
following tax rebate agreement that exceeded 10 percent of the total amount rebated:

A 50 percent sales tax rebate to a glass and mirror manufacturing company for purchasing land and
building a manufacturing and distribution facility. The rebate amounted to $639.

70



Required Supplementary Information

4%



CITY OF LOCKHART, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND

For the year ended Septernber 30, 2018

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Actual Positive
Original / Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES .
Property taxes $ 3525392 $ 3642474 % 117,082
Sales and other taxes 1,871,048 2,013,845 142,797
Fines, fees, and forfeitures 283,164 364,423 81,259
Licenses and permits 110,499 192,622 82,123
Intergovernmental and grants 211,850 323,298 111,448
Investment 25,352 85,701 64,349
Miscellaneous 148,772 263,684 114,912
Total revenues 6,176,077 6,890,047 713,970
EXPENDITURES
Current
General government 2,428,265 1,891,347 536,918
Public safety 4,908,827 4,978,250 (69,423)
Public works 1,491,447 1,593,894 (102,547)
Heailth and welfare 10,682 11,396 (714)
Culture and recreation 963,142 938,896 24,246
Capital outlay 374,158 126,365 247,793
Total expenditires 10,176,521 9,540,248 636,273
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (4,000,444) {(2,650,201) 1,350,243
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES}
Transfers in 3,289,429 3,333,060 43,631
Transfers out {96,000) {95,613} 387
Total other financing sources (uses) 3,193,429 3,237,447 44,018
Net change in fund balance (807,015) 587,246 1,394,261
Fund balance - beginning, as restated 4,467,195 4,467,195 -
Fund balance - ending $ 3660180 $ 5054441 $ 1,394,261

The accompanying notes to required supplementary information are an integral part of this schedule.

71



CITY OF LOCKHART, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS

TEXAS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT SYSTEM - PENSION
Last ten years

Total Pension Liability

Service cost

Interest (on the total pension liability)

Difference between expected and actual experience

Change of assumptions

Benefit payments, including refunds of employee
contributicns

Net Change in Total Pension Liability

Total Pension Liability - Beginning
Total Pension Liability - Ending (a)

Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Confributions - Employer

Contributions - Empioyee

Net investment income

Benefit payments, including refunds of employee
contributions

Administrative expense

Other

Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending (b}
Net Pension Liability - Ending (a) - (b)

Ptan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage
of Total Pension Liability

Covered Payroll

Net Pension Liability as a Percentage
of Covered Payroll

NOTE: Information for the prior six years was not readily available. The City will compile the respective

Measurement Year
2014 2015 2016
659,622 $ 755,292 % 809,908
1,759,695 1,840,606 1,824,544
(275,265) 541,546 213,804
- 143,888 -
{987,219) (1,084,811) (1,087,681)
1,156,833 2,186,521 1,850,576
25,302,299 26,459,132 28,655,653
26,459,132 $ 28655653 § 30,508,229
662,456 % 721,903 % 708,591
321,581 352,824 358,731
1,282,369 34,935 1,599,743
(987,219) {1,084,811) {(1,097,681)
(13,388) (21,283) (18,076)
{1,101) {1,051) {974)
1,264,698 2,517 1,550,334
22,415,156 23,679,854 23,682,371
23679864 $ 23682371 $ 252327056
2779278 $ 4973282 $ 57273524
89.50% 82.64% 82.71%
5,359686 % 5730585 $ 5,937,749
51.86% 86.78% 88.81%

information over the next six years as provided by TMRS on a "measurement date" basis.

The accompanying notes to required supplementary information are an integral part of this schedule.

72

0%



Measurement Year
2017

$ 803,650
2,050,665
(95,374)

(1,055,658)

1,703,283

30,506,229

3 32,209,512

3 779,767
358,239
3,497,425

(1,055,658)
(18,124)
(918)

3,560,731

25,232,705

3 28,793,436

3 3,416,076
89.39%
) 5,970,653
57.21%

73



CITY OF LOCKHART, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

TEXAS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT SYSTEM - PENSION
L ast ten fiscal years

NOTE:

Actuarially Determined Contribution

Contribution in relaton to the actuarially
determined contribution

Contribution deficiency (excess)

Covered payroll

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll

Fiscal Year
2015 2016 2017
692664 % 734637 $ 754,327
(692,664) (734,837) (754,327)
- 3 - % -
5,617,224 $ 6,129,529 % 5,911,532
12.33% 11.99% 12.76%

Information for the prior six fiscal years was not readily available. The City will compile the respective

information over the next six fiscal years.

The accompanying hotes to required supplementary information are an integral part of this schedule.

'



Fiscal Year

2018
5 820,948
(829,948)
. -
$ 8,300,160
13.17%

75

(8



CITY OF LOCKHART, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
TEXAS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT SYSTEM - SUPPLEMENTAL DEATH BENEFIT
Last ten years

Measurement Year

2017

Total OPEB Liability
Service cost 3 15,624
Interest (on the total OPEB liability) 13,276
Change of benefit terms -
Difference between expected and actual experience -
Change of assumptions 31,482
Benefit payments (3,582)
Net Change in Total Pension Liability 56,700
Total OPEB Liability - Beginning 345,259
Total OPEB Liability - Ending _ $ 401,959

Covered Payroll $ 5,970,653

Total OPEB Liability as a Percentage

of Covered Payroll 6.73%

NOTE: Information for the prior nine years was not readily available. The City will compile the respective
information over the next nine years as provided by TMRS on a "measurement date” basis.

The accompanying notes to required supplementary information are an integral part of this schedule.

76

X



CITY OF LOCKHART, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

TEXAS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT SYSTEM - SUPPLEMENTAL DEATH BENEFIT
Last ten fiscal years

Fiscal Year
2018

Actuarially Determined Contribution $ 3,303

Contribution in relation to the actuarially determined contribution (3,303)

Contribution deficiency (excess) $ -
Covered payroll 5 6,300,160
Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 0.0524%

NOTE: Information for the prior nine years was not readily avaitable. The City will compile the respective
information over the next nine years as provided by TMRS on a "measurement date" basis.

The accompanying notes to required supplementary information are an integral part of this schedule.
77

00



CITY OF LOCKHART, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIQOS
RETIREE HEALTHCARE

Last ten years

Measurement Year

2018

Total OPEB Liability
Service cost $ 11,326
Interest {on the total OPEB liability) 15,641
Change of benefit terms -
Difference between expected and actual experience -
Change of assumptions -
Benefit payments {20,086}
Net Change in Total Pension Liability 6,881
Total OPEB Liability - Beginning 383,961
Total OPEB Liabitity - Ending $ 390,842

Covered Payroll $ 3,778,438

Total OPER Liability as a Percentage

of Covered Payroll 10.34%

NOTE: Information for the prior nine years was not readily available. The City will compile the respective
information over the next nine years as provided by TMRS on a "measurement date" basis.

The accompanying notes to required supplementary information are an integral part of this schedule.
78



CITY OF LOCKHART, TEXAS
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
September 30, 2018

NOTE 1: BUDGETARY BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
The City annuaily adopts budgets that are prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting,
which is consistent with generally accepted accounting principles.
NOTE 2: BUDGETARY LEGAL COMPLIANCE
There were several situations of expenditures exceeding the amounts appropriated during the fiscal
year 2017-2018.
Final Negative
Fund/Department Budget Actual Variance
General Fund
Public Safety $ 4908827 $ 4978250 3 (69,423)
Public Works 1,491,447 1,593,994 (102,547)
Health and welfare 10,682 11,396 (714)
These over expenditures were funded by available fund balance in the General Fund.
NOTE 3: _DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN

Valuation Date

Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of December 31 and become
effective in January, 13 months later.

Metheds and Assumptions Used to Determine Contribution Rates

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal

Amortization Method Level Percentage of Payroll, Closed

Remaining Amortization Period 28 years

Asset Valuation Method 10 year Smoothed Market; 15% Soft Corridor
Inflation 2.5%

Salary Increases 3.50% to 10.5% including inflation

Investment Rate of Return 6.75%

Retirement Age Experience-based table of rates that are specific

to the City's plan of benefits. Last updated for
the 2015 valuation pursuant to an experience
study of the period 2010-2014

Mortality RP2000 Combined Mortality Tabie with Blue
Collar Adjustment with male rates multiplied by
109% and female rates multiplied by 103% and
projected on a fully generational basis with
scale BB.

Other [Information

There were no benefit changes during the year.

79

[D%



CITY OF LOCKHART, TEXAS
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
September 30, 2018

NOTE 4: SUPPLEMENTAL DEATH BENEFIT PLAN - OPEB

No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB
Statement No. 75 to pay related benefits.

There were no changes in plan provisions or assumptions during the year.

NOTE 5: RETIREE HEALTH BENEFIT PLAN - OPEB

No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB
Statement No. 75 to pay related benefits.

There were no changes in plan provisions or assumptions during the year.

80

0%



Combining and Individual Fund Statements

oY



CITY OF LOCKHART, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
September 30, 2018

ASSETS

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables (net)
Prepaid expenditures

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Due to other funds
Deposits

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavaitable revenue
Total deferred inflows of resources

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable

Prepaid expendituras
Restricted

General government

Tourism

Public safety

Public works

Debt service

Various capital projscts
Total fund balances

Total liabilities, deferred inflows and
fund balances

Total Total Total
Nonmajor Nonmajor Nonmajor
Special Debt Capital

Revenue Funds Service Fund Project Funds Total
5 1,080,731 $ 2408674 $ 337,437 $ 1,658,842
136,751 58,269 - 195,020
10,339 - - 10,339
$ 1,227,821 § 288943 § 337437 $ 1,864,201
$ 14,089 § - § - $ 14,089
25,974 - - 25974
- - 45 650 45,650
40,063 - 45,650 85,713
16,185 58,269 - 74,454
16,185 58,269 - 74,454
2,765 - - 2,765
35,067 - - 35,067
2,721 - - 2,721
227,044 - - 227,044
903,976 - - 903,976
- 240,674 - 240,674
- - 291,787 201,787
1,171,573 240,674 291,787 1,704,034
3 1,227,821 § 298,943 § 337437 $ 1.864.201

81



CITY OF LOCKHART, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

September 30, 2018

Total Total Total
Nonmajor Nonmajor Nonmajor
Special Debt Capital
Revenue Funds  Service Fund  Project Funds Total

REVENUES

Property taxes $ - % 710351 % - & 710,351

Sales and other taxes 101,120 - - 101,120

Fines, fees, and forfeitures 863,134 - - 863,134

Intergovernmental and grants : 135,326 - - 135,326

Investment 16,016 10,840 5,681 32,537

Miscellaneous - 59,612 - 99,612
Total revenues 1,115,596 780,803 5,681 1,902,080
EXPENDITURES
Current

General government 42 340 - - 42,340

Public safety 234,269 - - 234,269

Public works 133,411 - - 133,411

Culture and recreation 10,835 - - 10,835
Capital outlay - - 75625 75,625
Debt service

Principal retirement - 601,470 - 601,470

Interest and fiscal charges - 483,207 - 483,207

Paying agent and issue costs - 1,000 - 1,000
Total expenditures 420,855 1,085,677 75,625 1,582,157
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures 694,741 (304,874) (69,944) 319,923
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in 95,613 259,927 - 355,540

Transfers out (498,333) - - (498,333)
Total other financing sources {uses) {402,720) 258,927 - (142,793)
Net change in fund balances 292 021 (44,947) (69,944) 177,130
Fund balances - beginning, as restated 879,552 285,621 361,731 1,526,904
Fund balances - ending 3 1,171,573 8 240674 § 291,787 § 1,704,034

82

106



CITY OF LOCKHART, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
September 30, 2018

Radio
Tower Hotel / Motel Road Road
Equipment Forfeited  Occupancy TCEQ NP3 Impact Impact
Replacement _Property Tax Grant Fees #1 Fees #2

ASSETS
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 59955 % 3,784 % 311 % 6001 $ 557478 $ 52,355

Receivables (net) - - 20,038 - - -

Prepaid expenditures - - - - - -
Total assets $ 59955 % 3,784 % 20,349 § 6001 $ 557478 $ 52,355
LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 3 - 9 - % 10,049 % - 3§ - % -

Due to other funds - - 7,579 - - -
Total liabilities - - 17,628 - - -
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF

RESOURCES

Unavailable revenue - - - - - -
Total deferred inflows of resources - - - - - -
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable - - - - - -
Restricted

General government - - - 6,001 - -

Tourism - - 2,721 - - -

Public safety 59,955 3,784 - - - -

Public works - - - - 557 478 52,355
Total fund balances 58,855 3,784 2,721 6,001 557,478 52,355
Total liabilities, deferred inflows

and fund balances $ 58055 $ 3,784 § 20349 3 6001 9 557478 $ 52,355

83



Municipal Radio Municipal Juvenile
Court System Court Child Court Case Truancy
Technology  Maintenance Security Safety Efficiency Manager Court
$ - $ 88518 &% 11,137 19,747 % 10,544 % 19,975 § 1,366
4,329 - 3,247 815 792 6,351 651
9,634 - - - - - -
3 13963 3 88,518 % 14,384 20562 % 11,336 & 26,326 % 2,017
$ 83 § 3252 § - - % - 3 - 3 -
7,491 - - - - - -
7574 3,252 - - - - -
4,329 - 3,247 815 792 6,351 651
4,328 - 3,247 815 792 6,351 651
2,080 - - - - - -
- 85,266 11,137 19,747 10,544 19,975 1,366
2,060 85,266 11,137 19,747 10,544 19,975 1,366
3 13,963 § 88,518 % 14,384 20562 % 11,336 8 26,326 % 2,017
{continued)
84

(04



CITY OF LOCKHART, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Septernber 30, 2018

ASSETS

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables (net)
Prepaid expenditures

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Due to other funds

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue

Total deferred inflows of resources

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable
Restricted

General government

Tourism

Public safety

Public works

Total fund balances

Total liabilities, deferred inflows
and fund halances

Law
Transportation  Drainage Enforcement
Cable System System Education -
Education Improvmts Improvmts Police Total
$ 22828 § 92178 $ 118579 § 15,975 1,080,731
6,238 64,506 29,784 - 136,751
- - - 705 10,339
$ 29066 $ 156684 $ 148,363 I 16,680 1,227,821
$ - % - 3 - $ 705 14,089
- - 10,904 - 25,974
- - 10,904 705 40,063
- - - - 16,185
- - - - 16,185
- - - 705 2,765
29,066 - - - 35,067
- - - - 2721
- - - 15,270 227,044
- 156,684 137,459 - 903,976
29,066 156,684 137,459 15,975 1,171,573
$ 20066 $ 156684 $ 148,363 § 16,680 1,227,821
(concluded)
85



CITY OF LOCKHART, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
September 30, 2018

Radio
Tower Hotel / Motel Road Road
Equipment Forfeited Occupancy TCEQ NPS Impact Impact
Replacement _ Property Tax Grant Fees #1 Fees #2

REVENUES

Sales and other taxes 5 - 3 - % 82180 $% - % - 3 -

Fines, fees, and forfeitures - 64 - - 136,763 95,619

Intergovernmental and grants - - - - - -

Investment 1,001 58 143 94 7,808 680
Total revenues 1,001 122 82,323 94 144,572 96,299
EXPENDITURES
Current

General government - - 31,345 - - -

Public safety 5,115 - - - - -

Public works - - - - 50,000 50,000

Culture and recreation - - 10,835 - - -
Total expenditures 5,115 - 42,180 - 50,000 50,000
Excess {(deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures {4,114) 122 40,143 94 04 572 46,299
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in - - - R . _

Transfers out - - (40,000} - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) - - {40,000} - - -
Net change in fund balances {4,114) 122 143 94 94,572 46,299
Fund balances - beginning 64,069 3,662 2,578 5,907 462,908 6,056
Fund balances - ending $ 59955 § 3784 % 2721 % 6001 $ 557478 $ 527355

86



Municipal Radic Municipal Juvenile

Court System Court Child Court Case Truancy
Technology  Maintenance Security Safety Efficiency Manager Court

3 - 3 - % - $ - § - % - 3 -
5,911 - 4,439 810 1,109 8,724 968
- 133,191 - - - - -
- 2,200 159 302 155 237 14
5,911 135,391 4,598 1,112 1,264 8,961 982
11,382 212,912 4,180 - - - -
11,382 212,912 4180 - - _ i
(5471) (77.521) 413 1,112 1,264 8,961 982
- 95,613 - - - - -
- 95613 - - - - -
(5,471) 18,092 413 1,112 1,264 8,961 982
7,531 67,174 10,719 18,635 8,280 11,014 384
3 2,060 % 85266 $ 11,137 § 19,747  § 10,544 § 19,975 § 1,366

{continued)

87



CITY OF LOCKHART, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

September 30, 2018

Law
Transportation  Drainage Enforcement
Cable System System Education -
Education Improvmts Improvmts Police Total

REVENUES -

Sales and other taxes $ 18840 &% - % - $ - % 101120

Fines, fees, and forfeitures - 417,534 191,193 - 863,134

Intergovernmental and grants - - - 2,135 135,326

Investment 335 1,064 1,525 240 16,016
Total revenues 19,275 418,598 162,718 2,375 1,115,596
EXPENDITURES
Current

General government 9,858 1,137 - - 42 340

Public safety - - - 680 234 2869

Public works - - 33,411 - 133,411

Culture and recreation - - - - 10,835
Total expenditures 9,858 1,137 33,411 680 420,855
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures 9,417 417,461 159,307 1,695 694,741
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in - - - - 95,613

Transfers out - {390,000} (68,333) - (498,333)
Total other financing sources (uses) - (320,000) (68,333) - {(402,720)
Net change in fund balances 9,417 27,461 90,974 1,895 292 021
Fund balances - beginning 19,649 129,223 46,485 14,280 879,552
Fund balances - ending $ 29066 $ 156684 $ 137459 3 15975 % 1,171,573

(concluded)
88



CITY OF LOCKHART, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
September 30, 2018

Clearfork Clearfork Maple 2009
Detention Section 1 2201 Trail Certificates of
Basin Sidewalk Project Obligation Total
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 21,964 3§ 16,614 § 15,000 $ 283,859 337,437
Total assets $ 21,964 % 16,614 $ 15,000 § 283,859 337,437
LIABILITIES
Deposits ) 17,450 § 13200 § 15,000 $ - 45,650
Total liabilities 17,450 13,200 15,000 - 45,650
FUND BALANCES
Restricted
Various capital projects 4,514 3414 - 283,859 201,787
Total fund balances 4514 3,414 - 283,859 291,787
Tota] liabilities and fund balances $ 21,964 § 16614 § 15000 § 283,859 337,437
89



CITY OF LOCKHART, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS

September 30, 2018

REVENUES
[nvestment
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures

Fund balances - beginning

Fund balances - ending

Clearfork Clearfork 2009
Detention Section 1 Certificates of 7
Basin Sidewalk Obligation Total
3 344 259 $ 5078 § 5,681
344 259 5,078 5,681
- - 75,625 75,625
- - 75,625 75,625
344 259 (70,547) (69,944)
4,170 3,155 354,406 361,731
3 4,514 3,414 -§ 283,859 § 291,787
20



CITY OF LOCKHART, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUND - DEBT SERVICE FUND

For the year ended Seplember 30, 2018

With comparalive fotals for the year ended September 38, 2017

2018 2017
Variance
Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
REVENUES
Taxes

Ad valorem 3 685808 % 710,351 % 24543 3 692,161
Investment income - 10,840 10,840 5,115
Miscellaneous 59,612 59,612 - 72,970
Total revenues 745,420 780,803 35,383 770,246
EXPENDITURES
Debt service

Principal retirement 601,470 601,470 - 587,160

inferest and fiscal charges 483,207 483,207 - 500,948

Paying agent fees and issue costs 800 1,000 (200) 1,200
Total expenditures 1,085,477 1,085,677 (200) 1,089,308
Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over expenditures {340,057) (304,874) 35,183 (319,062)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in 326,594 259,927 {66,667} 326,594
Total other financing sources (uses) 326,594 259,927 (66,667) 326,594
Net change in fund balance $ (13,463) (44047 % (31,484) 7,532
Fund balance at beginning of year 285,621 278,089
Fund balance at end of year $ 240,674 3 285,621

91




CITY OF LOCKHART, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
September 30, 2018

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables (net)

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets
Capital assets
Land and other asseis not being depreciated
Buildings, improvements, and equipment (net)
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESQURCES
Deferred outflow related to pension
Deferred outflow related to OPEB

Total deferred outflows of resources

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Payrolt related payables
Customer deposifs
Unearned revenue

Accrued compensated absences
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities
Net pension liability
OPEB liability
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred inflow related to pension
Total deferred inflows of resources
NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

Total net position

92

Sanitation Airport Total
479,332 118,661 3 597,993
258,890 500 259,390
738,222 119,161 857,383
120,409 72,161 192,570

65,549 1,391,992 1,457,541
185,858 1,464,153 1,650,111
924,180 1,683,314 2,507,494

16,361 - 16,361

747 - 747
17,108 - 17,108
97,110 260 97,370
5,220 - 5,220
150 6,875 7,025

- 2,758 2758

5,146 - 5,146
107,626 9,893 117,519

68,322 - 68,322

15,856 - 15,856

84,178 - 84,178
191,804 9,893 201,697

15,211 - 15,211

15,211 - 15,211
185,958 1,464,153 1,650,111
548,315 109,268 657,583
734,273 1,573,421 $ 2,307,694




CITY OF LOCKHART, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
For the year ended Septernber 30, 2018

Sanitation Airport Total

OPERATING REVENUES

Charges for services $ 1,689,309 $ 70,993 $ 1,760,302

Miscellaneous 19,503 440 19,943
Total operating revenues 1,708,812 71,433 1,780,245
OPERATING EXPENSES

Personnel services 230,755 - 230,755

Contracts and services 1,201,443 25,683 1,227,126

Materials and supplies 8,332 - 8,332

Maintenance and repairs 10,104 21,629 31,733

Depreciation 9,186 52,818 62,004

Miscellanecus 1,291 - 1,291
Total operating expenses 1,461,111 100,130 1,561,241
Operating income before nonoperating revenues

(expenses) and transfers 247,701 {28,697) 219,004
NONOPERATING REVENUES {(EXPENSES)

Investment income 7,486 1,661 9,147

Gain {loss} on disposition of capital assets 3,510 - 3,510

Noncapital grants and contributions 20,540 - 20,540
Net nonoperating revenues (expenses) 31,536 1,661 33,197
Income {loss) before transfers 279,237 (27,038) 252,201
Transfers out (252,591) - {252,591}
Change in net position 26,646 (27,038) (390)
Net position - beginning, as restated 707,627 1,600,457 2,308,084
Net position - ending $ 734,273 $ 1,573,421 $ 2307694

23

11



CITY OF LOCKHART, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

For the year ended September 30, 2018

CASH FLOWS

FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash received from customers

Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services
Cash payments to employees for services

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Increase (decrease) in customer deposits
Noncapital grants and confributions
Transfers out to other funds

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities

CASH FLOWS

FROM CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of capital assets

Proceeds from

sale of capital assets

Net cash used by capital financing activities

CASH FLOWS

FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Investment income
Net cash provided {used) by investing activities

Net increase in

Cash and cash

cash and cash equivalents

equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET
CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to
cash provided
Depreciation

reconcile operating income to net
by operating acftivities:

Change in assets and liabilities:

{Increase)
{Increase
{Increase
Increase
Increase
Increase
Increase
Increase
Increase

e vt

— i —— — — p— _—

decrease in receivables

decrease in deferred outflow related to pension

decrease in deferred outflow related to OPEB

decrease) in accounts payable

decrease) in payroll related payables
decrease) in unearned revenue

decrease) in accrued compensated absences
decrease) in net pension liability

decrease) in OPEB liability

Increase {decrease} in deferred inflow related to pension
Net cash provided by operating activities

94

Sanitation Airport Total
$ 1687835 % 70538 $ 1,758,373
(1,216,578) (47,368) {1,263,946)
(216,677) - (216,677)
254 580 23,170 277,750
100 (75) 25
20,540 - 20,540
{252,591) - {252,591)
{231,951) (75) (232,026)
(22,570) - (22,570)
3,510 - 3,610
(19,060) - {19,060)
7,486 1,661 9,147
7,486 1,661 9,147
11,055 24,756 35,811
468,277 93,905 562,182
$ 479332 § 118661 $ 597,993
$ 247,701 $ (28,697) % 219,004
9,186 52,818 62,004
(20,977) 255 (20,722)
25,506 - 25,596
{534) - {534)
4,592 (56) 4,536
1,054 - 1,054
- {1,150) (1,150)
1,291 - 1,291
(37,148) - (37,148)
8,051 - 8,951
14,868 - 14,868
$ 254,580 $ 23,170 $ 277,750




CITY OF LOCKHART, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

September 30, 2018

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Due to others

Total liabilities

NET POSITION
Held for various purposes

95

Private Purpose Trusts

Brock
Glosserman Cabin
Trust Trust Total
521 1,218 1,739
521 1,218 1,739
521 1,218 1,739




Agency Funds

Confiscated Unclaimed Bicycle
Property Property Helmet Total
10,398 $ 8,826 $ 1,080 $ 20,304
10,398 $ 8,826 $ 1,080 3 20,304
10,398 3 8,826 3 1,080 $ 20,304
10,398 3 8,826 $ 1,080 3 20,304
96



CITY OF LOCKHART, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

PRIVATE PURPQOSE TRUSTS
For the year ended September 30, 2018

ADDITIONS
Investment income
Total additions

DEDUCTIONS
Change in net position
Net position - beginning

Net position - ending

a7

Brock
Glosserman Cabin
Trust Trust Total
8 19 27
B 19 27
B 19 27
513 1,199 1,712
521 1,218 1,739

A



OVERALL COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL
SECTION

|77



HARRISON, WALDROP & UHEREK, L.L.P.

STEPHEN W. VAN MANEN, CPA

DENMIS C. CIHAL, CPA

ERIC L, KUCERA, CPA
CLAYTON P. VAN PELT, CPA
ROBERT W. SCHAAR, CPA
MELISSA M. TERRY, CPA

CERTFED PUBLC ACCCUNTANTS
101 5. MAIN, S5UITE 400 VOICE: [341) 573-3255
VICTORIA, TEXAS 77901-8142 FAX: {341} 573-9531

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER
MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING
STANDARDS

The Honorable Mayor and Members
of the City Council
City of Lockhart, Texas

Mayar and Members of Council:

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable fo financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptrofler General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the City of Lockhart, Texas (the “City"} as of and for the year ended September 30, 2018, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements and
have issued our report thereon dated March 13, 2019. The financial statements of the Lockhart
Economic Development Corporation were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing
Sfandards.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City's internal control
over financial reporting (intemal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control.

A deficiency in internal confrol exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on
a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

MEMBERS OF
AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTAMTS
TEXAS SQCIETY CF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS



The Honorable Mayor and Members
of the City Gounci

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the result of that testing, and not to provide an apinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

4
/M Un-ééop £ Uheuk L1p
HARRISON, WALDROP & UHEREK, L.L.P.

Certified Public Accountants

March 13, 2018

g9









Exhibit A

CITY OF LOCKHART, TEXAS

The Fund Balance- Stabilization and Excess of Reserves Policies

Background

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) recommends, at a minimum, the
general-purpose governments, regardless of size, maintain unrestricted budgetary fund balance in
their general fund of no less than two months of regular general fund operating revenues or
regular general fund operating expenditures. GFOA acknowledges that a government’s situation
may require a level of unrestricted fund balance in the general fund significantly in excess of this
recommended minimum level. The City of Lockhart utilizes expenditures as a basis for its
minimum calculation because it is more predictable than revenues. The City has established a
higher three-month (90 days) minimum balance based upon (1) predictability of its revenues,
(sales tax revenue in particular), (2) perceived exposure to significant one-time outlays, such as
natural disasters (flooding), (3) the potential impact of the City’s bond ratings, and (4) existing
commitments and assignments for pension fund liability.

GFOA’s Determining the Appropriate levels of working capital in Enterprise Funds (Best
Practice) recommends that governments develop a target amount of working capital that best fits
local conditions for each fund, starting with a baseline of ninety (90) days of working capital and
then adjusting the target based on particular characteristics of the enterprise fund in question.
The City of Lockhart has set a higher minimum (four months — 120 days) based upon the
following considerations: (1) large peaks and valleys in cash position during the year, (2)
volatility in demand for services, and (3) difficulty in raising rates and revenues.

The policy is created in consideration of unanticipated events that could adversely affect the
financial condition of the City and jeopardize the continuation of necessary public services. This
policy will ensure that the City maintains adequate fund balances and reserves in order to:

a) Provide sufficient cash flow for daily financial needs,

b) Secure and maintain investment grade bond ratings,

¢) Offset significant economic downturns or revenue shortfalls, and
d) Provide funds for unforeseen expenditures related to emergencies.

This policy and the procedures promulgated under it supersede all previous regulations regarding
the City's fund balance and reserve policies.

Page | of 3

(271












ICC

[}



























Submitted by:

Date:

By:

Noted ftems Accepted by:

Date:

By:

MCCi, a Limited Liability Company

October 29, 2018

{Signature)

(Printed Name & Title)

CITY OF LOCKHART, TX

{Signature}

(Printed Name & Title)

MCCi | Page 10 of 10

|40



























LOCKHART POLICE DEPARTMENT

bhl

CHIEF OF POLICE Authorized:

Current Sworn Officers -29

Support -2

Administrative H H
Acsistant Communications -10
Vacancy -3
——
CAPTAIN
—
Victim Service Communication
Supervisor
[ f

CID/1A LIEUTENANT PATROL LIEUTENANT Telecommunicators

9

]
H cin(2) l I ! K-9
Sergeant Sergeant Sergeant Sergeant

I Narcotics (1)

H School Resource (2)

Officers (3) Officers (4) Officers {3} Officers (3)

| | Community Quireach

{1

4 Warrant Unit (1)

2/22/2019






Police Staffing

June 2017
Officers Inc
Total Detectives

Total Officers Ratio {Sqt,

Commissioned |Per 1000 Asst Corp, Supervisors &
City Est. Pop [Officers Capita Chief |Chief |Captain |Lieutenant |Sergeant |Corporal |Officer |Officer) Managers Managers
Bastrop 8,672 22 2.5 1 1 0 0 5 0 15 2.3 7 2
Proposed
Lockhart 13,157 29 2.2 1 0 1 3 4 0 20 1.8 9 4
Brenham 16,500 33 2.0 1 0 3 0 7 10 12 1.8 21 4
Taylor 18,291 27 1.5 1 0 2 0 5 4 15 13 12 3
Universal City 18,560 40 2.2 1 1 0 4 4 0 30 1.8 10 6
Seguin 30,006 75 2.5 1 1 1 3 6 4 59 2.3 16 6
Schertz 37.000 88 2.4 1 1 o 4 7 12 63 2.2 25 6

El






















Page 3 of 7

PHYSICAL DEMANDS Job Title: Lieutenant- Field Operations

OVERALL STRENGTH DEMANDS:

SEDENTARY

X LIGHT MEDIUM HEAVY VERY HEAVY

Physica! Demand Code: C = Continuously F = Frequentty O = Occasionally R = Rarely

A. STANDING R G. REACHING L. CRAWLING __ Q. VISION F
B. SITTING C H. HANDLING R M. BENDING __ R HEARING F_
C. WALKING 0 I. FINE DEXTERITY R N. TWISTING _ S. TALKING F_
D. LIV (TNG ). KNEELING 0. CLIMBING ___ T. FOOT

E. CARRYING K. CROUCHING ~ P. BALANCING___ CONTROLS O
F. PUSHING/PULLING U. OTHER

This is a description of the way this job is currently performed; it does not address the potential for accommodation.

Physical Demand

Description

SITTING: Primary work position; to prepare budgets; review staff reports; attend meetings and
‘ training seminars; to drive the patrol car.
WALKING/ From one office to another - on carpet, tile, and concrete; about 100 feet several times a
RUNNING: day; at crime scenes on asphalt, grass, concrete, mud or on rough or uneven terrain,
LIFTING/ Lifting and carrying reports within office building.
CARRYING:
HANDLING: Police equipment, files, reports, reference books, and firearms.
FINE To operate computer; write; operate support equipment during training presentations; fire
DEXTERITY: gun during annual firearms proficiency test.
VISION: For all paperwork; to use the computer; drive; use firearms.
HEARING/ Interact with staff, other Department Heads and supervisors, the public and personnel for
TALKING: other departments.
FOOT To drive patrol car.
CONTROLS:
STANDING: To talk to suspects; question witnesses at a scene or examine evidence; testify in court; give

citations.

158












Page 7 of 7

SKILLS (continued) Job Title: Lieutenant— Field (Cperations
REASONING:

Interpret demographics and statistics; intuitive matching of fact/circumstances with penal code;
determine most appropriate charge and relevancy of information; redirect people on task, problem
solving, complaint resolutions; work within budget constraints.

SUPERVISORY:
Supervise all sworn commissioned personnel. Conduct performance evaluations and resolves personuci
issues.

MANAGERIAL:
Prioritize task assignments, direct and monitor division budget operations and performance to division
goals.

INTERPERSONAL:
Interact positively with citizens, provide presentations for training, press and public relations, interact
positively with other departmental personnel; provides leadership, works with/directs staff activities.

SIGNATURES - Review and Comment

[ have reviewed this job analysis and its attachments and find it to be a fair description of the demands of
the job.

Job Analyst - Print Name and Title Signature Date
2.

Supervisor- Print Name and Title Signature Date
3.

Employee - Print Name and Title Signature Date
Comments:










e Participate in the development of staff recommendations for action by the city council.
e Advise and participate in code enforcement activities.

* Make recommendations for updating existing city codes, resolutions and other policies
and practices.

* Represent the city in intergovernmental relations as appropriate.

* Advise city officials on state and federal legislation, regulations, and judicial decisions
affecting the operations of the city.

e Monitors trends in municipai law and risk management issues.
e Maintain appropriate records and files.
® Assist in meeting election requirements.

e Perform related duties as necessary.
B. City Prosecutor

The city attorney can also serve as the city prosecutor. The municipal court is a non-court of
record. The city prosecutor attends all pretrial sessions of municipal court, which is currently
held on the third Thursday of every month. The city prosecutor is responsible for prosecution of
all municipal court class C misdemeanors at all hearings scheduled, including city ordinance
violations and truant conduct cases. The city prosecutor works with defendants and other
attorneys, if applicable, to reach plea bargains and diversion agreements. The city prosecutor
creates petitions for truant conduct cases as they become available and set all court dates for
truant conduct hearings. The city prosecutor works closely with the municipal court Judge, court
manager and juvenile case manager.

FORMAT FOR STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS

All pages of the response must be numbered consecutively. The responses shall not exceed
fifteen (15) pages in length. Resumes, licenses and work examples shall not count against this
page limit.

The responses must be organized in accordance with the list of contents.

Responses should include the following items herein described. All items must fall within the
maximum page count.



Letter of Transmittal. All responses must include a cover letter addressed to the City
Council, and signed by a duly constituted official. The cover letter must include name,
address and telephone number of the proposer, and name, title, address, telephone
number, fax number and email address of the person, or persons, to contact who are
authorized to represent the proposer and to whom correspondence should be
directed.

Table of Contents. Include a clear identification of the material by section and by page
number.

Executive Summary. The responses shall use this section to introduce the scope of the
proposal; (i.e. full city attorney services; general counsel services only; or city
prosecutor services only) and to summarize the key provisions of the proposal.
Provide a statement describing why you or the firm is qualified to perform this work.

. A description of how you or your firm propose to provide legal services to the city.
This should also address issues such as office location; accessibility to city council
members and city staff; attendance at city council meetings and occasional other
meetings; services, if any, that you would expect to receive from the city; and if a firm,
how you propose to manage the firm’s provision of services to the city—for example,
would there be a lead attorney and, if so, who would that attorney be and how would
other attorneys be involved.

Proposed Attorney(s), Paralegals and Qualifications. The responses should:

a. Summarize your, or the firm’s, background and history; include number of years
in business and scope of services you or your firm have provided.

b. Describe your municipal legal services, training, experience, and current
government clients; include number of years.

¢. Provide a statement describing the capability to respond to time-sensitive or short
notice requests and/or complicated issues.

d. Provide at least two examples of complex issues you or your firm have successfully
handled for municipal or other public agency clients.

e. Provide the date you would be able to begin providing legal services to the city;
including how you propose to familiarize yourself with the laws, rutes, regulations,
and operating procedures relative to the conduct of business for the city in order
to efficiently and effectively assume responsibilities.




































City of Lockhart, Texas

Council Agenda Item
Briefing Data

COUNCIL MEETING DATE: March 19, 2019

AGENDA ITEM CAPTION:
Discussion and/or action to consider Resolution 2019-09 adopting Strategic Priorities for
2019-2020.

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT AND CONTACT: Mayor White and Steve Lewis, City Manager

ACTION REQUESTED:
—. ORDINANCE X RESOLUTION [L CHANGE ORDER = AGREEMENT
G APPROVAL OF BID — AWARD OF CONTRACT _ CONSENSUS JOTHER

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY/DISCUSSION:

Alysia Cook of Opportunity Strategies conducted a department head goals retreat on
February 1, 2019 followed by a Council goals retreat on February 2, 2019. The retreats were
a success that produced the 2019-2020 Strategic Priorities as attached.

PROJECT SCHEDULE (if applicable): None.

AMOUNT & SOURCE OF FUNDING: (to be completed by Finance)
Funds Required: N/A
Account Number: N/A
Funds Available: N/A
Account Name: N/A

FISCAL NOTE (if applicable):
Previous Council Action: Council participated in a Goals retreat with Alysia Cook of
Opportunity Strategies on February 2, 2019 where the list of priorities were determined.

COMMITTEE/BOARD/COMMISSION ACTION: None.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION/REQUESTED MOTION:
Staff recommends approval of Resolution 2019-09 adopting the 2019-2020 Strategic Priorities.

LIST OF SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:
¢ Resolution 2019-09 with adopted 2019-2020 Strategic Priorities.

Department Head initials:










1]

City of Lockhart
Summary

On February 1 & 2, 2019 the City of Lockhart hosted two half-day planning sessions to develop goals and strategies for the next 2 years.

Some of these goal areas were internal, whereas others were external. The following is the process used to reach the conclusions for the plan.

The process began with a preliminary phone meeting between the facilitator and Steve Lewis, City Manager, to go over key issues facing the

City, understand the programs and projects underway through the community, and to prepare the agenda and format for the planning retreat.

The first portion of the strategic planning process began on Friday, February 1, 2019 with the City Manager and the City of Lockhart
Management Team. The facilitator began by asking the Management Team participants what their expectations for discussion for the day
were. She then took the team through a SWOT (Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities, & Threats) Analysis. The next group exercise was a
brainstorm called Start/Stop/Continue that lists the things that need to begin happening, stop happening, and are mission-critical and must

conttnue regardless of circumstances.

The facilitator then guided the Management Team through 2019-2020 goal and strategy development to recommend to the City Council the

following day.

On Saturday, February 2, 2019, the City Council and City Manager convened to review, revise, and establish priorities related to the
recommendations generated the day before by the Management Team. Prior to the review, the facilitator asked the City Council to list their

expectations for discussion for the day.

The following are the results.



Al

Management Team Expectations for the Day’s Discussion Topices

+ That City Council will take what we say seriously

¢ Consider all staff in decisions

* Hear each other’s goals

* Live by the plans we create / develop

e That Council develop goals / priorities based on sound data
/ research

¢ Focus

» Consider quality of life as over-arching goal

Discuss business attraction vs. recruitment

Being prepared for growth

Facilities improvements

Facilities maintenance

How do we give back to those who need extra help?
Smart land use practices

Discuss Tourists/Tourism — what is there for kids to do

while in town visiting family?

City Council Expectations for the Day’s Discussion Topies

* (Capitalize on Tourism

e Discuss Wi-Fi

* (Capitalize on BBQ Capital of Texas

¢ Cleaning up of unsightly properties (residential)

e Work in unity today

e Serve our community

e [ocus

e To discuss Economic Development targeting technology

Jobs

Industrial Park is full — now what?

Cleaning up of City properties / facilities
Actually implement our goals

Discuss the direction of Economic Development
Think bigger / think change / embrace change
Develop our identity

Attractive gateway signage

Employee wages

Technology infrastructure



3l

SWOT Analysis

The facilitator guided the participants through an analysis of their current Strengths, the current Weaknesses or Challenges they are facing,
Opportunities that may come their way in the future, and Threats that are possible to occur in the future. Note that there are no right or wrong
answers here and no implication of likelihood. This is simply a brainstorm of the opinions of the participants to get them thinking about goals

in the next portion. The Management Team listed their responses first, then the City Council added additional items the following day.

Strengths

¢ Historic district

e County seat

¢ BBQ Capital of Texas

¢ Location to highways

e Tourism

* Small town (family-oriented)
e Growing — room for more

* Desire to manage growth

* (Good development process

e Proximity to Austin

e (Comparable housing prices

e LExisting capacity of utilities
* Lasy mobility

¢ [conomic Development Sales tax
e Clark Library

e Baker Theatre

Ease of developing land (flat)

Employees who experience long tenure
Volunteers

CTR (Chisholm Trail Roundup) & other local events
Community support

Recognizable court house

Movies / film production (TFC)

Long-term water planning

High-level financial planning

Competitive building / development fees
“Real™ city with well-managed growth

New energy

Proximity to large cities / airport

New residents — new ideas — changing priorities
Diversity

First Friday Downtown Event



h|

Weaknesses / Challenges

Incentives — Economic Development lack of use
Technology — aging equipment and software
Infrastructure
Facilities — condition / maintenance
Competitive salaries within region
Training opportunities

o Professional development

o Budget
Closed minds — have always done it this way
Tourism
Managing growth
Need for succession planning
Public perception influencing job applicant pool

Weak tax base

L.imited in-town post-secondary educational opportunities

Lack of retail
Lack of entertainment (kids)

Limited grocery options

City-owned property
College
Venue / convention center
Lack of hotels
Entryways to community
Not using TIF financing
Emerging downtown organization
How to effectively support increasing, ever-growing
number of festivals
o Create packages for vendors and festivals
No city recreation programs
In-kind services
Very limited public transportation services
Outdated web information

Poor communication with citizens



S|

Opportunities

Cxpand airport (hangars)
o Install AWOS (Automated Weather Observing
System)
Improve working conditions of employees
Proximity to Austin
Implement first phase of parks master plan
SH-130 has great properties but not city-owned property
Undeveloped lots on Square and north / northwest of
Square
Long-tenured elected leadership
Increase community invelvement
To develop positive relationship with County, School, and
organizations
Quality economic growth
Franchise recreational or entertainment venues (theaters,
bowling, outlets, concerts, water parks)
Community college campus
Increased communication needed with {SD for school

planning, infrastructure, ete.

Expand walking / biking opportunities for exercise and
community involvement

Lockhart Springs (natural spring)

Lockhart State Park transfer to City

Potential residential development around golf course
Development within historic district

School district growth

Housing growth

Business growth

St. Paul Church and other redevelopment opportunities
Hospital / medical facilities

Public bathrooms downtown

Develop Industrial Park

More involvement with San Marcos Greater Partnership
Partnership with Austin Chamber

EDC $ will go further today than in 2 years (spec buildings,
parking)



991

Threails

Economic recession

Voter turnout

Government shutdown
Citizen input

Natural disaster

Leadership in government
Lack of economic development direction
Competition from other cities
Lack of resources

Building maintenance
‘Technology — cyber security
Surging population
Infrastructure improvement

Maintaining reputation

Planning without follow through
Lack ot educated worktorce — skilled labor
Crime

Lack of workforce — people
Retention and hiring

Youth retention

School quality

Lack of industry

Lack of racial unity
Micro-managing

Other utilities providers

Homeless services — transportation

Types of future growth



L5

Start/Stop/Continue

The facilitator guided the Management Team through an exercise that challenged them to brainstorm things that the City really needed to
begin doing, what they should stop doing that could be a waste of resources, and what must they continue doing, regardless of circumstances.
Below are their responses. Note that there are no right or wrong items; these are merely individuals’ opinions about the things that should and

shouldn’t change in Lockhart. Just because one person has a certain opinion on a topic, that does not imply anyone else shared that opinion.

Start

e Space allocation study

e Renovate City buildings — construct

* Downtown bathrooms

* Improve salaries — salary survey

+ Staff development program / policies / procedures

¢ Consistency in purchasing
o Revamp purchasing policy

* Replacing capital equipment / vehicles — vehicle fund

e Mandatory single stream recycling

* |IT department, in-house City Engineer

¢ New technology in terms ol equipment, network, server, software

¢ Re-assess who is in charge of downtown redevelopment
o Name which entity (or entities) funds downtown redevelopment initiatives
© Name which entity (or entities) manages downtown redevelopment initiatives

e 2020 Comprehensive Master Plan Update that includes a future land use plan and map






el

Continue

e Meeting with County, City, School, Chamber, EDC
e Implementing 2020 Plan and Updates

e Attracting businesses — growth

e Providing superior service

e Redeveloping Downtown

e Implement Parks Master Plan

¢ Being a great place to work

e Public investments along SH-130

¢ Supporting festivals / movie projects

¢ Financial planning

e Embracing tourism

10



0bl

Gaoal 1: Econonmic Development / Planning

Strategies

Partner with LISD and local youth organizations to encourage careers in local emergency services (Fire and Police)

2. Reassess who is in charge of managing and funding downtown development and tourism
3. Attract a post-secondary education campus / facility
4. Complete updating our development ordinances
5. Consider development tools to facilitate attraction / recruitment to SH 130 corridor
6. Bring utilities, assist assembling parcels, rezoning tracts along SH 130
a) Shovel ready
b) Pursue prospects
7. Start investing in more property for growth
8. Explore next industrial park
9. HOT (Hotel Occupancy Tax) Funds — revamp structure
10. Economic Development Strategic Plan

. Robust LEDC website

11



12

Goal #1 KPIs / Metrics:

-

00U 0UJO0ODDO0OCOC

Did we partner with LISD & other youth organizations to encourage emergency services careers?
Did we reassess downtown development and tourism initiatives and who leads each?

Did we initiate etforts to attract a post-secondary educational institution or facility to Lockhart?
Did we completely update our development ordinances?

Did we brainstorm development tools for SH-130 development?

Did we bring utilities and assemble parcels along SH-1307?

Did we develop shovel-ready development sites?

Did we market those sites to prospective investors?

Did we develop plans for our next industrial park?

Did we revamp the way HOT funds are structured?

Did we develop and implement an Economic Development Strategic Plan?

Did the Lockhart EDC revamp their website to better attract investment?

12



gl

Goal 20 Quality of Life / Quality of Facilities

Strategies

i. Invest money to improve the appearance ot our town (streets, parks, entry signs)

2. Conduct a Space Study of City Buildings and facilities including City Hall

3. Improve the image of City facilities as needed

4. Update, renovate, and construct City facilities as needed

5. Implement the Parks Master Plan, improving the quality of life for community

6. Conduct a citywide quality of life citizen survey

Goal #2 KPIs / Metrics:

$ amount invested in streets in 2019 and 20207 $

$ amount invested in parks in 2019 and 20207 $

$ amount invested in gateway entry signs in 2019 and 20207 $

# of City facilities we improved the appearance of?

O Which facilities did we improve the image of?

Did we implement elements of the Parks Master Plan?

Did we secure quotes on a Space Study of City buildings including City Hall?
How many City-owned buildings did we renovate or retrofit?

Did we conduct a citywide quality of life citizen survey?

Did we address levels of service based on the citizen responses we received?

Did we address levels of satisfaction based on the citizen responses we received?

L 00OD0DO0COD

Did we address areas for improvement based on the citizen responses we received?

13






A

Goal 4: Procedures / I'T/ Software and Hardware

Strategies

Conduct a Technology Assessment that yields specific recommendations

2. Improve technology / create specific strategies to have better I'T support based on Assessment results

3. Upgrade all technology-related issues as recommended - desktops. servers. software, equipment, and peripherals

4. Start replacing old equipment

5. Provide superior service by keeping technology up to date and being able to communicate with the public (keep an open line of
communication through website)

6. Carefully weigh all the pros and cons of considering bringing [T in-house

7. Upgrade the operating system

8. Streamline technology hardware, software processes within the City, based on Assessment recommendations

9. Upgrade all equipment and software and be trained on specific software to be used to maximum potential

10. Explore implementing downtown Wi-Fi

15



21

Goual #4 KPIs / Metrics:

d
u
u

Did we conduct a Technology Assessment?
Did we secure top quality technology support across all departments by the end o1 20207

Did we upgrade our desktop computers?

% of employees who received upgraded computers by the end of 2020 (from 2018 numbers)?

Q

UUULUDODODOCUOCOQD

Did we upgrade our servers?

Did we upgrade our computer software, subscriptions, and licenses?

Did we upgrade our peripherals?

Did we upgrade our other technology equipment?

Did we establish an IT policy for updates and replacements that will keep us up-to-date from now through the future?
Did we carefully weigh all the pros and cons of keeping IT outsourced vs. bringing it in-house?

Did we upgrade our City operating system?

Did we streamline our City technology processes?

Did we secure training for statf to use all new equipment properly and efticiently?

Did we investigate implementing WiFt throughout Downtown Lockhart?

16



1h)

Goal 5: Public Safety

Strategies

I, Provide quality public safety to all citizens of Lockhart

a)

Develop a specific Retention Strategy first

b)

Develop a specific Hiring Strategy

¢)

Long-term public safety facility planning

d)

Develop an equipment replacement schedule

¢)

Ensure use of best practices / standards (research best practices, then implement)

0

Evaluate Accreditation opportunities

Goal #5 KPIs / Metrics:

# of new law enforcement officers hired in 20197

# of new law enforcement officers hired in 20207

% law enforcement officers retained?

# of new firetighters hired in 20197

# of new firefighters hired in 26207

% firetighters retained?

2
.

0O 000

Did we develop a long-term public satety f{acilities plan?

Did we develop a public satety equipment replacement schedule?

Did we implement that new replacement schedule?

Did we research and record best practices across the country regarding public safety policy?
Did we make any modifications to our public safety policies based on that research?

Did we explore and evaluate Accreditation opportunities?

17






Board Name

LIST OF BOARD/COMMISSION VACANCIES

Reappeintments/Vacancies

Updated: March 12 2019

Council member

Board of Adjustment

Nic Irwin moved to Lockhart Economic Development Corp. Any Councilmember

Construction Board

Ralph Gerald resigned 3-11-2019

Mayor White

Electric Board

Thomas Herrera resigned 3-7-2019

Councilmember Mendoza

APPLICATIONS RECEIVED TO BE ON A BOARD/COMMISSION

APPLICANT

BOARD REQUESTED

DATE RECEIVED

RESIDENCE DISTRICT

Suzy Falgout

Construction Board

Historic Preservation Commission

Parks & Recreation
Any other Board where needed

08/20/2018

Currently resides outside city limits.
Is renovating future residence on
Commerce St.













7 0L

COUNCILMEMBER BOARD/COMMISSION APPOINTMENTS PAGE 3 Updated 03/12/2019

NOTES:
PARKS
MASTER PLAN
STEERING
COMMITTEE
(b5t 094)5/2017)

Committee to have 8-10 members as follows:
e Councilmembers
o City staff
e Two Parks Advisory Board members
s Business owners
s Civic Organization members

Committee will assist Burditt Consultants to perform tasks outlined in the Parks Master Plan.

NOTES:
AD-HOC
COMMITTEE —
ST. PAUL
UNITED
CHURCH OF
CHRIST
PROPERTY
(I:st. 09405/2017)

Committee will consist of at least one appeointment from Mayor and each Councilmemiber.

The Committee will make recommendations to the Council about the use of the property at 728 S. Main.

WAYFINDING
SIGNAGE AND
COMMUNITY
BRANDING
AD-NOC
(Est. 01/02/2018)

Committee will assist City Planner/Development Services with wayfinding signage and community branding tasks.

Committee will consist of up to five members appointed by the Council.
NOTE: First Branding and Wayfinding Committee disbanded/dissolved on December 18, 2018.

UPDATE: Second Branding and Wayfinding Committee appointed on March 5, 2019.




¢d T

COUNCILMEMBER BOARD/COMMISSION APPOINTMENTS PAGE 4 Updated 03/12/2019
Councilmember Board/Commission Appointee Date Appointed
Mayor — Lew White Airport Board John Hinnekamp 12/19/17
Board of Adjustment Mike Annas 12/19/17

Construction Board

VACANT-R Gerald resigned 3-11-19

Ec Dev. Revolving Loan Barbara Gilmer 12/19/17
Ec Dev. Corp. % Cent Sales Tax Alan Fielder, Vice-Chair 12/19/17
Electric Board Joe Colley, Chair 12/19/17
Historical Preservation John Lairsen 12/19/17
Library Board Stephanie Riggins 12/19/17
Parks and Recreation Albert Villalpando, Chair 12/19/17
Planning & Zoning Paul Rodriguez 12/19/17
ETJ Rep-Impact Fee Adv Comm | Larry Metzler 12/19/17
District 1 — Juan Mendoza Airport Board Larry Burrier 03/07/17
Board of Adjustment Lort Rangel 03/07/17
Construction Board Mike Votee 03/07/17
Eco Dev. Revolving Loan Ryan Lozano 03/07/17
Eco Dev. Corp, 2 Cent Sales Tax | Dyral Thomas 03/07/17
Electric Board VACANT- Herrera resigned 3-7-19
Historical Preservation Victor Corpus 03/07/17
Library Board Shirley Williams 03/07/17
Parks and Recreation Linda Thompson-Bennett 03/07/17
Planning & Zoning Marcos Villalobos 03/07/17
District 2— John Castillo Airport Board Reed Coats 03/07/17
Board of Adjustment Juan Juarez 03/07/17
Construction Board Oscar Torres 05/15/18
EcoDev. Revolving Loan Rudy Ruiz 03/07/17
Eco Dev. Corp. 2 Cent Sales Tax | Umesh Patel 08/09/18
Electric Board James Briceno 03/07/17
Historical Preservation Ron Faulstich 03/07/17
Library Board Donnie Wilson 03/07/17
Parks and Recreation James Torres 03/07/17
Rob Ortiz, Alternate 03/07/17
Planning & Zoning Manuel Oliva 03/07/17




s

COUNCILMEMBER BOARD/COMMISSION APPOINTMENTS

PAGE 5 Updated 03/12/2019

District 3 — Kara McGregor Airport Board Ray Chandler 02/06/18
Board of Adjustment Anne Clark, Vice-Chair 12/19/17

Kirk Smith (Alternate) 12/05/17

Construction Board Jerry West, Vice-Chair 01/02/18

Eco Dev. Revolving Loan Lew White, Chair 12/19/17

Eco Dev. Corp. 2 Cent Sales Tax | Nic Irwin 12/05/17

Electric Board Thomas Stephens 12/19/17

Historical Preservation Ronda Reagan 12/19/17

Library Board Jean Clark Fox, Chair 12/19/17

Parks and Recreation Warren Burnett 12/05/17

Planning & Zoning Philip McBride, Chair 12/19/17

District 4 - Jetfry Michelson Airport Board Mark Brown, Vice-Chair 03/07/17
Board of Adjustment Wayne Reeder 12/05/17

Construction Board Rick Winnett 12/05/17

Eco Dev. Revolving Loan Frank Coggins 12/05/17

Eco Dev. Corp. 4 Cent Sales Tax Morris Alexander 12/05/17

Electric Board lan Stowe 03/06/18

Historical Preservation Kathy McCormick 12/05/17

Library Board Donaly Brice 12/05/17

Parks and Recreation Russell Wheeler 12/05/17

Planning & Zoning Rick Arnic 01/15/19

Mayor Pro-Tem (At-Large) — | Airport Board Andrew Reyes 03/07/17
Angie Gonzales-Sanchez Board of Adjustment Laura Cline, Chair 03/07/17
Construction Board Paul Martinez 03/07/17

Eco Dev. Revolving Loan Irene Yanez 03/07/17

Eco Dev. Corp. 2 Cent Sales Tax | Alfredo Munoz 06/06/17

Historical Preservation Juan Alvarez, Jr. 03/07/17

Library Board Jodi King 03/07/17

Parks and Recreation Chris Schexnayder 03/07/17

Planning & Zoning Philip Ruiz, Vice-Chair 03/07/17






















SUGGESTED FUNDING

™M PRIORITY GOALS IDENTIFIED BY COUNCIL FOR FY 18-19: SORTED 8Y CATEGORY SOURCE BY SORTED BY
INITIALS # FINAL LIST 8Y COUNCIL PRIORITIZED BY CATEGORY: SUBMIT TO CITY MGR BY MARCH 1 PLEASE COUNCILMEMBER CATEGORY
Infrastructure: Continue City Infrastructure: Drainage, Street Repairs, Completion of Curbing, Brighter Lighting in
Neighborhoods GF [nfrastructure
Angled parking for N Main and N Commerce Streets {change during downtown project) In-House Parking Downtown
Parking around and surrounding the square. [ssues with larger vehicles parked in areas that are narrow and that make it hard
to see oncoming traffic. Qur city is growing and we have been very fortunate with our parking however, it is a concern
especially when you have the bigger and wider trucks that are parked in an area that is for a moderate size car. It becomes a
hazard and a blind spot when trying to reverse out of the parking space and ablind spot for any and all pedestrians. GF Parking Downtown
Continue to work on City Park improvements Gen Fund Parks
Revive all City parks Grants Parks
Work with LISD to establish a community recreation center at Adams Gym, perhaps under Parks (PUBLIC HEALTH/PARKS)  |General Fund/Parks & Rec |Parks
Add 3 positions to the Parks Department, to help facilitate other impro {PARKS) General Fund/Parks & Rec | Parks
Park improvements - consider medium to long range Town branch development GF Parks
Develop a dog park as part of the Stueve Lane Monte Vista Tract [PARKS/ANIMAL SHELTER/PUBLIC HEALTH) General Fund/Parks & Rec _|Parks
Parks Improvemens: Purchase and update the park equipment to provide safe and fun filled parks for all to use. GF Parks
Start Planning for 2040 plan GF Planning
Police GF Police
Continued Police Community committee involvement, neighborhood watch, gang awareness GF Police
Work with Police Department to bring back drug enforcement program Gen Fund Police
_Get back to Neighborhool Townhall Meetings GF Police
Police Task Force: Budget extra funds for a Police Task Force, a Narcotics Officer and a Mental Health Officer to address any
drug and gang related problems and mental issues our city is being faced not only on the East side of our city but citywide.
Budget for updated training for our police officers. There is alot of training that is free but alot additonal money for
registration fees and course material. | am gratefu! that the Police Department did invest in our Drug Dog and is being utilizied
by the school as well. GF Police
High School cadet programs for police, fire, EMS GF Police/Fire
Public relations position to deal with social media GF Public Relations
|Get the word outabout Lockhart (promoting, hiring a Public Relations person) Gen Fund Public Relations
Sidewalk repair and expansion GF Sidewalks
Signage in Lockhart (highway, downtown, and tol! road) Gen Fund Signage
Wavfinding, branding - develop new entry sign and city property markers GF Signage
Move Forward with St Paul property project In-House St Paul Gift
Devlop an oral history project to support a future “Walking Tour" app for Lockhart (ECONOMIC DEV/DOWNTOWN} General Fund/Fundraising | Tourism
More Events to Attract Tourism in Lockhart and Include Way Finding Signage (Hotels and Restaurants). Added events,
especially the events thatare free to the public do very well for the city as well as for the businesses and tourism. [ welcome
new events to the city but need to be selective in the events that we do host.
. GF Tourisn
Create a Good Neighbor program (Lockhart Utility Customers can add an additional amount to utility bill to help others) GF Utility Customers




SUGGESTED FUNDING
™ PRIORITY GOALS IDENTIFIED BY COUNCIL FOR FY 18-19: SORTED BY CATEGORY SOURCE BY SORTED BY
INITIALS # FINAL LIST BY COUNCIL PRIORITIZED BY CATEGORY: SUBMIT TO CITY MGR BY MARCH 1 PLEASE COUNCILMEMBER CATEGORY
Access to Municipal Court for Utility Payments In-House Gtility Customers
Free public wifi on the square as part of the redevelopment on the North side (ECONOMIC DEV/DOWNTOWN) {CAPCOG Grant? Wifi
Free public wifi on the square as part of the redevelopment on the North side |GF Wifi ‘]










SUGGESTED FUNDING
™ PRIORITY SOURCE BY SORTED BY
INITIALS # GOALS IDENTIFIED 6Y COUNCIL FOR FY 18-19: SORTED BY CATEGORY COUNCILMEMBER CATEGORY CITY MANAGER COMMENTS
For streets please see above. Brighter lighting is always a
challenge in a city with so many trees. Lockhart still must
| comply with Senate Bill 5 which regulates power usage.
Several cities have passed an ordinance that does not allow
for the planting of trees within 15 of the right of way to
[nfrastructure: Continue City Infrastructure: Drainage, Street Repairs, improve lighting of streets and reduce tree trimming around
AGS 3 Completion of Curbing, Brighter Lighting in Neighborhoods _IGF Infrastructure power lines. o
Scheduled with downtown improvements. Should also
consider making 100 Blocks of N Main ard N Commerce one-
Angled parking for N Main and N Commerce Streets (change during way and possibly consider other blocks downtowr especially
BW 4 downtown project) In-House Parking Downtown Inorth(south streets.
Parking around and surrounding the square. Issues with larger vehicles
parked in areas that are narrow and that make it hard to see oncoming
traffic. Our city is growing and we have been very fortunate with our
parking however, it is a concern especially when you have the bigger and
wider trucks that are parked in an area that is for 2 moderate size car. [t
becomes a hazard and a blind spot when trying to reverse out of the
AGS 10 1Erking space and a blind spot for ary and all pedestrians. GF Parking Downtown |Scheduled with downtown improvements
J1EFF M 2 Continue to work on City Park improvements Gen Fund Parks Master Plan near complete
BW 2 Revive all City parks Grants Parks Master Plan near complete
Work with LISD to establish a community recreation center at Adams General Fund/Parks &
KM 2 Gym, perhaps under Parks (PUBLIC HEALTH /PARKS) Rec Parks Mayor is visiting with LISD about this
Add 3 positions to the Parks Department, to help facilitate other General Fund/Parks & Approx. $100,000 to budget rot including equipment and
KM 3 improvements (PARKS| Rec Parks vehicles
Parkimp ts - consider medium to long range Town branch
Lw 3 development GF Parks Bond issue needed
Develop a dog park as part of the Stueve Lane Monte Vista Tract General Fund/Parks & Estimate on this property is $ 25000 using used fencing.
KM 4 (PARKS/ANIMAL SHELTER/PUBLIC HEALTH) Rec Parks Main and insurance are also cost factors
Parks Improvements: Purchase and update the park equipment Lo provide
AGS 8 safe and fun filled parks for all to use. GF Parks Master Plan near complete
JUAN M 3 Start Planning for 2040 plan GF Planning Needs to be done
Chief Pedraza is working on these issues. Recently issued
1C 3 Police GF Police update that was sent to Council.
c d Police C. ity ¢ i invol neighborhood
Lw 4 watch, gang awareness GF Police See above
|EFF M 4 lWo:—k with Police Department to bring back drug enforcement program Gen Fund Police Seeabove
UANM 5 lﬁet back to Neighborhood Townhall Meetings GF Police Will get with Chiefabout this

8:56 AMU:\Vance Files\1A Public Works|City CounciliGoals and Objectives\FY 18-1\COUNCIL COMBINED €Y 18-19 Goak






LOCKHART CITY COUNCIL FY 17-18 GOALS

Category and Priority Order

COUNCIL |PRIORI SUGGESTED FUNDING SOURCE
MEMBER TY GOALS IDENTIFIED BY COUNCIL FOR FY 17-18 (as submitted by Councilmembers) BY COUNCILMEMBER CATEGORY
with GF Expiring debt saving
BH 3 Continue Improving City Cemetery and/or Cemetery Tax CEMETERY
Jeff M 2 |Refurbish City Hall in the inside (to make more inviting to the public) as well as doing some CITY BLDGS
landscaping outside
BW 3 |Spruce up and clean up City properies CITY BLDGS
BH 4 (Improve City Facilities Appearance General Fund CITY BLDGS
JC 4 |City Facilities CITY BLDGS
AGS 10 |[Convention Center CONVENTION CTR
JC 2 Crime CRIME
AGS 4 Police Task Force: Budget extra funds for a Police Task Force, a Narcotics Officer and a Mental CRIME
Health Officer to address any drug and gang related problems and mental issues our city is
being faced not only on the East side of our city but citywide. Budget for updated training for
our police officers. There is alot of training that is free but alot additonal money for
registration fees and course material.
Jeff M 4 |Work with Police Department to bring back drug enforcement program CRIME
LW 8 [Fund for helping utility customers in need ?7?? CUSTOMER SERV
BW 2 |Continue to change angle parking downtown: 200 Blk S Main, 100 Blk N Main, 100 Blk N DOWNTOWN
Commerce, 200 Blk E Market; little time and expense invovled
LW 2 Downtown improvements,bathrooms, electric, pedestrian safety, beautification, wifi, lighting  |?? DOWNTOWN
AGS 9 [Parking around and surrounding the square. Issues with larger vehicles parked in areas that are DOWNTOWN
narrow and that make it hard to see oncoming traffic
LW 1 |Expanding economic development department, budget, office, staff?, marketing General fund, LEDC ECCONOMIC DEV
AGS 3 Economic Development: Recurit more businesses especailly retail and continue efforts; contact ECCONOMIC DEV
existing and vacant building owners to see if they are willing to work with the City of Lockhart
to bring retail businesses and speciality shops, as well as industrial. Purchase buildings and
land when on the market for possible new businesses for the city.
JC 3 Economic Development ECCONOMIC DEV
AGS 5 |Subdivision development to attract more businesses to Lockhart. ECCONOMIC DEV
M Set up meetings with developers for more retail space shopping centers along US 183 ECCONOMIC DEV

Page 1




LOCKHART CITY COUNCIL FY 17-18 GOALS

Category and Priority Order

COUNCIL (PRIORI SUGGESTED FUNDING SOURCE
MEMBER TY GOALS IDENTIFIED BY COUNCIL FOR FY 17-18 (as submitted by Councilmembers) BY COUNCILMEMBER CATEGORY
More Events to Attract Tourism in Lockhart and Include Way Finding Signage (Hotels and
AGS 6 Restaurants) ECCONOMIC DEV
AGS 1 |All Department Heads to Budget Salary Increases for all City Employees. EMPLOYEES
M 1 City Employee Raises EMPLOYEES
M 2 |House or fund gym membership/space (weight rm) in Senior Center area (cardio machine) for EMPLOYEES
City employees
AGS 8 |Employee: Possible additional Employee Holiday Time Off-Alternating System. Even though EMPLOYEES
this has been discussed and the reasons for why it cannot be done, | would like to see a time
off alternating system, especailly during the holidays.
BW 1 |ENFORCE ordinances that pertain to unsightly properties all over town ENFORCEMENT
Jeff M 1 |Enforce city ordinance regarding residential property ENFORCEMENT
Jeff M 3 |Continue to work on City Park improvements PARKS
M 3 Do inventory of City properties to idenify areas for pocket parks LEDC funds PARKS
LW 3 Park improvements General fund PARKS
BH 5 Parks Improvements General Fund PARKS
JC 5 Parks PARKS
AGS 7 |Parks Improvemens: Purchase and update the park equipment to provide safe and fun filled PARKS
parks for all to use.
LW 7 |Town branch cleanup and beautification ?7?? PARKS
M 4  |Start process of Funding Sidewalks east of 183 connecting to the US 183 sidewalks SIDEWALKS
LW 6 |sidewalk repair and expansion general fund bond SIDEWALKS
BH 1 IMPLEMENT SIGNAGE IN LOCKHART General Fund (LEDC) and/or SIGNAGE
Hotel Tax
LW 4  |wayfinding, branding general fund SIGNAGE
LW 5 Entry signs general fund SIGNAGE
Jeff M 6 |Signage on Highway 183 and SH130 = directing people to Lockhart SIGNAGE
BW 4 SR CITIZENS CTR
Pursue opportunity to move Senior Citizens' Center to St Paul United Church of Christ Property
JC 1 Roads Grants or impact fees STREETS/INFRAS
AGS 2 Infrastructure: Continue City Infrastructure: Drainage, Street Repairs, Completion of Curbing, STREETS/INFRAS
Brighter Lighting in Neighborhoods
BH 2 Continue improving City Streets Increase Transportation Fund STREETS/INFRAS
Jeff M 5 |Continue to make improvements and redoing our city streets STREETS/INFRAS

Page 1




Lockhart City Council
FY 16-17 Goals
Revised 3-10-2016, 8:30 pm

Priority

Council Person

Goals Submitted

City Manager Comments

Infastructure

Complete 2015 CO projects and need budget of $250,000 per year for
streets, continue water and sewer main replacements; continue electric
distribution maintenance plan-get new substation on line. Replace bad

1 Castillo water raw water mains and find additional water for the future.
Department Heads to Budget Salary Increases for city employees so that we can keep our Est Cost Per % Increase Annually: Gen Fund (Not Civil Serv) $
1|/Gonzales-Sanchez current city employees. 29,000; Gen Fund Civil Serv $ 24,000; Other/Utilities: $ 15,000- Add'l

Improve City Cemetery with GF Expiring debt saving and/or Cemetery Tax

Cemetery Tax up to 5 cents allowed by State Law. Expiring GF debt

1 Hilburn committed to Police and Fire increased pay rates. ($132,000)
Find ways to use activity center for multi-purpose use. (basketball, volleyball). Funding source:
1 Mendoza Different companies in town If approved by Council staff would approach local businesses
Continue to improve infrastructure (drainage, street repairs) throughout the city
1 Michelson Complete 2015 CO and budget $250,000 per year for street materials
Enforce ordinances that pertain to unsightly properties all over town.
Make homeowners/residents (because some may be renters) take pride in their environment.
It is an eyesore to drive around town and see overgrown properties, junked cars, and stacks of
trash on porches, in yards and driveways. All levels of socio-economic residents in this town
have shown evidence of being disrespectful to their environment. City has no esthetics ordinance currently. The term "unsightly" is
1/Westmoreland subjective and is difficult to prove in court.

[y

White

Economic Development-expanding budget to get staff qualified to help Sandra with
recruitment, working with LEDC to either build Spec building or invest in more property, Main St
program to relieve Sandra of a lot of those duties

Main Street Program would require another person and funding to work
with local businesses while Economic Development would conscentrate
on new businesses and new jobs

Castillo

Economic Development

Need 12-15,000 sf of retail spaces with reasonable lease per sf and
buildings that are 20 to 50,000 sf for industrial and maunufacturing

N

Gonzales-Sanchez

Infrastructure: Continue City Infrastructure: Drainage, Street Repairs, Completion of Curbing,
Brighter Lighting in Neighborhoods

Complete 2015 CO projects and need budget of $250,000 per year for
streets, continue water and sewer main replacements; continue electric
distribution maintenance plan-get new substation on line. Replace bad
water raw water mains and find additional water for the future. Most
streets that lack curbing will need to be totally reconstructed. Brighter
LED lights being experimented with since costs have come down.

Implement City Signage

Initial required funds up to $40,000 if City Crew does the work; total cost

2 Hilburn could be more than $70,000
New_ Park equipment. Funding Source: Each Councilmember responsible for a park and finding Estimate: $ 400,000 annually over next 4 years based on input from
2/Mendoza funding sources Parks Board Advisory Board
Continue to improve ways to attract businesses to Lockhart
Need more 12-15,000 sf of retail spaces with reasonable lease per sf
2|Michelson and buildings that are 20 to 50,000 sf for industrial and maunufacturing
Create a policy for the residency of future admininstrative positions to live within the Lockhart
city limits. If an administrator wants to be employed by the City of Lockhart, they need to reside |It is not legal to require all department heads to live in the City limits;
here. Sharing in the daily lives of our citizens seems crucial to making decisions about only the City Manager is required to do so. All non-24 emergency
2 Westmoreland Lockhart. They are paid by city taxes. response employees must live within 25 mintues of City Limis

2|White Continue street rehab Need $ 250,000 annually minimum for street work materials
. City Facilites Not sure what this includes; can asses all departments for physical
3|Castillo needs
Economic Development: Recurit more businesses especailly retail and continue efforts ;
contact existing and vacant bldg owners to see if they are willing to work with City to bring LEDC could fund another report but the company says our numbers still
these small retail businesses, as well as industrial; possibly purchasing two downtown county |should be good. Costs estimated $22,500 for updating data and
buildings when on the market for possible new businesses in the downtown area. Stronger recruitment. Prime softgood companies constantly want to be on
platform with LEDC with methods to sell Lockhart and attract businesses. Highway 183 in 12-15,000 sf and at a reasonalbe cost per sf plus higher
3/Gonzales-Sanchez traffic counts.

S:\council mtg uploaded presentations\Mar 12 2016\1 FY 16-17 CITY COUNCIL GOALS ALL SUBMITTED - REVISED 3-10-2016




Lockhart City Council
FY 16-17 Goals
Revised 3-10-2016, 8:30 pm

Priority Council Person Goals Submitted City Manager Comments
Current transportation monthly rate is $ 4 for residential and others;
$260,000 annual which helps fund labor and equipment, but is not
sufficient for materials. Another $250,000 for materials is needed
3/ Hilburn Continue improving city streets: Increase Transportation Fund annually.
Wi-Fi Free Zones Downtown Square. Funding source City Budget, School District, Downtown
3/Mendoza sponsors Rough estimate is about $12,000
Refurbish City Hall If atrium removed, add more offices estimated at $45,000 and more
outside landscaping estimated at $ 5,000; elevator going in with
3|Michelson improvements to restrooms and offices

w

Westmoreland

Approach interested and future businesses cordially.
Stringent ordinances (and the way they are approached), scare off some businesses. Let's be
friendly in a positive way.

City Mgr respectfully requests names of such businesses. He has met
with 18 business representatives over past 15 months that were looking
at Lockhart but did not come. Except for the non-residential exterior
building esthetics ordinance, none of them indicated a problem with the
current ordinances or with staff. The main problems were high land
prices and the lack of "ready built retail and industrial buildings", and
traffic counts were not high enough. Most thought the impact fee
schedules were very reasonable compared to other cities. Will continue
to work toward friendlier customer service with simplified ordinances.

Park master plan to consider park bond issue, recreation dept and staff issues

Master Plan estimate: $ 45,000, recreation dept est at least $
60,000 for a recreational professional with another $30,000 for

3/White equipment and materials
Est Cost Per % Increase Annually: Gen Fund (Not Civil Serv) $
29,000; Gen Fund Civil Serv $ 24,000; Other/Utilities: $ 15,000- Add'l
Employees Wages Cost FY 16-17 due to Civil Serv Pay Plan Expansions already
4 Castillo apprroved: $ 132,000
Police Task Force: Budget extra funds to bring pack a_much needed P'0|ICE Tas'k Force to Initial required funds up to $40,000 if City Crew does the work: total cost
address any drug and gang related problems this city is being faced with especially on the East could be more than $70,000
4/Gonzales-Sanchez  |side of our city. Possibly ask the County to assist with funding. '

Continue working on bringing industry to Lockhart: Continue supporting Ms. Mauldin

LEDC is will have sufficient funding to be more aggressive starting FY 16-|

4 Hilburn 17
4 Mendoza Training Start up: Neighborhood Watch Training and Program: Police Budget E:::utsrfgf'\ll:éih(g‘ogz:)tic:;?p\;vtiagﬁhvli)/irlcl)ig;a:g 't?yp:gs;zl_“ was not sustained
4 Michelson Improve signage on HWY 183 as well as SH130 = directing people to Lockhart Possibly use of some of the KTB grant money

Evaluate and/or change the degree of the angled parking along the 4 blocks off of the square.

This would be: Main Street from Market to Prairie Lea Street; Main Street from San Antonio

Street to Walnut Street; Commerce Street from Market Street to Prairie Lea Street, and

Commerce Street from San Antonio Street to Walnut Street. These parking spaces were made

before long vehicles were made! If ther are cars parked on both sides of the streets, only one

care can pass through at a time. Then it becomes a one lane street. | have witnessed a Estimate to black out existing thermoplastic markings, redefine layout,

differenct angled parking arrangement, and it provides more room and is much safer for the and apply new thermoplastic markings with angle parking  =$ 12,000;
4 Westmoreland drivers and pedestrians. will probably loose 4 spaces per block. 2 on each side

Branding and wayfinding—may be included in #1 Initial required funds up to $40,000 if City Crew does the work; total cost
4 White could be more than $70,000

Parks Estimate: $ 400,000 annually over next 4 years based on input from
5|Castillo Parks Board Advisory Board

Working with 6 more subdivisons, either new or expanding, and possibly

5/Gonzales-Sanchez Subdivision development to attract more businesses to Lockhart one more very large one northwest.

Improve tourism in Lockhart - City Council continue to work with and encourage Chambers of
Commerce to be more involved

Council can make this directive to Chambers when dividing out HOT

5|Hilburn funds
Finding more funding for Retail Market Study. Zip code demographics with reports. Funding LEDC could fund another |"eport but the company says our numbers stil
LEDC should be good. Costs estimated $22,500 for updating data and
5/Mendoza recruitment.

S:\council mtg uploaded presentations\Mar 12 2016\1 FY 16-17 CITY COUNCIL GOALS ALL SUBMITTED - REVISED 3-10-2016



Lockhart City Council
FY 16-17 Goals
Revised 3-10-2016, 8:30 pm

Priority

Council Person

Goals Submitted

City Manager Comments

Work with LEDC or someone equivalent to build a building to help attract business

Need more 12-15,000 sf of retail spaces with reasonable lease per sf.
Most softgood retailers want 12-15,000 on Hwy 183 at a reasonable

5|Michelson price and increased traffic volumes
Sidewalks to include lighting Funding required; for example San Jacinto to Jr High estimate is
5/White $130,000 just for materials along Maple walkway
More Events to Attract Tourism in Lockhart and Include Way Finding Signage (Hotels and Initial required funds up to $40,000 if City Crew does the work; total cost
Restaurants) could be more than $70,000. Chambers could use HOT for more
6 Gonzales-Sanchez tourism.

Continue to work on City Park improvements

Estimate: $ 400,000 annually over next 4 years based on input from

6 Michelson Parks Board Advisory Board

6 White Pursue possible ESD-EMS district Legal issue with participation by County and City of Luling preferable
Parks Improvemens: Purchase more park equipment to provide safe and fun filled parks for all |Estimate: $ 400,000 annually over next 4 years based on input from

7|Gonzales-Sanchez to use. Parks Board Advisory Board

Mendoza

Start Talks With YMCA Austin again. Seek sponsors funding if necessary

Our population hurt in previous discussions, Will pursue again. They
usually want commitment for a minimum number of individuals and
families depending on population of not only City but its metro area

~

Michelson

Work on building a civic center/ recreation center

$ 9 million plus land $ 2.5 million for about 20,000 sf plus about
$240,000 annual maintenance costs and minimum of $60,000 for
utilities; estimated revenues offset is about $60,000; take out recreation
center and cost go down about 20%. It has been reported that Bastrop is
spending over $500,000 per year to operate its civic center. Revenues
not covering costs.

~

White

Cemetery maintenance

Cemetery Tax up to 5 cents allowed by State Law

[ee]

Gonzales-Sanchez

City Hall: Refurbish with Improvements and/or Upgrades

Elevator and improvements to restrooms planned; better offices for
Connie and Sandra planned also.

©

Gonzales-Sanchez

Convention Center

$ 9 million plus land $ 2.5 million for about 20,000 sf plus about
$240,000 annual maintenance costs and minimum of $60,000 for
utilities; estimated revenues offset is about $60,000; take out recreation
center and cost go down about 20%. It has been reported that Bastrop is
spending over $500,000 per year to operate its civic center. Revenues
not covering costs.

10

Gonzales-Sanchez

Employee: Possible additional Employee Holiday Time off-Alternating system

City emlpoyees now have 12 holidays and 1 personal holiday; time off is
granted by seniority with department head responsible for keeping
sufficient personnel to serve the public needs. Employees also receive
at least 2 weeks of vacation time. Those employees required to work on
holidays receive their normal pay plus holiday pay.

S:\council mtg uploaded presentations\Mar 12 2016\1 FY 16-17 CITY COUNCIL GOALS ALL SUBMITTED - REVISED 3-10-2016




City of Lockhart
Future Debt Payments as of 9/30/15
TOTAL

Description 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 DEBT
General Government
Hotel Tax Fund
2009 Tax & Revenue 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 520,000
Total Hotel Tax Fund P & | 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 520,000
LEDC |
2008 GO Refunding 300,000 300,000
2015 Tax & Revenue 37,357 48,093 48,093 48,044 48,103 48,152 63,645 63,670 63,513 63,543 63,555 63,643 63,687 65,647 65,544 65,575 65,482 65,579 65,538 65,676 1,182,139
Total LEDC Fund P & | 337,357 48,093 48,093 48,044 48,103 48,152 63,645 63,670 63,513 63,543 63,555 63,643 63,687 65,647 65,544 65,575 65,482 65,579 65,538 65,676 1,482,139
2015 Capital Projects Fund
2015 Tax & Revenue ‘ 122,620 122,620

|
Total 2015 Capital Projects Fund 122,620 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 122,620

[
Drainage |
2008 GO Refunding 31.00% 100,000 100,000
2015 Tax & Revenue 100,000 116,289 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 2,016,289
Total Drainage Fund P & | 200,000 116,289 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 2,116,289

[
General Fund |
2008 GO Refunding 91,210 91,210
2015 Tax & Revenue - -
Total General Fund P & | 91,210 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 91,210
Debt Service Fund
2009 Tax & Rev CO's 100.00% 333,210 331,060 328,972 327,883 336,575 329,615 737,655 742,642 741,325 743,920 750,210 749,978 753,440 7,206,485
2006 Tax & Rev CO's 100.00% 50,455 48,815 47,175 50,535 48,690 46,845 292,515
2006-A Tax & Rev CO's | 93.00% 266,916 267,594 267,890 267,803 267,332 271,128 1,608,664
2015 Tax & Revenue 12.00% 91,487 117,779 117,779 117,659 117,803 117,923 155,867 155,927 155,543 155,615 155,645 155,861 155,969 160,769 160,517 160,592 160,365 160,602 160,502 160,831 2,895,035
Total Debt Service Fund P & | 742,068 765,248 761,816 763,880 770,400 765,511 893,522 898,569 896,868 899,535 905,855 905,839 909,409 160,769 160,517 160,592 160,365 160,602 160,502 160,831 | 12,002,699

[
Total General Government 1,533,255 969,630 949,909 951,924 958,503 953,663 | 1,097,167 | 1,102,239 | 1,100,381 | 1,103,078 | 1,109,410 | 1,109,482 | 1,113,096 326,416 326,061 326,167 325,847 326,181 326,040 326,507 | 16,334,957

[

C:\Users\crodriguez\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\KDDN9DG8\Debt for Council FY16 04/12/2016



City of Lockhart
Future Debt Payments as of 9/30/15

TOTAL
Description 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 DEBT
Proprietary
Electric Fund
2008 GO Refunding 3.59% 40,379 40,379
2013 SIB Loan 30.81% 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,152 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,152 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,152 1,280,721
Total Electric Fund P & | 111,530 71,151 71,151 71,152 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,152 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,151 71,152 - - 1.321.]:00
Water Fund
2006A Tax & Rev CO's 7.00% 20,090 20,142 20,164 20,157 20,122 20,408 121,082
2008 GO Refunding 36.38% 409,192 409,192
2009 GO Refunding 86.69% 165,829 165,775 165,656 165,477 169,357 168,625 167,709 170,852 169,384 171,937 174,082 171,534 177,194 2,203,410
2015 Tax & Revenue 49.60% 378,148 486,818 486,818 486,322 486,917 487,413 644,248 644,496 642,909 643,207 643,331 644,223 644,670 664,510 663,468 663,778 662,842 663,822 663,406 664,800 | 11,966,146
2013 SIB Loan 35.80% 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 82,676 1,488,169
Total Water Fund P & | 1,055,935 755,411 755,314 754,632 759,071 759,122 894,633 898,024 894,969 897,820 900,089 898,433 904,540 747,186 746,144 746,454 745,518 746,498 663,406 664,800 | 16,187,999
Sewer Fund
2008 GO Refunding 16.36% 183,990 183,990
2009 GO Refunding 13.31% 25,461 25,452 25,434 25,407 26,002 25,890 25,749 26,232 26,006 26,398 26,728 26,336 27,206 338,302
2015 Tax & Revenue 4.30% 32,783 42,204 42,204 42,161 42,213 42,256 55,852 55,874 55,736 55,752 55,773 55,850 55,889 57,609 57,518 57,545 57,464 57,549 57,513 57,643 1,037,388
2015 Tax & Revenue TRNSF 170,305 186,594 186,302 186,653 186,945 279,275 279,421 278,487 278,662 278,735 279,261 279,523 291,203 290,590 290,773 290,222 290,798 290,554 291,374 4,905,677
2013 SIB Loan 33.39% 77,102 77,102 77,102 77,103 77,102 77,102 77,103 77,102 77,102 77,103 77,102 77,102 77,103 77,102 77,102 77,103 77,102 77,102 1,387,844
Total Sewer Fund P & | 319,336 315,064 331,334 330,973 331,971 332,193 437,979 438,629 437,331 437,915 438,338 438,549 439,721 425,914 425,210 425,421 424,788 425,449 348,067 349,017 7,853,201
Airport Fund
2000 Airport 100.00% -
Total Airport Fund P & | - - - - B - -
Total Proprietary Fund L &l 1,486,801 | 1,141,626 | 1,157,799 | 1,156,757 | 1,162,193 | 1,162,466 | 1,403,764 | 1,407,804 | 1,403,451 | 1,406,887 | 1,409,579 | 1,408,133 | 1,415,412 1,244,252 | 1,242,505 | 1,243,026 | 1,241,458 | 1,243,099 | 1,011,473 | 1,013,817 | 25,362,300
Grand Total } 3,020,056 | 2,111,256 | 2,107,708 @ 2,108,681 @ 2,120,696 | 2,116,129 | 2,500,931 | 2,510,043 | 2,503,832 | 2,509,965 | 2,518,989 | 2,517,615 2,528,508 | 1,570,668 | 1,568,566 | 1,569,193 | 1,567,305 1,569,280 | 1,337,513 | 1,340,324 | 41,697,257

C:\Users\crodriguez\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\KDDN9DG8\Debt for Council FY16 04/12/2016









